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Veson Holdings Limited (“Veson” or the “Company”, formerly known as
“SCUD Group Limited”) and its subsidiaries (the “Group”), with its focus
on the R&D and application of lithium-ion battery, is a leading provider
of lithium power solution for consumer electronics and smart hardware
products and a leading manufacturer of lithium-ion battery module
packaging and integration in the PRC, which was listed on the Main
Board of The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited in December 2006.

The Group is mainly engaged in the provision of lithium power
solutions and products to well-known international and domestic
mobile communication companies and Internet technology companies.
Supported by its self-developed and self-designed power management
system with high reliability as well as advanced technology in battery
module packaging, the Group’s lithium-ion battery products enjoy high
safety and high quality reputation in the industry. The core business of
the Group is mainly the supply of high quality lithium-ion battery modules
for original mobile telecommunication, mobile digital, smart electronics
and smart hardware products by tapping into the supply chain systems
of well-known mobile communication companies and internet technology
companies in the PRC and abroad. The high-quality customer groups
served by the Group have strong competitiveness and stable shares in
the end market, laying a foundation for the Group’s sustainable and
stable growth. The high reliability of the Group’s product, mass delivery
capabilities and standardised and efficient operating systems give the
Group a competitive edge.
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The Group’s main production base is located in an industrial park
in Fuzhou, the PRC, which has strict quality control system and
environmental management system, adopts industry-leading automated
equipment and processes, implements strict process control during the
manufacturing process to fully meet the requirements of large-scale
production and ensure each product is of high quality, and follows
advanced international standards by adopting strict control throughout
its production process including selection of suppliers, raw materials
procurement, and production and quality control to provide customers
with safe and reliable products. Accumulated with years of production
and management experiences, the Group has built up a modernised
manufacturing system featuring refined management, standardised
governance and high efficiency, which enhanced the Group’s market
competitiveness through the improvement of business operating
efficiency and better cost control, and enabled the Group to become
one of the most important R&D and production bases for consumer
lithium-ion battery products in the PRC.

Upholding the enterprise spirit of “efficiency, innovation, excellence
and integrity”, the Group will continue to provide high-quality products
and services to its customers, thereby energising the world in which
everything is connected.
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FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS
MBERE

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2020 HZE2020F12A31BILEE
(RMB thousand except where otherwise stated) (BRAEZERRI » MARETITHIR)
2020 2019

RMB’000 RMB’000 % Change
ARETRE AREBTRT #HESH

(+/-)
Turnover R 6,216,571 7,395,203 -15.9%
(Loss)/Profit for the year REE(E8B), 5 F (57,482) 48,696 -218.0%
(Loss)/Profit for the year attributable to AAREAA
owners of the Company JEMRAEEZ(EER),%H (52,683) 52,543 -200.3%
(Losses)/Earnings per share B (EE), B
— Basic and diluted (RMB cents) —EAREE(ARES) (4.83) 4.82 -200.2%
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Cayman Islands
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No. 98 Jiangbin East Avenue
Mawei District, Fuzhou
Fujian Province, PRC
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77 Leighton Road
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NOMINATION COMMITTEE

Cheung Wai Kwok Gary (Chairman)
(appointed with effect from 19 May 2020)
Lam Yau Yiu
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TRANSFER OFFICE
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Hong Kong
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On behalf of the board (the “Board”) of directors (the “Directors”) of
Veson Holdings Limited (“Veson” or the “Company”, together with its
subsidiaries, the “Group”), | am pleased to present the annual results
of the Company for the full year from 1 January 2020 to 31 December
2020 (the "“Review Period”).

Looking back at 2020, the Group’s main business, i.e. ODM business,
focused on the production of lithium-ion battery products, which are
mainly used in 3C consumer electronics and smart hardware products
such as smartphones and power banks. The main customers are well-
known mobile communication companies and internet technology
companies in the PRC and abroad. With the increasing breadth and
depth of cooperation between the Group and customers, the Group’s
consolidated market position has made the Group a major supplier of
lithium batteries for smartphones and consumer electronics. In addition,
the Group’s ODM business customers have been expanding the mobile
phone market in India in recent years. It is expected that the large
population of India will bring growth potential to the Indian mobile
phone market.

As the production capacity of the Group had previously been fully utilised,
the Group needed to be equipped with new production facilities and
supporting facilities for its future business growth. Therefore, the Group
implemented the expansion plan of the industrial park located in Fuzhou
in mid-2019 to enhance the Group's production capacity. The relevant
construction work completed in April 2020 and the new design of the
new plant lays a good foundation for optimising the production process,
further consolidating and improving production quality, and expanding
the delivery capacity of the Group.

The construction of the Group’s self-owned and purpose-built dormitories
and related facilities for its staff and their family members in the industrial
park located in Fuzhou also commenced during the Review Period, which
would facilitate efficient management by the Group and provide better
living environment, optimising the Group’s ability to retain its staff and
recruit new staff and reducing the Group’s rental expenses.

CHAIRMAN'S STATEMENT
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CHAIRMAN'S STATEMENT
ERMES

During the Review Period, the Group was devoted to improving its quality
control system to continuously improve its production efficiency and
technological level to ensure that all manufactured batteries meet high
safety standards. As for customers, the Group was constantly looking
for more partners to cooperate with, and the Group provided quality
battery supply to proactively meet the needs of existing customers. In
respect of supply, in order to provide customers with assured quality,
the Group, through its careful selection of supplier partners, ensured
that it can provide its customers with high quality and diversified battery
cell options and make greater efforts to satisfy its customers. As for
production, the Group continued to upgrade and transform its automated
production line to ease the pressure faced by the consumer electronics
manufacturing industry on operating costs in recent years. In addition,
apart from product safety, focusing on the environmental and social
impact of production and ensuring work safety were also the Group’s
primary tasks. We have always ensured production and operation are
conducted in a way in which we shoulder social responsibilities, and we
will continue to develop the business in a healthy way to provide high
quality products for customers while providing a safe and comfortable
work environment for our staff.

In 2020, due to the impact of the novel coronavirus (COVID-19) pandemic
(the “Pandemic”) on the global economy, the smartphone industry has
faced severe challenges since the outbreak of the Pandemic. Due to
the uncertainty in the development of the Pandemic across the globe,
consumers have reduced their spending on non-necessities, resulting in
a significant decrease in the global demand for smartphones in 2020.
The Pandemic was a test to crisis management capabilities of enterprises.
The Company’s complete internal decision-making mechanism helped
the Group to promptly adopt many effective measures in response to
the Pandemic. Although there are still many uncertainties ahead, the
Company will continue to monitor the development of the Pandemic on
a regular basis, and evaluate its impact on the Group’s operations and
financial performance to adopt appropriate measures when necessary.
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Looking ahead, in anticipation of the stabilisation of the Pandemic,
the supply and demand of smartphones and tablets are expected to
have good conditions for recovery. As the Pandemic accelerates the
change in people’s future lifestyle, people spend more time working
remotely and studying through online systems, and online shopping,
video conferencing and online game applications are being used more
and more frequently, all of which will boost the demand for smart
electronic products and related accessories. The Group will proactively
pay attention to the application of lithium-ion batteries in new industries
and new fields and grasp opportunities for access to the market. In
addition, the Group attaches great importance to the safety of using
batteries for electronic products. In the pursuit of high efficiency and
endurance of batteries, the Group will conduct more rigorous review
of the safety of its battery products to ensure that all manufactured
batteries meet high safety standards. Riding on high quality customer
resources, quality assurance and technology development capacity, the
Group commits to the provision of safe, portable and endurable green
energy products for customers and consumers.

On behalf of the Board and the management team, | would like to take
this opportunity to express my sincere gratitude to all staff, directors,
customers, suppliers, shareholders and institutions providing professional
services to the Group for all your support to the Group throughout these
challenging times.

Feng Ming Zhu
Chairman
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INDUSTRY REVIEW

In 2020, the Pandemic caused a setback to the global economy, and
also brought huge challenges to the smartphone industry. The Pandemic
weakened users’ desire to buy, and as a result global smartphone
shipments continued to decline as compared with 2019. According to
the data released by TrendForce, a market research organisation, as a
result of the impact of the Pandemic on the global smartphone market
in 2020, the total annual production volume was only 1.25 billion units,
being a year-on-year decrease of 11%, which is the largest decline in
history. Although the total global mobile phone shipments have declined,
the technology of mobile phones has been advancing steadily, and the
shipment of 5G mobile phones has increased significantly when compared
with 2019. Although 5G mobile phones have been developed in 2020,
4G mobile phones are still dominating the mainstream market currently.
In addition, with the improvement of 4G mobile phone performance,
the useful life of mobile phones is also getting longer and for many
consumers, 4G mobile phones are enough to meet their daily needs,
therefore the mobile phone market is still demonstrating a trend of
slowing growth. On the other hand, because of the still high overall price
of 5G mobile phones, and the resulting higher replacement cost than
before, there was no surging replacement wave in 2020. However, the
Pandemic has caused changes in many people’s lifestyle as people spend
more time working remotely and studying through online systems, and
online shopping, video conferencing and online game applications are
being used more and more frequently, boosting a continuous increase
in the use of mobile devices, which also indicates that the mobile
phone industry should have good conditions for recovery. After 5G
mobile phone technology has matured and network communication
infrastructure has been well established, the market is expected to
experience a surging smartphone replacement wave.

Looking forward to 2021, the global smartphone shipments are expected
to enter a rising cycle as a whole, which is mainly driven by the gradual
recovery of demand after the end of the Pandemic and the continuous
promotion of 5G infrastructure in China and overseas developed regions,
stimulating consumers to replace mobile phones. TrendForce estimates
that, with the emergence of cyclical replacement demand and the support
of demand from emerging markets, the production volume will rebound
to 1.36 billion units in 2021, being a year-on-year increase of 9%,
benefiting the lithium-ion battery market for mobile phones. Lithium-
ion battery is widely used in the fields of smartphones and other smart
devices due to its high energy density and long life cycle. It is expected
that the emergence of 5G replacement wave in the next few years and
the rise in demand by consumers for smart devices such as laptops,
tablets, smart wearable and smart homes will be the driving forces for
the demand for lithium-ion battery.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

IMPACT OF THE PANDEMIC AND RESPONSE
MEASURES

The main business of the Group is the provision of lithium-ion batteries
for smart electronic products such as smartphones, tablets, smart
wearables and power banks to well-known international and domestic
mobile communication companies and internet technology companies.
The outbreak of the Pandemic has certain impact on the Group’s ODM
business operations. The production plant of the ODM business, which
is located in Fujian, China resumed operation in early February 2020. At
the beginning of the outbreak of the Pandemic in early 2020, due to
measures to control the Pandemic, the factory production resumption
rate and logistics transportation could not return to normal levels
immediately, but have gradually returned to normal in late March 2020.
The Company’s major customers have resumed work in mid-February
2020, but with the further spread of the Pandemic around the world,
travel restrictions, quarantine measures and other control measures in
different regions, the movement of people engaged in cross-border
trade has been restricted and the supply chain has been interrupted, and
direct or indirect orders from overseas customers have been cancelled or
altered. This inevitably had an impact on the smartphone industry chain.
The environment for work resumption in India is still challenging. Since
March 2020, as a result of the suspension of production and work due
to the Pandemic control measures imposed by the Indian government,
project investment and production and operation have been put on hold.
With the continuous increase in the number of confirmed cases, the
production capacity of local factories in the mobile phone industry chain
has been adversely affected. In respect of upstream material supply, due
to the tight supply of components in Japan, South Korea, Europe and
the United States as a result of the global outbreak of the Pandemic,
the industry suffered a shortage of certain imported materials and an
increase in operational cost, and future production may be delayed due
to the supply shortage of key foreign parts.
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The production of the bare battery cell business located in Dongguan,
China was temporarily suspended at the beginning of the outbreak of
the Pandemic, and also faced low resumption rate and impact of traffic
control measures on logistics after the gradual resumption of work and
production in mid-February 2020. The outbreak of the Pandemic in
different countries and regions has hindered global business activities,
resulting in a significant decrease in the volume of bare battery cells
ordered in 2020. Since the beginning of the outbreak of the Pandemic,
the Group has been closely monitoring the number and progress of
its staff resuming work. The Group evaluated its logistics, production
materials, equipment, epidemic prevention measures and other key
factors for production resumption promptly, aiming to minimise the
impact of the Pandemic on the Group’s operations. The Group has
communicated with suppliers and customers in a timely manner,
carefully negotiated emergency measures and implementation plans, and
evaluated the changing trend of customer demand and the level of risk
from certain aspects including the fulfillment and alteration of existing
customer orders, and the increase and continuity of subsequent orders.
The Group has increased the proportion of its supplies to key customers
to maintain the stability of its market share. After the resumption
of work and production, the Group has continuously evaluated the
sustainability of customers and suppliers, and balanced purchase orders
and sales orders to control inventory growth. The Group has been
focusing on monitoring any changes to orders from major customers,
and strengthening anticipation on overseas markets’ recovery status,
to analyse the potential impact of subsequent changes on the Group'’s
production and operation plans.

In respect of capital management, the Group has evaluated the impact
of the Pandemic on capital and material reserves from time to time, and
has been monitoring the Group's capital receipt and payment to ensure
that the Group is paid back on time.

The Pandemic was a test to crisis management capabilities of enterprises.
The Company’s complete internal decision-making mechanism helped
the Group to promptly adopt many effective measures in response to
the Pandemic. Although there are still many uncertainties ahead, the
Company will continue to monitor the development of the Pandemic on
a regular basis, and evaluate its impact on the Group’s operations and
financial performance to adopt appropriate measures when necessary.
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BUSINESS REVIEW

The current businesses of the Group comprise ODM business and bare
battery cell business. During the period from 1 January 2020 to 31
December 2020 (the“Review Period”), the Group's consolidated turnover
amounted to approximately RMB6,216.6 million (2019: RMB7,395.2
million), decreased by approximately 15.9% compared with 2019. The
Group recorded loss for the year attributable to owners of the Company
was approximately RMB52.7 million (2019: profit for the year attributable
to owners of the Company RMB52.5 million). Basic and diluted losses
per share was approximately RMB4.83 cents (2019: basic and diluted
earnings per share RMB4.82 cents). The ODM business recorded a
turnover of approximately RMB5,745.5 million (2019: RMB6,870.5
million), accounting for approximately 92.4% (2019: 92.9%) of the
Group's consolidated turnover. The bare battery cell business recorded a
turnover of approximately RMB184.7 million (2019: RMB284.5 million),
accounting for approximately 3.0% (2019: 3.8%) of the Group’s
consolidated turnover.

ODM Business

ODM business is the main business of the Group. It provides complete
lithium power supply solutions and lithium-ion battery products for
well-known mobile communication companies and Internet technology
companies at home and abroad, which are mainly used in 3C consumer
electronics and smart hardware such as smartphones and power bank
products. The Group focuses on manufacturing lithium-ion batteries and
R&D on application technology over the years. Our experienced ODM
product development team is able to develop, design and optimise
battery solutions jointly with customers that align with customer needs.
With powerful manufacturing capacity, reliable quality assurance system,
premium bare battery cells, state-of-the-art protection circuit design and
precise production process control, the Group has secured a leading
position in the industry. The Group attaches great importance to the
safety of batteries. In the pursuit of high efficiency and endurance
of battery, the Group ensures that all the batteries meet high safety
standards.
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During the Review Period, sales volume of ODM mobile phone batteries
decreased by approximately 18.4% year-on-year to approximately 144.3
million pieces (2019: 176.8 million pieces) and turnover decreased
by approximately 14.9% vyear-on-year to approximately RMB5,143.8
million (2019: RMB6,044.8 million). In 2020, turnover of ODM mobile
phone batteries represented approximately 89.5% (2019: 88.0%) of
turnover of the ODM business. ODM power bank contributed turnover of
approximately RMB426.5 million (2019: RMB787.7 million), represented
approximately 7.4% (2019: 11.5%) of turnover of the ODM business. ODM
tablet batteries and communication backup power banks contributed
turnover of approximately RMB50.8 million (2019: Nil) and RMB54.1
million (2019: RMBO0.4 million) to the turnover of the ODM business
respectively. During the Review Period, the ODM business recorded net
profit of approximately RMB22.2 million (2019: RMB123.7 million).

In recent years, in order to enhance the production capacity of ODM
business, the Group has gradually integrated various resources. Through
re-allocation of resources and addition of automated equipment, it has
improved production efficiency and further improved the control system.
However, as the production capacity of the Group had previously been
fully utilised, the Group needed to be equipped with new production
facilities and auxiliary facilities for the future production needs of the
business. Accordingly, the Group implemented the expansion plan of the
industrial park located in Fuzhou in mid-2019. The relevant construction
work completed in April 2020. The new plant provides additional
production capacity for the Group, while its new design also provides
fundamental conditions as basis for the optimisation of the production
process as well as the further consolidation and improvement of the
product quality of the Group. In addition, the Group’s ODM business
customers have been expanding the mobile phone market in India in
recent years. It is expected that the large population of India will bring
growth potential to the Indian mobile phone market.
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Looking ahead, the Group as a mainstream ODM supplier of mobile
phone batteries and power banks in the PRC is expected to maintain a
competitive advantage in the ODM market of mobile phone battery and
power bank supported by the demand of existing and new customers.
The Group will strive to grasp the market development trend, extend
the application of lithium-ion batteries to other fields, and create greater
development space for the Group. In respect of operations, in order to
effectively expand the business scale, the Group will strive to increase
the shipment scale and operating efficiency through integrating existing
resources, strictly controlling costs, constructing new production plants
and supporting facilities, and strengthening research and development
capabilities, thereby laying a solid foundation for further sustainable and
healthy development of the Group.

Bare Battery Cell Business

During the Review Period, the bare battery cell business recorded
consolidated turnover of approximately RMB184.7 million (2019:
RMB284.5 million), representing a decrease of approximately 35.1%
year-on-year. During the Review Period, bare battery cell business
recorded net profit of approximately RMB9.2 million (2019: net loss of
RMB11.5 million).
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FINANCIAL REVIEW

During the Review Period, the Group recorded consolidated turnover
of approximately RMB6,216.6 million (2019: RMB7,395.2 million),
representing a decrease by approximately 15.9% as compared to that
in 2019. Gross profit for the Group was approximately RMB385.9 million
(2019: RMB530.5 million), representing a decrease by approximately
27.2% as compared to thatin 2019. The loss for the year and loss for the
year attributable to owners of the Company were approximately RMB57.5
million (2019: profit for the year of RMB48.7 million) and approximately
RMB52.7 million (2019: profit for the year attributable to owners of the
Company of RMB52.5 million) respectively, representing a decrease by
approximately 218.0% and 200.3% year-on-year respectively. The Group
recorded EBITDA of approximately RMB81.1 million (2019: RMB183.1
million) for the year, representing a decrease by approximately 55.7% as
compared to 2019. Basic and diluted losses per share was approximately
RMB4.83 cents (2019: basic and diluted earnings per share RMB4.82
cents).

Turnover by segments

During the Review Period, turnover of approximately RMB5,745.5 million
(2019: RMB6,870.5 million) was generated from the ODM business
segment, which accounted for approximately 92.4% (2019: 92.9%) of
the Group's consolidated turnover. Turnover of approximately RMB184.7
million (2019: RMB284.5 million) was contributed by the bare battery
cell business segment, which accounted for approximately 3.0% (2019:
3.8%) of the Group's consolidated turnover.

Sales by major products

During the Review Period, sales of approximately RMB5,143.8 million
(2019: RMB6,058.9 million) were generated from the sale of mobile
phone batteries, which accounted for approximately 82.7% (2019:
81.9%) of the Group’s consolidated turnover. Sales of power banks
amounted to approximately RMB426.5 million (2019: RMB805.8 million),
which accounted for approximately 6.9% (2019: 10.9%) of the Group's
consolidated turnover. Sales of approximately RMB184.7 million (2019:
RMB284.5 million) were generated from the sale of bare battery cells,
which accounted for approximately 3.0% (2019: 3.8%) of the Group'’s
consolidated turnover. Sales of tablet batteries and communication
backup power banks amounted to approximately RMB50.8 million
(2019: Nil) and RMB54.1 million (2019: RMBO0.4 million) respectively, in
aggregate accounted for approximately 1.7% (2019: Nil) of the Group's
consolidated turnover.
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Segment Results

For the ODM business segment, total turnover contributed to the
Group during the Review Period decreased by approximately 16.4%
year-on-year to approximately RMB5,745.5 million (2019: RMB6,870.5
million). During the Review Period, the sales volume of ODM mobile
phone batteries decreased by approximately 18.4% to approximately
144.3 million pieces (2019: 176.8 million pieces) and the turnover of
ODM mobile phone batteries decreased by approximately 14.9% to
approximately RMB5,143.8 million (2019: RMB6,044.8 million), which
accounted for approximately 89.5% (2019: 88.0%) of the Group’s
ODM sales. Sales volume of ODM power banks was approximately 4.2
million pieces (2019: 8.4 million pieces). Sales of ODM power banks
amounted to approximately RMB426.5 million (2019: RMB787.7 million),
accounted for approximately 7.4% (2019: 11.5%) of the Group’s ODM
sales. During the Review Period, the ODM business recorded net profit
of approximately RMB22.2 million (2019: RMB123.7 million).

For the bare battery cell business segment, turnover contributed to the
Group during the Review Period decreased by approximately 35.1%
year-on-year to approximately RMB184.7 million (2019: RMB284.5
million). The bare battery cell business segment recorded net profit
of approximately RMB9.2 million (2019: net loss of RMB11.5 million).

Cost of Sales

The Group's cost of sales amounted to approximately RMB5,830.6 million
during the Review Period (2019: RMB6,864.7 million), representing a
decrease of approximately 15.1% as compared to 2019. The decrease
in cost of sales in 2020 was in line with the decrease in sales during the
Review Period. Direct materials, direct labour and other production costs
accounted for approximately 90.4% (2019: 91.5%), 6.2% (2019: 6.4%)
and 3.4% (2019: 2.1%) of the cost of sales respectively.

Gross Profit and Gross Profit Margin

The overall gross profit margin of the Group in 2020 decreased to
approximately 6.2% (2019: 7.2%) as a result of a decrease in gross
profit margin for the ODM business segment during the Review Period.
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For the ODM business, the gross profit margin in 2020 was approximately
6.0% (2019: 6.8%). For the bare battery cell business, the gross profit
margin in 2020 was approximately 12.3% (2019: 17.0%).

Other revenue of approximately RMB46.0 million (2019: RMB98.0 million)
in 2020 mainly comprised of bank interest income, government grants,
revenue from sales of moulds, reversal of impairment loss on trade
and notes receivables previously recognised and reversal of write down
of inventories. Other revenue decreased as the other revenue in 2019
included an amount of RMB23.8 million being reversal of impairment
loss on prepayments, deposits and other receivables previously recognised
and government grants amounted to approximately RMB38.2 million.

Selling and distribution expenses of approximately RMB99.4 million
(2019: RMB109.7 million) accounted for approximately 1.6% (2019:
1.5%) of the Group’s consolidated turnover in 2020. The selling and
distribution expenses mainly comprised of entertainment expenses, repair
and maintenance, transportation expenses, office expenses and staff
salaries and welfare. The decrease in selling and distribution expenses
was mainly attributable to the decrease in entertainment expenses and
staff salaries and welfare during the Review Period.

Administrative expenses of approximately RMB294.0 million (2019:
RMB308.3 million) accounted for approximately 4.7% (2019: 4.2%)
of the Group’s consolidated turnover in 2020. Administrative expenses
mainly comprised of R&D expenses, staff training expenses, staff
salaries and welfare, office expenses, bank charges, depreciation and
rental expenses. The decrease in administrative expenses was mainly
attributable to the decrease in R&D expenses and staff training expenses
during the Review Period.

Other operating expenses of approximately RMB37.5 million (2019:
RMB106.0 million) mainly comprised of the impairment loss recognised
on trade and notes receivables, prepayments, deposits and other
receivables, write-off of inventories, and write-off of property, plant
and equipment. The decrease in other operating expenses was mainly
due to the significant decrease in the impairment loss recognised on
trade and notes receivables, prepayments, deposits and other receivables
and write-off of inventories in 2020.
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Finance costs of approximately RMB40.9 million (2019: RMB48.3 million)
mainly represent interest on bank borrowings and interest on discounted
notes receivables. The decrease in finance costs was mainly due to the
capitalisation of borrowing costs of approximately RMB15.7 million
(2019: Nil) during the Review Period.

(Loss)/profit Attributable to Owners of the Company

In 2020, the Group recorded loss attributable to owners of the Company
of approximately RMB52.7 million (2019: profit attributable to owners of
the Company of RMB52.5 million). The Group recorded loss attributable
to owners of the Company mainly due to the decrease in sales volume
and gross profit margin for both the ODM business segment and the
bare battery cell business segment during the Review Period.

Treasury Management and Cash Funding

The Group’s funding and treasury policy is designed to maintain a
diversified and balanced debt profile and financing structure. The
Group continues to monitor its cash flow position and debt profile,
and to enhance the cost-efficiency of funding initiatives by its centralised
treasury function. In order to maintain financial flexibility and adequate
liquidity for the Group's operations, potential investments and growth
plans, the Group has built a strong base of funding resources and will
keep exploring cost-efficient ways of financing.

Liquidity and Financial Resources

Cash and cash equivalents held by the Group as at 31 December 2020 was
approximately RMB211.3 million (2019: RMB406.2 million), principally
denominated in Renminbi, representing a decrease by approximately
RMB194.9 million year-on-year. The decrease in cash and cash equivalent
was mainly due to the decrease in net cash used in/generated from
operating activities during the Review Period. The Group recorded a
net cash outflow from operating activities of approximately RMB345.1
million for the year ended 31 December 2020 (2019: net cash inflow
from operarting activities RMB310.8 million), representing a decrease by
approximately RMB655.9 million as compared to that in 2019.
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The Group's borrowings, principally denominated in Renminbi, which
were outstanding as at 31 December 2020 amounted to approximately
RMB911.9 million (2019: RMB592.1 million). Bank borrowings amounting
to approximately RMB230.0 million (2019: RMB40.0 million) and
approximately RMB681.9 million (2019: RMB542.7 million) were carried
at floating interest rate and fixed interest rate respectively. A total of
approximately RMB698.2 million (2019: RMB591.5 million) of the interest-
bearing borrowings will fall due during the 12 months after the end of
the Review Period. There was no particular seasonality of the Group’s
borrowing requirements. Please refer to Note 28 to the consolidated
financial statements for details on the maturity profile of the Group’s
borrowings. The Group monitored capital using a gearing ratio, which
is total debt of the Group divided by total equity of the Group. Total
debt to equity ratio of the Group expressed as a percentage of interest
bearing borrowings over the total equity of approximately RMB1,024.5
million (2019: RMB1,074.5 million) was approximately 89.0% as at 31
December 2020 (2019: 55.1%). Bank deposits pledged for banking
facilities as at 31 December 2020 was approximately RMB750.8 million
(2019: RMB977.5 million).

As at 31 December 2020, the Group’s current ratio was approximately
1.1 times (2019: 1.1 times) based on current assets of approximately
RMB3,654.9 million (2019: RMB4,547.2 million) and current liabilities
of approximately RMB3,376.8 million (2019: RMB4,097.0 million).
Trade receivable turnover days were approximately 122 days for the
year ended 31 December 2020 as compared to approximately 106
days for the year ended 31 December 2019. Inventory turnover days
were approximately 29 days for the year ended 31 December 2020 as
compared to approximately 29 days for the year ended 31 December
2019. Trade payable turnover days were approximately 76 days for the
year ended 31 December 2020 as compared to approximately 78 days
for the year ended 31 December 2019.

Net Current Assets and Net Assets

The Group’s net current assets as at 31 December 2020 was approximately
RMB278.0 million, representing a decrease by approximately 38.3%
from the balance of approximately RMB450.3 million recorded as at 31
December 2019. Net assets as at 31 December 2020 was approximately
RMB1,024.5 million, representing a decrease by approximately 4.7%
from the balance of approximately RMB1,074.5 million as at 31 December
2019.
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Construction of New Factories

The Group regularly reviews its production capacities as part of its
business development planning in order to determine whether new
production facilities may be required. As the production capacity of the
Group's ODM business had previously been fully utilised, in order to meet
the production demands of the ODM customers and to provide space for
new production facilities and warehouse facilities and potential expansion
of the Group’s ODM business in the future, in 2019 the Group engaged
an independent third party contractor to construct two new factories
in the industrial park located in Fuzhou (“Industrial Park”) and wholly
owned by Scud Battery Co., Ltd., an indirect wholly-owned subsidiary
of the Company. The new design of the new factories is expected to
facilitate enhancement to the production processes and improvement
to the quality of production. The relevant construction work completed
in April 2020. The consideration for the construction of the two new
factories were approximately RMB57.0 million and RMB42.3 million
respectively, payable in accordance with the payment terms of the
relevant construction agreement.

Construction of Staff Dormitory and Related Facilities

The Group regularly reviews the state and capacity of its dormitories
and related facilities for its staff and their family members as part of
its business development planning in order to determine whether new
staff dormitories and related facilities may be required from time to
time. The Group currently provides dormitories and related facilities to
its staff and their family members by renting them from third parties.
Such dormitories rented from third parties are scattered in different
locations. During the Review Period, the Group engaged an independent
third party contractor to carry out the construction of staff dormitory
and related facilities in the Industrial Park. The Directors believe that
such construction would centralise the Group’s dormitories and related
facilities inside the Industrial Park, which would provide a better living
environment and facilitate efficient management by the Group. The
purpose-built staff dormitory and related facilities better suit the needs
of the Group’s staff and their family members, which in turn optimises
the Group’s ability to retain its staff and recruit new staff and would
also reduce the Group’s rental expenses. The consideration for the
construction of the dormitories and related facilities is approximately
RMB248.7 million, payable in accordance with the payment terms of
the relevant construction agreement.
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Change in Ownership Interests in Subsidiaries

The Group made no significant investment or material acquisition or
disposal of subsidiaries during the Review Period.

Pledge of Assets

As at 31 December 2020, bank loans of approximately RMB495.5 million
(2019: RMB291.0 million) were secured by the Group's assets and bank
loans of approximately RMB416.4 million (2019: RMB291.7 million)
were unsecured.

Commitments

The Group's capital commitments outstanding as at 31 December 2020
amounting to approximately RMB55.8 million (2019: RMB24.2 million)
was mainly attributed to acquisition of property, plant and equipment.

Contingent Liabilities

As at 31 December 2020, no provision for contingent liabilities was
required.

Capital Structure

During the Review Period, there had been no change in the share capital
of the Company.

Foreign Exchange Exposure

For the year 2020, the Group conducted its business transactions
principally in Renminbi. The Group has not experienced any material
difficulties or negative impacts on its operations as a result of fluctuations
in currency exchanges rates. Although the Group has certain bank
balances denominated in United States Dollars, Japanese Yen, Indian
Rupee and Hong Kong Dollars, their proportion to the Group's total assets
is insignificant. The Directors considered that no hedging of exchange
risk is required and no financial instruments, currency borrowings or
other hedging instruments were used for hedging purposes during 2020.
Nevertheless, the management will continue to monitor the Group’s
foreign exchange exposure and will take prudent measures against
currency exchange risks as and when it is appropriate.
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Event After the Reporting Period

Event subsequent to the end of the Review Period is set out in Note 42
to the consolidated financial statements.

Significant Investment Held and Material Acquisition and
Disposal

Significant Investment Held

The Group did not hold any significant investment during the Review
Period.

Material Acquisition and Disposal of Subsidiaries, Associates and
Joint Ventures

The Group did not make any material acquisition or disposal of subsidiaries,
associates or joint ventures during the Review Period.

Future Plans for Material Investments or Capital Assets

As at 31 December 2020, the Group did not have any future plan for
material investments or capital assets for the coming year.
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Employee, Remuneration Policies and Share Option Scheme

As at 31 December 2020, the Group had 3,885 full-time employees
(2019: 4,129). The salaries of the Group’s employees were determined
by reference to the personal performance, professional qualification
and industry experience of the relevant employee and relevant market
trends. The Group ensures all levels of employees are paid according
to market standard and employees are rewarded on a performance-
related basis within the framework of the Group's salary, incentives
and bonus scheme. The management reviews the remuneration policy
of the Group on a regular basis and evaluates the working performance
of the employees. The remuneration of the employees includes salaries,
allowances, year-end bonus and social insurance. In accordance with
the relevant prevailing laws and regulations of the PRC, the Group has
participated in the social insurance plans set up by the relevant local
government authorities, including pension funds, medical insurance
(including maternity insurance), unemployment insurance and work-
related injury insurance. The Group has also participated in the mandatory
provident fund scheme for its Hong Kong employees in accordance with
the Mandatory Provident Fund Scheme Ordinance (Chapter 485 of the
Laws of Hong Kong). The Company also adopted a share option scheme
on 17 June 2019 to reward eligible participants (including directors and
employees of the Group) for their contributions to the Group.
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EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Feng Ming Zhu, aged 57, is an executive Director, the Chairman of
the Company and a member of the Corporate Governance Committee
and the Vice President of the Group. He is primarily responsible for the
development of the Group’s strategy, the management of the Group'’s
legal affairs, the management of the Group's daily operations and
monitoring the Group’s internal control procedures on a day-to-day
basis. He joined the Group in March 2007 and successively served as the
Director of Investment, the Director of Administration and the General
Manager of SMT Business Unit of the Group, and was appointed as the
Vice President of the Group in April 2013. Mr. Feng graduated from the
Anhui University of Finance and Economics in the PRC with a Bachelor’s
degree in Engineering, and served as the Chairman of the Battery
Technology Association of Fujian Province, a Specialist of Fujian JingXin
Think Tank Industry Research and a member of the Steering Committee
of the Master of Materials Engineering of Fujian Normal University. As
at 31 December 2020, Mr. Feng did not have any interests in the shares
of the Company within the meaning of Part XV of the SFO.

Lian Xiu Qin, aged 49, is an executive Director and the Chief Executive
Officer of the Group. She is primarily responsible for the management
of the Group’s daily operations. She joined the Group in March 1998
and she has been the Deputy General Manager and the Division Head of
the first business division of Scud (Fujian) Electronics Company Limited
("Scud Electronics”) since January 2016 and July 2016 respectively,
responsible for managing the Group’s business with its major customers.
Previously, she held other key positions such as the Production Head and
Engineering Manager of Scud Electronics. Ms. Lian has over 20 years’
experience in engineering and manufacturing technologies. She was
awarded the honorary title “Second-term Outstanding Highly Skilled
Talent of Fuzhou" by the Human Resources and Social Security Bureau of
Fuzhou in May 2013. The polymer battery metal shell structure registered
by the State Intellectual Property Office of the PRC as a patent in the
name of Scud Electronics was invented by Ms. Lian and two other staff
of the Group. Publications by Ms. Lian on “Lithium Battery Production
Technologies” and “Electronic Products Assembly Process” are used as
teaching materials at the Fujian Scud Senior Technician Training School.
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Ms. Lian is a qualified senior technician specialising in the production of
battery cells. She graduated from the Shenyang University of Technology
in July 1995 specialising in Applied Electronics Technology. She also
obtained an undergraduate qualification in Business English at the Fujian
Normal University in June 2009 and a part-time Master’'s degree in
Business Administration at the Seton Hall University of the United States
of America in 2021. Ms. Lian has completed professional training on
“Quantitative Methods in Process Improvement” (ISO 13053-1&2:2011)
published by the International Organisation for Standardisation and on
cost control management. As at 31 December 2020, Ms. Lian did not
have any interests in the shares of the Company within the meaning of
Part XV of the SFO.

NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Hou Li, aged 62, is a non-executive Director. He joined the Group
on 25 August 2016. Mr. Hou is a senior partner of Beijing Dentons
Law Offices, LLP. Mr. Hou holds a Bachelor of Law degree from the
East China College of Political Science and Law (now known as East
China University of Political Science and Law) and an Executive Master
of Business Administration degree from the Xiamen University. He is
a certified lawyer in the PRC and has over 25 years’ experience in
company laws and internal corporate governance structures. Mr. Hou
also engages in various social activities and had served as a member
of the Commission of Legislative Affairs of Fujian Province Committee
of the Chinese People’s Political Consultative Conference, a director of
the Fujian Province Joint-Stock Enterprises Association and the Fujian
Province Securities Association, an arbitrator of the Fuzhou Arbitration
Commission and the chairman of the Law Office of the Fujian Committee
of the Revolutionary Committee of The Chinese Kuomintang. As at 31
December 2020, Mr. Hou did not have any interests in the shares of the
Company within the meaning of Part XV of the SFO.
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Loke Yu, alias Loke Hoi Lam, aged 71, is a non-executive Director and a
member of the Corporate Governance Committee. He rejoined the Group
on 1 September 2020. Dr. Loke was an independent non-executive Director
and the Chairman of the Audit Committee, Remuneration Committee
and Nomination Committee from May 2009 to September 2018. Dr. Loke
has over 40 years of experience in accounting and auditing for private
and public companies, financial consultancy and corporate management.
Dr. Loke is a Fellow of the Institute of Chartered Accountants in England
and Wales, the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants, the
Institute of Chartered Secretaries & Administrators and the Hong Kong
Institute of Chartered Secretaries, and a life member of the Hong Kong
Independent Non-Executive Directors Association. Dr. Loke obtained a
degree of Master of Business Administration from the Universiti Teknologi
Malaysia in April 2001 and a degree of Doctor of Business Administration
from the University of South Australia in March 2006. Dr. Loke is currently
an independent non-executive director of the following companies, the
shares of which are listed on the Stock Exchange: Chiho Environmental
Group Limited (stock code: 976), China Silver Technology Holdings
Limited (formerly known as TC Orient Lighting Holdings Limited) (stock
code: 515), CIMC-TianDa Holdings Company Limited (stock code: 445),
Hang Sang (Siu Po) International Holding Company Limited (stock code:
3626), Hong Kong Resources Holdings Company Limited (stock code:
2882), Matrix Holdings Limited (stock code: 1005), Tianjin Development
Holdings Limited (stock code: 882), Times Universal Group Holdings
Limited (formerly known as Forebase International Holdings Limited)
(stock code: 2310), TradeGo FinTech Limited (stock code: 8017), V1
Group Limited (stock code: 82), Zhenro Properties Group Limited (stock
code: 6158) and Zhong An Group Limited (stock code: 672). Mr. Heng
Ja Wei Victor, an independent non-executive Director, is his nephew-in-
law. Dr. Loke was also an independent non-executive director of China
Beidahuang Industry Group Holdings Limited (stock code: 39) from
June 2005 to November 2018, Winfair Investment Company Limited
(stock code: 287) from April 2007 to April 2018 and Lamtex Holdings
Limited (stock code: 1041) from July 2015 to March 2020, the shares
of which are listed on the Stock Exchange, and Shenzhou Space Park
Group Limited (stock code: 692) from August 2013 to August 2018 and
Tianhe Chemicals Group Limited (stock code: 1619) from May 2014 to
May 2020, the shares of which were listed on the Stock Exchange. As
at 31 December 2020, Dr. Loke did not have any interests in the shares
of the Company within the meaning of Part XV of the SFO.
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INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Heng Ja Wei Victor, aged 43, is an independent non-executive
Director, the Chairman of the Audit Committee and Remuneration
Committee and a member of the Nomination Committee and
Corporate Governance Committee. He joined the Group on
1 September 2016. Mr. Heng is a partner of Morison Heng, Certified
Public Accountants. Mr. Heng holds a Bachelor of Engineering degree
in Electronic Engineering from the University of Warwick in the United
Kingdom and a Master of Science degree in Computer Science from the
Imperial College of Science, Technology and Medicine of the University
of London. He is a member of, and holds a Certified Public Accountant
(Practising) certificate issued by, the Hong Kong Institute of Certified
Public Accountants and a fellow member of the Association of Chartered
Certified Accountants. Mr. Heng has served as an independent non-
executive director of CIMC-TianDa Holdings Company Limited (stock
code: 445) since March 2009, Best Food Holding Company Limited
(stock code: 1488) since May 2011, Lee & Man Chemical Company
Limited (stock code: 746) since June 2010 and Matrix Holdings Limited
(stock code: 1005) since December 2012 and as the company secretary
of China Life Insurance Company Limited (stock code: 2628) since April
2013, the securities of which are listed on the Stock Exchange. Mr. Heng
is a nephew-in-law of Dr. Loke Yu, a non-executive Director. As at 31
December 2020, Mr. Heng did not have any interests in the shares of
the Company within the meaning of Part XV of the SFO.

Lam Yau Yiu, alias Lam Yau Yiu Laurence, aged 57, is an independent
non-executive Director, the Chairman of the Corporate Governance
Committee and a member of the Audit Committee, Remuneration
Committee and Nomination Committee. He joined the Group on 27
September 2018. Mr. Lam is a fellow member of the Hong Kong Institute
of Certified Public Accountants and a fellow member of the Association
of Chartered Certified Accountants. He has about 32 years’ experience
in auditing, accounting and corporate management. Mr. Lam has served
as the company secretary of V1 Group Limited (stock code: 82) since
February 2019, the securities of which are listed on the Stock Exchange.
Mr. Lam was the financial controller and the company secretary of Zhong
An Real Estate Limited (now known as Zhong An Group Limited, stock
code: 672) from October 2008 to December 2016, the securities of
which are listed on the Stock Exchange.
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Mr. Lam holds a Master’s degree in Business Administration and a Master
of Science in Information Systems Management from the Hong Kong
University of Science and Technology and a Bachelor of Accounting from
the City University of Hong Kong. He was the consultant to Chase Solar
Limited from January 2018 to December 2018 and he was the chief
financial officer and company secretary of Million Cities Development
Limited from January 2017 to July 2017. As at 31 December 2020, Mr.
Lam did not have any interests in the shares of the Company within the
meaning of Part XV of the SFO.

Cheung Wai Kwok Gary, aged 67, is an independent non-executive
Director, the Chairman of the Nomination Committee and a member
of the Audit Committee, Remuneration Committee and Corporate
Governance Committee. Mr. Cheung joined the Group on 19 May 2020.
Mr. Cheung holds a Bachelor’s degree of Arts in Business Administration
and a Bachelor’'s degree of Arts (Honours) in Economics from York
University in Canada and he has over 39 years of experience in the
financial services industry. Mr. Cheung was an executive director of Sun
Hung Kai & Co. Limited, the chief executive of the Hong Kong Securities
Institute, the chief executive officer of Tung Shing Securities (Brokers)
Limited (currently known as Sinopac Securities (Asia) Limited), the chief
executive officer of Investport (H.K.) Limited, the responsible officer of
YF Securities Company Limited, YF Futures Company Limited and YF
Asset Management Limited, and the chief executive officer of Blackwell
Global Investments (HK) Limited. Mr. Cheung also served as a committee
member of the banking and finance training board of the Vocational
Training Council of Hong Kong from April 2017 to March 2019. Mr.
Cheung has been the chief executive officer and the responsible officer
of Type 1 (dealing in securities) and Type 4 (advising on securities)
regulated activities under the Securities and Futures Ordinance (Chapter
571 of the Laws of Hong Kong) (the “SFO") of OnePlatform Securities
Limited (formerly known as CSL Securities Limited) since April 2018 and
June 2018 respectively. Mr. Cheung is the responsible officer of Type
1 (dealing in securities) and Type 4 (advising on securities) regulated
activities under the SFO and was the responsible officer of Type 2 (dealing
in futures contracts), Type 3 (leveraged foreign exchange trading), Type
5 (advising on futures contracts), Type 6 (advising on corporate finance)
and Type 9 (asset management) regulated activities under the SFO of
various other companies. Mr. Cheung was elected as the chairman of
the board of directors of the Hong Kong Securities Association Limited
in November 2017 and became its permanent honourary president in
September 2019, prior to which he was the vice chairman of its board
of directors from 2011 to 2015. Mr. Cheung was a member of the
Steering Committee of the Asian Financial Forum 2018 and has been
the chief supervisor of East Asia Securities Qianhai Securities Limited
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since October 2017, a director of the board of the Financial Dispute
Resolution Centre since March 2018, a panel member of the AntiMoney
Laundering and Counter-Terrorist Financing Review Tribunal of Hong
Kong since April 2018 and a senior fellow of the Hong Kong Securities
and Investment Institute since September 2014. Mr. Cheung is a member
of the Academic and Accreditation Advisory Committee of the Securities
and Futures Commission since April 2020. Mr. Cheung has served as an
independent non-executive director of Sang Hing Holdings (International)
Limited (stock code: 1472) since January 2020 and was the executive
director and the managing director of South China Financial Holdings
Limited (stock code: 619) from June 2009 to June 2011, the securities
of which are listed on the Stock Exchange. As at 31 December 2020,
Mr. Cheung did not have any interests in the shares of the Company
within the meaning of Part XV of the SFO.

SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Yeung Mun Tai (FCCA, CPA), aged 44, is the Company Secretary
of the Company. He is the Chief Financial Officer of the Group and
is responsible for its overall financial and accounting affairs. He is a
member of the Association of Chartered Certified Accountants and a
member of the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants.
Prior to joining the Group in September 2005, Mr. Yeung worked as
an auditor in an international accounting firm. He has more than 20
years' experience in the accounting field. He holds a Bachelor’s degree
in Business Administration and Accounting.
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The board (the “Board”) of directors (the “Directors”) of Veson Holdings
Limited (the “Company” and, together with its subsidiaries, the “Group”)
presents its annual report and audited consolidated financial statements
for the financial year from 1 January 2020 to 31 December 2020
("Review Period”).

The discussions in the “Chairman’s Statement”, “Management Discussion
and Analysis” and “Corporate Governance Report” sections of this
annual report form part of the discussions of this directors’ report.

A discussion on the Group's environmental policies and performance
and community investment can be found in the “Environmental, Social
and Governance Report” to be published.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The Company is an investment holding company. The principal activities
of its major subsidiaries are set out in Note 1 and Note 35 to the
consolidated financial statements.

RESULTS AND APPROPRIATIONS

The results of the Group for the year ended 31 December 2020 are set out
in the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive
income on page 86.

The Board has decided not to recommend any final dividend for the
year ended 31 December 2020 to preserve cash for the working capital
requirement of the business of the Group.

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Details of the movements during 2020 in the property, plant and
equipment of the Group are set out in Note 16 to the consolidated
financial statements.

SHARE CAPITAL

Details of the movements during 2020 in the share capital are set out
in Note 31 to the consolidated financial statements.

DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVES OF THE COMPANY

The Company’s reserves available for distribution to shareholders as at 31
December 2020 comprised retained earnings, other reserves and share
premium of approximately RMB906.2 million (2019: RMB951.1 million).
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DIRECTORS AND SERVICE CONTRACTS

The Directors during the Review Period and up to the date of this report
were:

EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS:

Feng Ming Zhu (Chairman with effect from 19 May 2020)
Lian Xiu Qin (Chief Executive Officer)

NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS:

Hou Li

Loke Yu
(appointed with effect from 1 September 2020)

Ho Chung Tai Raymond (Chairman until 18 May 2020)
(term of appointment expired on 16 June 2020)

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS:

Heng Ja Wei Victor
Lam Yau Yiu
Cheung Wai Kwok Gary
(appointed with effect from 19 May 2020)
Wong Chi Wing
(term of appointment expired on 16 June 2020)
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According to Article 87(1) of the articles of association of the Company,
at each annual general meeting one-third of the Directors for the time
being (or, if their number is not a multiple of three, the number nearest
to but not less than one-third) shall retire from office by rotation provided
that every Director shall be subject to retirement at an annual general
meeting at least once every three years. Mr. Feng Ming Zhu, Ms. Lian
Xiu Qin and Mr. Hou Li will retire at the forthcoming annual general
meeting of the Company in accordance with Article 87(1) of the articles
of association of the Company. Mr. Feng Ming Zhu, Ms. Lian Xiu Qin and
Mr. Hou Li all being eligible, will offer themselves for re-election at the
forthcoming annual general meeting of the Company. As disclosed in
the announcement of the Company dated 1 September 2020, Dr. Loke
Yu was appointed by the Board as a non-executive Director with effect
from 1 September 2020. According to Article 86(3) of the articles of
association of the Company, any Director appointed by the Board to fill a
casual vacancy on the Board or as an addition to the existing Board shall
hold office only until the next following annual general meeting of the
Company and shall then be eligible for re-election. Accordingly, Dr. Loke
Yu shall retire from office a non-executive Director at the forthcoming
annual general meeting of the Company and he, being eligible, will offer
himself for re-election at the forthcoming annual general meeting of the
Company. There are no service contracts or appointment letters of any
of the Directors who are proposed for re-election at the forthcoming
annual general meeting which are not determinable by the Group
within one year without payment of compensation (other than statutory
compensation).
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DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVES’ INTERESTS
AND SHORT POSITIONS IN SHARES

As at 31 December 2020, none of the Directors or chief executives of the
Company had any interests or short positions in any shares, underlying
shares or debentures of the Company or any of its associated corporations
(within the meaning of Part XV of the Securities and Futures Ordinance
(Chapter 571 of the Laws of Hong Kong) (“SFO") as recorded in the
register required to be kept under section 352 of the SFO or as notified
to the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to the Model Code
for Securities Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers.

SHARE OPTIONS

The Company’s share option scheme (the “Scheme”) was adopted
pursuant to a shareholders’ resolution passed on 17 June 2019 for the
purpose of rewarding eligible participants who have contributed or will
contribute to the Group and encouraging eligible participants to work
towards enhancing the value of the Company and its shares for the
benefit of Company and its shareholders as a whole. Eligible participants
include directors and employees of the Group and any advisors,
consultants, distributors, contractors, suppliers, agents, customers,
business partners, joint venture business partners, promoters or service
providers of any member of the Group who the board of directors of
the Company considers to have contributed or will contribute to the
Group. Under the Scheme, the board of directors of the Company may
grant options to eligible employees, including directors of the Company
and its subsidiaries, to subscribe for shares in the Company. The Scheme
was adopted for a period of 10 years expiring on 16 June 2029 and
the Company by ordinary resolution in general meeting or the board of
directors of the Company may at any time terminate the Scheme without
prejudice to the options granted during the life of the Scheme and which
remain unexpired immediately prior to such termination.

The number of shares in respect of which options had been granted and
remained outstanding under the Scheme was Nil as at 31 December 2020
and no options have been granted under the Scheme during the Review
Period. The total number of shares in respect of which options may be
granted under the Scheme is not permitted to exceed 109,000,124
shares, representing approximately 10% of the total number of shares
of the Company in issue as at the date of this annual report, without
prior approval from the Company’s shareholders. The number of share
issued and to be issued in respect of which options granted and may
be granted to any individual in any 12-month period is not permitted to
exceed 1% of the shares of the Company in issue for the time being,
without prior approval from the Company’s shareholders. The number of
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shares issued and to be issued in respect of which options granted and
may be granted to a substantial shareholder or an independent non-
executive Director or any of their respective associates representing in
aggregate over 0.1% the Company’s share capital on the date of such
grant or with an aggregate value in excess of HK$5,000,000 must be
approved in advance by resolution of the Company’s shareholders (voting
by way of poll). Subject to the terms of the Scheme, an offer of grant
of an option will remain open for acceptance by the eligible participant
for 28 days from the date of the offer. Upon the acceptance of the
offer, a consideration of HK$1 for the grant of the option is payable
and the relevant option may be exercised in accordance with the terms
of the Scheme at any time during the exercise period to be determined
by the Board, which shall not exceed 10 years. The board of directors
of the Company may with respect to each grant of options, determine
the minimum period, if any, for which an option must be held before it
can be exercised. The exercise price of the options shall be determined
by the board of directors of the Company in its absolute discretion but
will in any event not be less than the higher of:-

(1) the closing price of the Company’s shares as stated in the daily
quotations sheets issued by the Stock Exchange on the date of an
offer of an option by the Company (which must be a business day);

(2) the average closing price of the Company’s shares as stated in
the daily quotations sheets issued by the Stock Exchange for the
5 business days immediately preceding the date of the offer of an
option; and

(3) the nominal value of the Company’s shares.

DIRECTORS’ RIGHTS TO ACQUIRE SHARES OR
DEBENTURES

Save as disclosed in the section headed “Share Options”, at no time
during the Review Period or at the end of the Review Period was
the Company, or any of its holding companies, subsidiaries or fellow
subsidiaries, a party to any arrangements to enable the Directors to
acquire benefits by means of the acquisition of shares in, or debentures
of, the Company or any other body corporate.
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SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS

As at 31 December 2020, the following persons (other than the Directors

or the chief executive of the Company) had interests or short positions

in the shares and underlying shares of the Company as recorded in the

register required to be kept under section 336 of the SFO:

Long positions (ordinary shares of HK$0.10 each in the issued

share capital of the Company)

Name of shareholder

REREE

Swift Joy Holdings Limited (Note 2)
AEERER AT (FFE2)

B RESRNE

Beneficial owner

EmEAA

Right Grand Holdings Limited (Note 2) Beneficial owner

ERZERARRDR (M)

Fang Jin (Note 3)

EmfEAA

FE (MHE3) R EEER
Note 1:  We have applied the number of shares of the Company in

Note 2:

Note 3:

issue as at 31 December 2020, i.e. 1,090,001,246 shares,
when calculating this percentage.

Each of Swift Joy Holdings Limited and Right Grand
Holdings Limited was a private company directly wholly-
owned by Mr. Fang Jin.

Among 552,338,000 shares, (i) 423,770,000 shares were
owned by Swift Joy Holdings Limited and 110,568,000
shares were owned by Right Grand Holdings Limited (see
also Note 2 above) and (ii) 18,000,000 shares were owned
by Cheer View Holdings Limited, another private company
directly wholly-owned by Mr. Fang Jin.

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2020, the Company had

not been notified by any persons (other than the Directors or the chief

executive of the Company) who had interests or short positions in the

shares or underlying shares of the Company as recorded in the register

required to be kept under section 336 of the SFO.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

Report on the corporate governance practice adopted by the Company
is set out on pages 52 to 78 of this annual report.

REMUNERATION OF THE DIRECTORS AND THE
FIVE HIGHEST PAID EMPLOYEES

For the year ended 31 December 2020, the total remuneration of the
Directors and the five highest paid employees are set out in Note 11 to
the consolidated financial statements.

AUDIT COMMITTEE, NOMINATION COMMITTEE,
REMUNERATION COMMITTEE AND CORPORATE
GOVERNANCE COMMITTEE

The Company has established an audit committee (“Audit Committee”),
a nomination committee (“Nomination Committee”), a remuneration
committee (“Remuneration Committee”) and a corporate governance
committee (“Corporate Governance Committee”).

AUDIT COMMITTEE

The purpose of the Audit Committee is to assist the Board in considering
how the Board should apply financial reporting principles and for
maintaining an appropriate relationship with the Company’s independent
auditor. As at 31 December 2020, the Audit Committee consisted of
three members who were Mr. Heng Ja Wei Victor (Chairman), Mr. Lam
Yau Yiu and Mr. Cheung Wai Kwok Gary.

NOMINATION COMMITTEE

The purpose of the Nomination Committee is to identify, screen and
recommend to the Board appropriate candidates to serve as Directors,
to oversee the process for evaluating the performance of the Board and
to develop, recommend to the Board and monitor nomination guidelines
for the Company. As at 31 December 2020, the Nomination Committee
consisted of three members who were Mr. Cheung Wai Kwok Gary
(Chairman), Mr. Lam Yau Yiu and Mr. Heng Ja Wei Victor.
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REMUNERATION COMMITTEE

The purpose of the Remuneration Committee is to assist the Board in
determining the policy and structure for the remuneration of executive
Directors, evaluating the performance of executive Directors, reviewing
incentive schemes and Directors’ service contracts and fixing the
remuneration packages for all Directors and senior management. As at
31 December 2020, the Remuneration Committee consisted of three
members who were Mr. Heng Ja Wei Victor (Chairman), Mr. Lam Yau
Yiu and Mr. Cheung Wai Kwok Gary.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE COMMITTEE

The purpose of the Corporate Governance Committee is to assist the
Board in considering how the Board should apply risk management
and internal control principles, performing the corporate governance
duties and ensuring the Company’s compliance with the Corporate
Governance code as set out in Appendix 14 to the Listing Rules. As at
31 December 2020, the Corporate Governance Committee comprised
three independent non-executive Directors namely Mr. Lam Yau Yiu
(Chairman), Mr. Cheung Wai Kwok Gary and Mr. Heng Ja Wei Victor, one
non-executive Director namely Dr. Loke Yu and one executive Director
namely Mr. Feng Ming Zhu.

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There are no provisions for pre-emptive rights under the articles of
association of the Company or the laws of the Cayman Islands, which
would oblige the Company to offer new shares on a pro-rata basis to
its existing shareholders.

MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

Sales to the top five customers and the largest customer of the Group
represented approximately 77% and approximately 35% of the Group’s
total sales revenue of the Review Period, respectively. Purchase from
the top five suppliers and the largest supplier of the Group represented
approximately 66% and approximately 49% of the Group’s total
purchases of the Review Period, respectively.

At no time during the Review Period did a Director, a close associate of
a Director or a shareholder of the Company (which, to the knowledge
of the Directors, owns more than 5% of the number of issued shares
of the Company) has any interest in the top five customers or suppliers
of the Group.
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PERMITTED INDEMNITY PROVISION

Pursuant to article 167 of the articles of association of the Company,
every Director shall be indemnified and secured harmless out of the assets
and profits of the Company from and against all actions, costs, charges,
losses, damages and expenses which he/she shall or may incur or sustain
by or by reason of any act done, concurred in or omitted in or about
the execution of his/her duties in his/her offices or trusts provided that
this indemnity shall not extend to any matter in respect of any fraud or
dishonesty which may attach to the relevant Director. Such permitted
indemnity provision was in force during the Review Period and remained
in force as at the date of this report.

CONTINUING CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS

During the Review Period, the Group had the following continuing
connected transactions, certain details of which are set out below in
compliance with the requirements of Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules.

The Company has complied with the disclosure requirements in relation
to such transactions in accordance with Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules.

The name of, and the relationship with, the parties connected with the
Company are as follows:

Name

=L

Relationship
B

Fang Jin ("Mr. Fang”)

e ([h%EE]) AR REERAR

Scud Electronics

A controlling shareholder of the Company
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Scud (Fujian) Electronics Co., Ltd., an indirectly wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company

REBRE T RER (BR) EFERAR  AARZEEZ2ENE AR
Scud Stock Scud Stock (Fujian) Co., Ltd., a company in which Mr. Fang held 70% shareholding interest
FREBRAAD RERERBROBRLIAE - HEEHEBETO%RE

Scud Battery

Scud Battery Co., Ltd., an indirectly wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company
REBREMERLAAT - ARRZHEZ2ENBE LR
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(A) Lease agreements with Scud Stock (2020)

42

On 30 December 2019, Scud Electronics (as lessee) and Scud Stock
(as lessor) entered into a lease agreement (the “First 2020 Lease
Agreement”) to renew the lease of certain premises owned by
Scud Stock.

Under the First 2020 Lease Agreement, Scud Stock agreed to lease
to Scud Electronics the premises (the “First 2020 Lease Premises”)
located at land lot numbers 39-2 and 44-2, Kuai An Extension Area,
Mawei District, Fuzhou, Fujian Province, PRC comprising:

(i)  rental area of approximately 31,155 square metres in 4 blocks
of factories with a total construction area of approximately
40,627.68 square metres;

(i) rental area of approximately 7,826 square metres in 1 office
building with a total construction area of approximately
13,268.80 square metres; and

(iii) rental area of approximately 11,250 square metres in
1 warehouse building with a total construction area of
approximately 11,250 square metres.

The First 2020 Lease Premises were leased for use as factory, office
for administration use for the Group and warehouse for storage
of stocks.

The term of lease was from 1 January 2020 to 31 December 2020.
The annual rental under the First 2020 Lease Agreement was
RMB10,361,765.64. The rentals were payable in cash on a monthly
basis.

During the year ended 31 December 2020, in view of the COVID-19
Pandemic, Scud Stock and Scud Electronics mutually agreed a rent
concession, pursuant to which the monthly rental was reduced by
RMB254,680.78 for February 2020. Accordingly, the annual rental
was reduced from RMB10,361,765.64 to RMB10,107,084.86.

On 30 December 2019, Scud Battery (as lessee) and Scud Stock (as
lessor) entered into a lease agreement (the “Second 2020 Lease
Agreement”) to renew the lease of certain premises owned by
Scud Stock.
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Under the Second 2020 Lease Agreement, Scud Stock agreed
to lease to Scud Battery the premises (the “Second 2020 Lease
Premises”) located at land lot numbers 39-2 and 44-2, Kuai An
Extension Area, Mawei District, Fuzhou, Fujian Province, PRC
comprising:

(i) rental area of approximately 9,472 square metres in 4 blocks
of factories with a total construction area of approximately
40,627.68 square metres; and

(i) rental area of approximately 5,443 square metres in 1 office
building with a total construction area of approximately
13,268.80 square metres.

The Second 2020 Lease Premises were leased for use as factory
and office for administration use for the Group.

The term of lease was from 1 January 2020 to 31 December 2020.
The annual rental under the Second 2020 Lease Agreement was
RMB3,598,194.24. The rentals were payable in cash on a monthly
basis.

During the year ended 31 December 2020, in view of the COVID-19
Pandemic, Scud Stock and Scud Battery mutually agreed a rent
concession, pursuant to which the monthly rental was reduced by
RMB78,462.85 for February 2020. Accordingly, the annual rental
was reduced from RMB3,598,194.24 to RMB3,519,731.39.

Accordingly, the aggregate annual rental for the year ended 31
December 2020 payable by Scud Electronics and Scud Battery to
Scud Stock under the First 2020 Lease Agreement and the Second
2020 Lease Agreement was RMB13,626,816.25 (being the sum of
RMB10,107,084.86 and RMB3,519,731.39).

Further details of the First 2020 Lease Agreement and the Second
2020 Lease Agreement are set out in the Company’s announcement
dated 30 December 2019.

As at 30 December 2019, Scud Stock was owned as to 70%
by Mr. Fang, the controlling shareholder of the Company. Scud
Stock is therefore a connected person of the Company under the
Listing Rules and accordingly, the above transactions constituted
continuing connected transactions of the Company.
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The details on annual caps for the aggregate rental payable by
Scud Electronics and Scud Battery to Scud Stock under the First
2020 Lease Agreement and the Second 2020 Lease Agreement
are as follows:

Annual cap for the year ended 31 December 2020

The actual rental amounts paid for the above continuing
connected transactions for the year ended 31 December 2020
was RMB13,626,816.25.

(B) Lease agreements with Scud Stock (2021)

On 30 December 2020, Scud Electronics (as lessee) and Scud Stock

(as lessor) entered into a lease agreement (the “First 2021 Lease

Agreement”) to renew the lease of certain premises owned by
Scud Stock.

Under the First 2021 Lease Agreement, Scud Stock agreed to lease
to Scud Electronics the premises (the “First 2021 Lease Premises”)
located at land lot numbers 39-2 and 44-2, Kuai An Extension Area,
Mawei District, Fuzhou, Fujian Province, PRC comprising:

(i)  rental area of approximately 31,155 square metres in 4 blocks
of factories with a total construction area of approximately
40,627.68 square metres;

(i) rental area of approximately 7,826 square metres in 1 office
building with a total construction area of approximately
13,268.80 square metres; and

(iii) rental area of approximately 11,250 square metres in
1 warehouse building with a total construction area of
approximately 11,250 square metres.

The First 2021 Lease Premises were leased for use as factory, office

for administration use for the Group and warehouse for storage
of stocks.
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The term of lease is from 1 January 2021 to 31 December 2021.
The annual rental under the First 2021 Lease Agreement is
RMB10,361,765.64. The rentals are payable in cash on a monthly
basis.

On 30 December 2020, Scud Battery (as lessee) and Scud Stock (as
lessor) entered into a lease agreement (the “Second 2021 Lease
Agreement”) to renew the lease of certain premises owned by
Scud Stock.

Under the Second 2021 Lease Agreement, Scud Stock agreed
to lease to Scud Battery the premises (the “Second 2021 Lease
Premises”) located at land lot numbers 39-2 and 44-2, Kuai An
Extension Area, Mawei District, Fuzhou, Fujian Province, PRC
comprising rental area of approximately 1,949 square metres in
1 office building with a total construction area of approximately
13,268.80 square metres. The Second 2021 Lease Premises were
leased for use as office for administration use for the Group.

The term of lease is from 1 January 2021 to 31 December 2021.
The annual rental under the Second 2021 Lease Agreement is
RMB668,228.57. The rentals are payable in cash on a monthly basis.

Further details of the First 2021 Lease Agreement and the Second
2021 Lease Agreement are set out in the Company’s announcement
dated 30 December 2020.

As at 30 December 2020, Scud Stock was owned as to 70%
by Mr. Fang, the controlling shareholder of the Company. Scud
Stock is therefore a connected person of the Company under the
Listing Rules and accordingly, the above transactions constituted
continuing connected transactions of the Company. Based on
information available to the Company, Mr. Lin Chao (“Mr. Lin”) and
Ms. Bian Zhen (“Ms. Bian") hold the remaining equity interests as to
25% and 5% respectively. To the best of the Directors’ knowledge,
information and belief having made all reasonable enquiry, Mr. Lin
and Ms. Bian are third parties independent of the Company and
its connected persons.
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The details on annual caps for the aggregate rental payable by
Scud Electronics and Scud Battery to Scud Stock under the First
2021 Lease Agreement and the Second 2021 Lease Agreement
are as follows:

Annual cap for the year ending 31 December 2021

The rentals are payable commencing 1 January 2021 as the term of
lease is from 1 January 2021.

(C) Lease agreement with Scud Stock (2020)

On 30 December 2019, Scud Battery (as lessor) entered into a
lease agreement with Scud Stock (as lessee) to renew the lease
of certain premises owned by Scud Battery (“the “Scud Battery
Premises 2020") to Scud Stock for the period commenced from
1 January 2020 and ended on 31 December 2020 (the “Lease
Agreement (2020)").

Under the Lease Agreement (2020), Scud Battery agreed to lease
to Scud Stock the Scud Battery Premises 2020 located at No. 135,
Rujiangdong Road, Mawei District, Fuzhou, Fujian Province, PRC
comprising:

(i)  rental area of approximately 26,665 square metres in 1 factory
building with a total construction area of approximately 26,665
square metres; and

(i)  rental area of approximately 8,450 square metres in 1 warehouse
building with a total construction area of approximately 8,450
square metres.

The Scud Battery Premises 2020 were leased for use as manufacturing
facility.

The term of lease was from 1 January 2020 to 31 December
2020. The annual rental under the Lease Agreement (2020) was
RMB6,421,028.52. The rentals were payable in cash on a monthly
basis.
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(D)

During the year ended 31 December 2020, in view of the COVID-19
Pandemic, Scud Battery and Scud Stock mutually agreed a rent
concession, pursuant to which the monthly rental was reduced by
15% for the period from 1 February 2020 to 31 December 2020.
Accordingly, the annual rental was reduced from RMB6,421,028.52
to RMB5,538,137.10.

Further details of the Lease Agreement (2020) are set out in the
Company’s announcement dated 30 December 2019.

As at 30 December 2019, Scud Stock was owned as to 70% by
Mr. Fang, the controlling shareholder of the Company. Scud Stock
is therefore a connected person of the Company under the Listing
Rules and accordingly, the lease under the Lease Agreement (2020)
constitutes a continuing connected transaction of the Company.

The annual cap for the aggregate rental payable by Scud Stock to
Scud Battery under the Lease Agreement (2020) for the year ended
31 December 2020 was RMB6,421,028.52.

The actual rental amount paid for the above continuing
connected transaction for the year ended 31 December 2020 was
RMB5,538,137.10.

Lease agreement with Scud Stock (2021)

On 30 December 2020, Scud Battery (as lessor) entered into a lease
agreement with Scud Stock (as lessee) to new the lease of certain
premises owned by Scud Battery (the “Scud Battery Premises 2021")
to Scud Stock for the period from 1 January 2021 to 31 December
2021 (the “Lease Agreement (2021)").

Under the Lease Agreement (2021), Scud Battery agreed to lease
to Scud Stock the Scud Battery Premises 2021 located at No. 135,
Rujiangdong Road, Mawei District, Fuzhou, Fujian Province, PRC
comprising:

(i) rental area of approximately 17,193 square metres in 1 factory
building with a total construction area of approximately 26,665
square metres; and

(i)  rental area of approximately 8,450 square metres in 1 warehouse
building with a total construction area of approximately 8,450
square metres.
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The Scud Battery Premises 2021 were leased for use as manufacturing
facility.

The term of lease is from 1 January 2021 to 31 December
2021. The annual rental under the Lease Agreement (2021) is
RMB4,689,005.71. The rentals are payable in cash on a monthly
basis.

Further details of the Lease Agreement (2021) are set out in the
Company’s announcement dated 30 December 2020.

As at 31 December 2020, Scud Stock was owned as to 70% by
Mr. Fang, the controlling shareholder of the Company. Scud Stock
is therefore a connected person of the Company under the Listing
Rules and accordingly, the lease under the Lease Agreement (2021)
constituted a continuing connected transaction of the Company.
Based on information available to the Company, Mr. Lin and
Ms. Bian hold the remaining equity interests as to 25% and 5%
respectively. To the best of the Directors’ knowledge, information
and belief having made all reasonable enquiry, Mr. Lin and Ms. Bian
are third parties independent of the Company and its connected
persons.

The annual cap for the aggregate rental payable by Scud Stock to
Scud Battery under the Lease Agreement (2021) for the year ending
31 December 2021 is RMB4,689,005.71.

The rentals are payable commencing 1 January 2021 as the term of
lease is from 1 January 2021.

Further details of the transactions and relationships of the connected
parties are also set out in Note 36 to the consolidated financial statements.

The independent non-executive Directors have reviewed the continuing
connected transactions set out above and have confirmed that, during the
year ended 31 December 2020, such transactions have been entered into:

(1)
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(except for the Lease Agreement (2020) and the Lease Agreement
(2021)) in the ordinary and usual course of business of the Group;

on normal commercial terms or better; and
according to the relevant agreements governing such transactions

on terms that are fair and reasonable and in the interests of the
shareholders of the Company as a whole.
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The independent auditor of the Company has also confirmed that in
relation to the above continuing connected transactions:

(1) nothing has come to its attention that causes it to believe that such
transactions have not been approved by the Board,;

(2) for transactions involving the provision of goods or services by the
Group, nothing has come to its attention that causes it to believe
that the transactions were not, in all material respects, in accordance
with the pricing policies of the Group;

(3) nothing has come to its attention that causes it to believe that
such transactions were not entered into, in all material respects,
in accordance with the relevant agreements governing such
transactions; and

(4) nothing has come to its attention that causes it to believe that such
transactions have exceeded the relevant annual cap as set by the
Company.

RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

During the Review Period, the Group entered into certain transactions
with parties regarded as “related parties” under the applicable accounting
principles. Details of the related party transactions are set out in Note 36
to the consolidated financial statements. The related party transactions
which are also non-exempted continuing connected transactions under
Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules are disclosed in the section headed
"Continuing Connected Transactions” above.

CONTRACTS WITH CONTROLLING SHAREHOLDER

Save as disclosed in the section headed “Continuing Connected
Transactions” above and in Note 36 to the consolidated financial
statements, no other contracts of significance between the Company
or any of its subsidiaries and a controlling shareholder or any of its
subsidiaries and no other contracts of significance for the provision
of services to the Company or any of its subsidiaries by a controlling
shareholder or any of its subsidiaries were entered into or existed during
the Review Period.

DIRECTORS' INTERESTS IN COMPETING BUSINESS

None of the Directors were interested in any business apart from the
business of the Group, which competed or was likely to compete, either
directly or indirectly, with the business of the Group during the Review
Period and up to the date of this annual report.
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DIRECTORS’ MATERIAL INTERESTS IN TRANSACTIONS,
ARRANGEMENTS OR CONTRACTS OF SIGNIFICANCE

No Director or entity connected with a Director (within the meaning
of section 486 of the Companies Ordinance (Chapter 622 of the Laws
of Hong Kong)) had any direct or indirect material interests in any
transaction, arrangement or contract of significance to which the
Company, its subsidiaries, its holding company or its fellow subsidiaries
was a party entered into during, or subsisting during or at the end of,
the Review Period.

PENSION SCHEME

The Company participates in a mandatory provident fund scheme,
which is registered under the Hong Kong Mandatory Provident Fund
Schemes Ordinance (the "MPF Ordinance”), for all its employees in
Hong Kong. The scheme is a defined contribution scheme and is funded
by contributions from employer and employees in accordance with the
provisions of the MPF Ordinance. No forfeited contributions (by employers
on behalf of employees who leave the scheme prior to vesting fully in
such contributions) may be used by the employer to reduce the existing

level of contributions.

Furthermore, the employees of the Group in the PRC are members
of state-managed defined contribution retirement benefits schemes
operated by the local governments. The employers and the employees
are obliged to make contributions at a certain percentage of the payroll
under the rules of the schemes.

Details of the pension scheme contributions of the Group for the year
ended 31 December 2020 are set out in Note 4(o) to the consolidated
financial statements.

MANAGEMENT CONTRACT

No contract concerning the management or administration of the whole
or any substantial part of the business of the Group was entered into
or existed during the Review Period.

RELATIONSHIPS WITH EMPLOYEES, CUSTOMERS
AND SUPPLIERS

The Group values its employees and provides competitive remuneration
package to attract and motivate its employees. The Group regularly
reviews the remuneration package of its employees and makes necessary
adjustments to conform to market standard. The Group also provides
regular training to its employees for their career development.
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The Group values the views and opinions of its customers and regularly
communicates with them in order to obtain feedback and opinions and
understand their business needs and demands.

The Group has developed long-term and good relationships with its
suppliers. The relevant departments of the Group work closely together
to ensure that the procurement process is conducted in an open, fair
and just manner.

COMPLIANCE WITH RELEVANT LAWS AND
REGULATIONS

To the best knowledge of the Directors, there was no material non-
compliance with applicable laws and regulations by the Group which
had a significant impact on the business and operations of the Group
during the Review Period.

PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF SECURITIES

Neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries purchased, sold or
redeemed any of the Company’s listed securities during the Review
Period.

ANNUAL CONFIRMATION OF INDEPENDENCE

The Company has received from each independent non-executive Director
an annual confirmation of his or her independence pursuant to rule 3.13
of the Listing Rules, and the Company considers such independent non-
executive Directors to be independent.

SUFFICIENT PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on information that is publicly available to the Company and
within the knowledge of the Directors, as at the latest practicable date
prior to the issue of this annual report, the Company has maintained
sufficient public float as required under the Listing Rules.

On behalf of the Board

FENG MING ZHU
Chairman

31 March 2021
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE PRACTICE

Veson Holdings Limited (the “Company”) together with its subsidiaries
(the “Group”) are committed to maintaining and ensuring a high level
of corporate governance standards and continuously review and improve
the Group’s corporate governance and internal control practices. Save
as otherwise specified, set out below are the principles of corporate
governance as adopted by the Company during the financial year from
1 January 2020 to 31 December 2020 (the “Review Period”). The
Company has adopted the code provisions set out in the Corporate
Governance Code (the “Corporate Governance Code”) in Appendix 14
of The Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on The Stock Exchange
of Hong Kong Limited (“Listing Rules”). The Company complied with
all the applicable code provisions of the Corporate Governance Code
during the Review Period.

ROLES OF CHAIRMAN AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE
OFFICER (“CEO")

During the Review Period, Dr. Ho Chung Tai Raymond served as the
Chairman (the “Chairman”) of the board (the “Board"”) of directors (the
“Directors”) of the Company until 18 May 2020 and Mr. Feng Ming Zhu
served as the Chairman since 19 May 2020. The Chairman is responsible
for leading the Board in protecting the interest of the shareholders of
the Company (the “Shareholders”) as a whole and for overseeing the
Group, whilst Ms. Lian Xiu Qin served as the Chief Executive Officer
("CEQ") of the Company and is responsible for managing the overall
business operations of the Group, proposing strategies to the Board and
monitoring the effective implementation of the strategies and policies
adopted by the Board.

Save for their business relationships as a result of their respective
directorships and positions in the Group, there are no financial, business,
family or other material or relevant relationships between Dr. Ho Chung
Tai Raymond, Mr. Feng Ming Zhu and Ms. Lian Xiu Qin.
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THE BOARD

As of 31 December 2020, there were seven members on the Board,
which comprised of two executive Directors, two non-executive Directors
("NEDs"”) and three independent non-executive Directors (“INEDs"),
whose names are shown in the table on page 64. The INEDs are
considered by the Board to be independent of the management and
free of any relationship that could materially interfere with the exercise
of their independent judgments. The Board considered that each of the
INEDs brings his own relevant expertise to the Board and its deliberations.
The term of appointment of Mr. Heng Ja Wei Victor, Mr. Cheung Wai
Kwok Gary and Mr. Lam Yau Yiu, the INEDs, commenced on 30 June
2020 and will end on the earlier of 29 June 2021 and the date of
the annual general meeting to be held by the Company in 2021. All
appointment letters of the INEDs can be terminated by the Company
or the INED giving at least 3 months’ prior written notice. Each of the
INEDs confirmed their respective independence to the Group. The term
of appointment of Dr. Loke Yu, a NED, commenced on 1 September
2020 and will end on the earlier of 31 August 2021 and the date of the
annual general meeting to be held by the Company in 2021. The term of
appointment of Mr. Hou Li, another NED, commenced on 30 June 2020
and will end on the earlier of 29 June 2021 and the date of the annual
general meeting to be held by the Company in 2021. All appointment
letters of the NEDs can be terminated by the Company or the NED giving
at least 3 months’ prior written notice. Save for the Directors’ business
relationships as a result of their respective directorships and positions
in the Group and save that Mr. Heng Ja Wei Victor is a nephew-in-law
of Dr. Loke Yu, there are no financial, business, family or other material
or relevant relationships among members of the Board and they are
independent from each other.
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The Board met regularly during the Review Period on an ad hoc basis as
required by business needs. The Board’s primary purpose is to set and
review the overall strategic development of the Group and to oversee
the achievement of its business plans to enhance Shareholders’ value
as a whole. Daily operational decisions are delegated to the executive
Directors and the senior management. Such Board meetings involved
the active participation, either in person or through other electronic
means of communication, of the Directors. During the Review Period,
the Board met 12 times and the Directors’ attendance record is shown
in the table on page 64. In advance of the Board meetings, appropriate
notices, meeting agenda and other relevant information were given to
all Directors. All Directors were consulted to include additional matters
(if any) in the agenda for Board meetings. Draft and final versions of
the Board meeting minutes were sent to all Directors for their comment
and record respectively. The original minutes of Board meetings are kept
by the company secretary of the Company and such minutes are open
for inspection at any reasonable time on reasonable prior notice by any
Director. The Company has put in place appropriate insurance cover in
respect of Directors’ liability.

The Company’s overall management is vested in its Board, which accepts
that it is ultimately accountable and responsible for the performance
and affairs of the Group. The Board'’s role is to provide entrepreneurial
leadership, set the Company’s strategic aims and the Company’s values
and standards, and to ensure that its obligations to its stakeholders
and others are understood and met. To facilitate the operations, the
Board has established a schedule of matters reserved for its approval.
The specific responsibilities reserved for the Board include (1) setting
the Group’s strategies and dividend policy; (2) reviewing operational
and financial performance; (3) approving major investments and
divestments; (4) reviewing risk management and internal control system
of the Group; (5) ensuring appropriate management development and
succession plans are in place; (6) approving appointments of Directors
and other senior executives; (7) approving corporate social responsibility
policies; (8) ensuring effective communication with Shareholders and
(9) other significant operational and financial matters. The day-to-day
management, administration and operation of the Group are delegated
to the management.

54

ESEeRNEARERREBMFEIRRITER -
EEENIE2VRERFET RRIARENBERE
BR G UAREBEEBAHERBARARRNEEE
B AREERRNIBRRATEERSREERES
T-BENRARBEEAMBEFERTAEB2E
ZEEFERR  EFENEEMESRITTI2ZRE
& MEFHHFLERFARMBERAN - EFE
EHROHA BNE2REFXZEENEY 4
BEMEMABREN  ABBRMEEZTEREAR
EREETEMBINER EFCERICLHERK
BRRBEEMBEESUHRETHLREE EF22
FLHEREAARRRAAWMERT - BEFESRY
IREHABELBARNEMNAERMENZE
ERLE - ARFEREFEERREE ZEER

B o

EFeRAREBARAIZER  THAEERE
REBARKEE BEFS2BERRHLEE
B HEARAZEBEZERARAZBERE
£ ARBERAREREERNEREMAZES
BRUWEBITZEES -  RIREEE FEGDREY
—MEFERNFEBFE -EFARBEEEE()
7 = B B R AR - Q)FEREE R BRE
QHEEARELRE  OBRHNAKEZARERE
RABIEGIRS  COERESHEEABRERE
BHERTE OYEEZEEEREMEREEAS
MHLECERLSETHRE  QERERRZAX
B ITHREERERETERERRE -



'"VESON HOLDINGS LIMITED

HEERBRLE

ANNUAL REPORT %R 2020

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

DIRECTORS’ TRAINING AND PROFESSIONAL
DEVELOPMENT

Every Director keeps abreast of responsibilities as a director of the
Company and of the conduct, business activities and development of the
Company. Directors are continually provided with updates to regulatory
and governance developments. The Company provides all members of
the Board with monthly updates on the Company’s performance, position
and prospects. Directors are encouraged to participate in continuous
professional development courses and seminars to develop and refresh
their knowledge and skills, including updates to laws and regulations
applicable to the Company and its Directors as well as any amendments
thereto. During the Review Period, the Company provided regular updates
to the Directors on material changes to regulatory requirements applicable
to the Directors and the Company and on the latest business development
of the Group on a timely basis. The Directors confirmed that they have
complied with code provision A.6.5 of the Corporate Governance Code
in relation to continuous professional development. During the Review
Period, all of the Directors have participated in continuous professional
development by attending seminars, e-seminars, in-house briefing and
reading materials to develop and refresh their knowledge and skills in
areas related to their roles, functions and duties of Directors such as
corporate governance and regulatory updates. In addition, during the
Review Period, Dr. Loke Yu, Mr. Heng Ja Wei Victor, Mr. Lam Yau Yiu
and Mr. Cheung Wai Kwok Gary attended various directors’ training
seminars and e-seminars arranged by various organisations including
the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants and Hong Kong
Institute of Directors. On a continuing basis, Directors are encouraged
to keep up to date on all matters relevant to the Group and attend
briefings and seminars as appropriate.
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AUDIT COMMITTEE

The Company has established an audit committee (the “Audit
Committee”) with written terms of reference as suggested under the
code provisions and recommended best practices under the Corporate
Governance Code and adopted with reference to “A Guide for Effective
Audit Committees” published by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified
Public Accountants in February 2002. As at 31 December 2020, the
Audit Committee comprised three INEDs, namely Mr. Heng Ja Wei Victor,
Mr. Lam Yau Yiu and Mr. Cheung Wai Kwok Gary, and the chairman
of the Audit Committee was Mr. Heng Ja Wei Victor. Each committee
member can bring to the Audit Committee his valuable experience in
reviewing financial statements and evaluating significant control and
financial issues of the Group, who among themselves possess a wealth
of management experience in the accounting profession or commercial
sectors. The Audit Committee was established on 3 December 2006 and
held 4 meetings during the Review Period. The committee members’
attendance is shown on page 64.

The main duties of the Audit Committee are as follows:

(i) to review the half-year and annual financial statements of the
Group before they are submitted to the Board for approval;

(i) to make recommendations to the Board on the appointment,
reappointment and removal of the external auditor, and to approve
the remuneration and terms of engagement of the external auditor,
and any questions of its resignation or dismissal of that auditor;

(iii) to review and monitor the external auditor’'s independence and
objectivity and the effectiveness of the audit process in accordance

with applicable standards;

(iv) to review the Company’s financial controls;
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(v) to review the Group’s financial and accounting policies and
practices;

(vi) to review and monitor the effectiveness of the internal audit
function;

(vii) to review the arrangements which the employees of the Company
can use, in confidence, to raise concerns about possible improprieties
in financial reporting, internal control or other matters; and

(viii) to review the terms and conditions of ongoing connected
transactions of the Group.

During the Review Period, the Audit Committee carried out its duties
as set out above, including reviewing certain financial information of
the Group.

REMUNERATION COMMITTEE

The Company established a remuneration committee (the “Remuneration
Committee”) on 3 December 2006 and held 3 meetings during the
Review Period. The committee members’ attendance is shown on page
64. As at 31 December 2020, the Remuneration Committee comprised
three INEDs, namely Mr. Heng Ja Wei Victor, Mr. Lam Yau Yiu and Mr.
Cheung Wai Kwok Gary. The chairman of the Remuneration Committee
was Mr. Heng Ja Wei Victor. Its main duties are summarised as follows:

(i)  to make recommendations to the Board on the Group’s policy and
structure for all Directors’ and senior management’s remuneration
and on the establishment of a formal and transparent procedure
for developing such remuneration policies, and to determine, with
delegated responsibility, the remuneration packages of all individual
executive Directors and senior management;
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(i)  to make recommendations to the Board on the remuneration of

non-executive Directors;

(iii) to ensure that no Director or any of his/her associates is involved
in deciding his/her own remuneration; and

(iv) to advise Shareholders on how to vote in respect of any
service contract or appointment letter of Directors that requires

Shareholders’ approval in accordance with the Listing Rules.

The work done by the Remuneration Committee during the Review
Period included the above and the following:

(i)  determining the policy for the remuneration of executive Directors;
(i) assessing performance of executive Directors; and
(iii) approving the terms of executive Directors’ service contracts.

Details of the amount of the Directors’ emoluments are set out in Note
11 to the consolidated financial statements.

Pursuant to code provision B.1.5 of the Corporate Governance Code, the
remuneration payable to member of the senior management by band
for the year ended 31 December 2020 is set out below:

In the band of
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RMB1,760,001 to RMB2,200,000 (equivalent ~ AR¥1,760,001 TE AR 1

to HKD2,000,001 to HKD2,500,000)
JTE 2,500,000/ 7T )
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NOMINATION COMMITTEE

The Company established a nomination committee (the “Nomination
Committee”) on 3 December 2006 and held 3 meetings during the
Review Period. The committee members’ attendance is shown on page
64. As at 31 December 2020, the Nomination Committee comprised
three INEDs, namely Mr. Cheung Wai Kwok Gary, Mr. Lam Yau Yiu and
Mr. Heng Ja Wei Victor. The chairman of the Nomination Committee
was Mr. Cheung Wai Kwok Gary. The Nomination Committee selects
and recommends appropriate candidates based on the candidates’
prior experience and qualifications to the Board on the appointment of
Directors. The main duties of the Nomination Committee are as follows:

(i) to review the structure, size and composition (including but
not limited to gender, age, cultural background, educational
background, professional experience, skills, knowledge and/or
length of service) of the Board on a regular basis and to make
recommendations to the Board regarding any proposed changes;

(i) to develop the criteria for identifying and assessing the qualifications
of and evaluating candidates for directorship;

(iii) to identify individuals who are suitably qualified to become a Board
member and to select or make recommendations to the Board
on the selection of individuals nominated for directorships having
regard to each candidate’s merit against an objective criteria and
the benefits of diversity of the Board;

(iv) to assess the independence of independent non-executive directors
to determine their eligibility;

(v) to review and assess the adequacy of the corporate governance
guidelines of the Company and to recommend any proposed
changes to the Board for approval; and

(vi) have regard to the Company’s policy concerning diversity of Board
members, and make appropriate disclosure of the policy or a
summary of the policy in the Company’s corporate governance
report.

The work done by the Nomination Committee during the Review Period
included the above and determining the policy for the nomination of
Directors.

EEARE

REZES
RABIR2006F 12 A3HBRUIRREE S ([IREEE
g)]) REZESNLIEHBERITINGH %%
,\@EZ,\Z&FI MERE6LE - B2020F12 A31
CREZECH-EBAUBITESE Eﬂé‘ﬁz%l
S‘EE CMRBEERMRAEL EHEK - REBREZE
WEFARABCE REZEGNREETESH -
ERBREANBACHRERKETMESTSHE
BHEANE REZEBEMEEBFENT :

(i TEHRBREZTENHRE  ABLKE(BEED

AR - Filk  XIEBER -HEER BX
B8 BRE - MERLRBESTE) - Wt

EEZREHNETS(FLHERR

(i) HIE#5 &
EIRAE

HAEEREABR LGRS

(i) ERHEEREASABHRESTERESZK
HHENER BRI AEREEKAEETENK
BrERIAL - EHERABEES A LHIR
LEE-BABESRIES

(iv) FHEBIIFITESENBL I NREEER:

() FRLHEARABEEERESIEEEZE A
REBEARZEHUREEFTSME &

(i) FEEEERTRAR AL EEARE PR E
FRRAS BT - RIEBEAHAEBEL
B B -

REZEENCBEABNITIERRE LU RHIFRS
EFEMBK °

59



VESON HOLDINGS LIMITED

HEERERA A

ANNUAL REPORT %R 2020

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

AN A 55 3/
1IE3EE)A -’F&%

NOMINATION POLICY FOR DIRECTORSHIP EERBHEE

The Board has approved and adopted a nomination policy for directorship

with effect from 1 January 2019 (the “Nomination Policy”). The

Nomination Policy aims at setting out the processes and criteria for

the nomination of a candidate for directorship in the Company. The

EFSEMAVYEM " BHEFREHRR(RER
w1 ZBEBE2019F1A1BRBAR - ZIRBBUR
EHEFARERNABEFTHREAZEFTRIZE - 12
ZLEESRTHBTERANG B  B2E

Nomination Committee shall consider the following factors in assessing ~ FHEZ :
the suitability of a proposed candidate:
(a) reputation for integrity; () #WEEZE:

accomplishment and professional knowledge and industry
experience which may be relevant to the Company;

commitment in respect of available time;

merit and potential contributions that such candidate could bring to
the Board with reference to the Company’s Board Diversity Policy,
including but not limited to gender, age, cultural and educational
background, ethnicity, professional experience, independence,
skills, knowledge and length of service;

in case of a candidate for an independent non-executive director
of the Company, to assess the independence of such candidate;
and

board succession planning considerations and the long-term needs
of the Company.

The Nomination Committee has the discretion to consider any other

factors and matters and nominate any person, as it considers appropriate.
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BOARD DIVERSITY POLICY

In August 2013, the Board adopted a board diversity policy setting out the
approach to achieve diversity in the Board to ensure that the Board has the
balance of skills, experience and diversity of perspectives appropriate to
the requirements of the Company’s business. The Company recognises the
benefits of diversity in Board members and believes that Board diversity can
be achieved through consideration of a number of factors, including but
not limited to gender, age, cultural background, educational background,
professional experience, skills, knowledge and/or length of service. In
forming the perspective on diversity, the Company will also consider
its own business model and specific needs from time to time. All Board
appointments will be based on merits and each candidate is considered
against objective criteria.

The Nomination Committee will discuss and agree annually measurable
objectives for implementing diversity on the Board and recommend them
to the Board for adoption. The Board will from time to time review
one or more aspects of its diversity and measure progress accordingly.
Having reviewed the Group’s business model and operation needs and
the current composition of the Board, the Nomination Committee has
not set any measurable objective during the Review Period.

DIVIDEND POLICY

The Board has approved and adopted a dividend policy with effect
from 1 January 2019 (the “Dividend Policy”). It is the policy of the
Board, in considering the payment of dividends, to allow shareholders
of the Company to participate in the Company’s profits whilst retaining
adequate reserves for the Group's future growth. The Board shall consider
the following factors before declaring or recommending any dividends:

(@) the Company’s actual and expected financial performance;
(b) the Group’s liquidity position;

() retained earnings and distributable reserves of the Company and
each of the members of the Group;

(d) the level of the Group’s debts to equity ratio, return on equity and
the relevant financial covenants;

(e) any restrictions on payment of dividends that may be imposed by
the Group’s lenders;
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(f)  the Group's expected working capital requirements and future
expansion plans;

(g) general economic conditions and other internal or external factors
that may have an impact on the business or financial performance
and position of the Company; and

(h) any other factors that the Board deem appropriate.

The declaration, recommendation and payment of any dividends are also
subject to compliance with applicable laws, regulations and the articles
of association of the Company. The Board will continually review the
Dividend Policy from time to time and there can be no assurance that
dividends will be paid in any particular amount for any given period.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE COMMITTEE

The Company established a corporate governance committee (the
"“Corporate Governance Committee”) on 27 September 2018 and held 4
meetings during the Review Period. The committee members’ attendance
is shown on page 64. As at 31 December 2020, the Corporate Governance
Committee comprised Mr. Lam Yau Yiu (an INED), Mr. Cheung Wai
Kwok Gary (an INED), Mr. Heng Ja Wei Victor (an INED), Dr. Loke Yu (a
NED) and Mr. Feng Ming Zhu (an executive Director). The chairman of
the Corporate Governance Committee was Mr. Lam Yau Yiu. All of the
committee members have significant experience in the internal control,
corporate governance, legal and/or accounting areas. The committee
is primarily responsible for performing corporate governance functions
and risk management and internal control functions in accordance with
the Corporate Governance Code. With Mr. Feng Ming Zhu, an executive
Director who is responsible for the daily operations of the Group, being
a key member of the committee, Mr. Feng Ming Zhu plays a key role in
experiencing the actual implementation status and/or progress of various
internal control and ongoing monitoring policies, identifying key issues as
and when they arise and interacting with the staff and the operational
systems in order to identify any such issues on a timely basis.
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The main duties of the Corporate Governance Committee are as follows:

(a)

(0

to develop, review and monitor the Company’s policies and practices
on corporate governance and make recommendations to the Board;

to review and monitor the training and continuous professional
development of the Directors and senior management of the
Company;

to review and monitor the Company’s policies and practices on
compliance with legal and regulatory requirements;

to develop, review and monitor the code of conduct and compliance
manual (if any) applicable to employees and the Directors;

to review the Company’s compliance with the Corporate Governance
Code and disclosure in the Company'’s corporate governance report;

to oversee the Company’s risk management and internal control
systems on an ongoing basis (including reviewing the Company’s
risk management and internal control systems, which includes
assessing the effectiveness of the Company’s internal control
system), evaluate and determine the nature and extent of the
risks the Company is willing to take in achieving the Company’s
strategic objectives, and ensure that the Company establishes and
maintains appropriate and effective risk management and internal
control systems; and

to conduct an annual review of the effectiveness of the risk
management and internal control systems, covering all material
controls, including financial, operational and compliance controls.
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During the Review Period, the Corporate Governance Committee carried  REEEHIE - tEEAE 82 BT EXMEA B
out its duties as set out above, including discussing with the Group’s & @ B fEAEBHN NG RGEAEFER RS
Risk Management Department and BDO Financial Services Limited in  EIFIREZIBEREMBR AT °

relation to the internal control systems of the Group.

The following table summarises the attendance of each individual Director T &t EEREZE €K BN OEBHEESE
and committee member in the respective Board, committee and general & - ZE@NREASHIERN -
meetings held during the Review Period.

Meetings attended/held in 2020

R0NF LR/ BHESR
Board Audit ~ Nomination Remuneration Corporate General
Committee ~ Committee ~ Committee ~ Governance Meeting

Committee
EZg® ENZEE REZEE  HMZEe L¥ERzZEg RRAE
Number of meetings held during the REBESEETNeEEa

Review Period 12 4 3 3 4 2
Executive Directors: UrES:
Feng Ming Zhu ERRLT 1212 NATER NATER NATER 44 20
Lian Xiu Qin BEE 12112 NATER NATER NATER NATER 202
Non-executive Directors: FHTES:
Hou Li 3 121 NARER NATER NATER NATER 0
Loke Yu B 22 NATEF N/ATEF N/ATEF 22 1
(appointed with effect from (12020598102 )
1 September 2020)
Ho Chung Tai Raymond &R 6/6 NANER 0 0 0 NATNER
(term of appointment expired on (8202056 R 16BER)
16 June 2020)
Independent non-executive Directors: BIFHTES:
Heng Ja Wei Victor BxR% 1212 4/4 33 33 44 22
Lam Yau Yiu R 1212 44 33 33 44 22
Cheung Wai Kok Gary FAE m 0 " " 0 0
(appointed with effect from 19 May 2020) ~ (32020&5A19FEZ )
Wong Chi Wing TE& 6/6 22 22 22 2 NATER
(term of appointment expired on (8202056 R 16BER)
16 June 2020)
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GOING FORWARD

The Group will keep on reviewing its corporate governance standards on
a regular basis and the Board endeavors to take the necessary actions
to ensure compliance with the provisions of the Corporate Governance
Code introduced by The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the
“Stock Exchange”).

INDEPENDENCE CONFIRMATION

The Company has received from each of the INEDs an annual written
confirmation of his independence, and the Company considers such
Directors to be independent in accordance with each and every guideline
set out in Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE FUNCTIONS

The Corporate Governance Committee is responsible for performing the
corporate governance functions as set out in its terms of reference, the
main duties of which are set out above.

During the Review Period, the Corporate Governance Committee reviewed
the Company’s compliance with the Corporate Governance Code.

COMPLIANCE WITH THE CORPORATE
GOVERNANCE CODE OF THE LISTING RULES

In the opinion of the Directors, the Company has complied with the code
provisions set out in the Corporate Governance Code under Appendix
14 of the Listing Rules throughout the Review Period.
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RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL CONTROL

Risk Management Structure of the Group

The Corporate Governance Committee is responsible for overseeing
the risk management and internal control systems of the Group and
assessing their effectiveness. The risk management and internal control
systems are designed to manage rather than eliminate the risk of failure
to achieve business objectives, and can only provide reasonable and not
absolute assurance against material misstatement or loss.

Risk Management Department

The Group has set up a risk management department which is responsible
for the design and implementation of the risk management system,
assisting the Board in monitoring and supervising the implementation
and effectiveness of the risk management framework and process and
reviewing the measures on dealing with risks. The risk management
department performs an internal audit function and is responsible for
performing review of the adequacy and effectiveness of the internal
control systems of the Group.

The Corporate Governance Committee reports to the Board after review
of the effectiveness of the Group’s risk management and internal control
system. Upon consideration of the work and results of review of the
Corporate Governance Committee, the Board forms its view on the
effectiveness of the risk management and internal control systems.
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The Board ensures that a review of the risk management and internal
control systems of the Group is conducted annually in respect of the
relevant financial year.

Appointment of BDO Financial Services Limited as
Internal Control Consultant

During the Review Period, the Company engaged BDO Financial Services
Limited (“Internal Control Consultant”) as its internal control consultant
to conduct a review of the internal control systems and procedures of
the Group and to make recommendations accordingly (“Internal Control
Review").

The scope of work of the Internal Control Consultant included an
independent assessment of the internal control systems of the major
subsidiaries of the Group. During the Review Period, the Internal Control
Consultant performed reviews on the internal control systems of the
major subsidiaries of the Group which involved collecting relevant
information, conducting interviews and conducting walkthrough tests.

The Internal Control Review has been completed. Having reviewed the
findings and results of the report on the Internal Control Review prepared
by the Internal Control Consultant, and having taken into consideration
the improvements and/or remedial measures implemented in accordance
with the Internal Control Consultant’s recommendations, the Board is of
the view that the Company has put in place adequate internal control
system and financial reporting procedures to meet its obligations under
the Listing Rules. In view of the above, the Board considers that a review
of the effectiveness of the risk management and internal control systems
was conducted during the Review Period and the risk management and
internal control systems of the Group are effective and adequate.
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Major Risks and Uncertainties of the Group FEEXERBRIEEY

The Group is exposed to different risks and uncertainties. Some of AEEEBRTRRBRETHETE AEEELTE

the Group’s major risks are set out below and appropriate mitigation

measures have been devised to manage such risks.

A)

68

OPERATIONAL, STRATEGIC AND FINANCIAL RISKS

The smart electronic products industry advances at a tremendous

R EFnTI EREUE B ER R A E IR %S R

o

A)

AL B EFE R
BHRETFTERTEBRR—HTE  ARFFZE

pace. Lithium-ion battery module, being the Company’s main EnPHFENRALEANSETR . F2
product, is mostly used in smartphones, laptops, tablets and ARFREMEAFHEME - HEEERET

wearable devices. The sales of consumer smart electronics may
change rapidly in response to consumer demand or taste. As
a supplier of lithium-ion battery modules for a number of PRC
smartphone brands, the drastic fluctuation in customers’ sales of
smartphones will have significant effect on the sales of the Group’s
lithium-ion battery modules.

Actions taken by the Group to address these issues include the
following:

(i) investment of resources in development of new products and
application of lithium-ion battery in new industries and new
fields in response to changes in market demands;

(i)  diversification of product portfolios in order to reduce the
impact of a reduction in sales of individual products on the
Group's overall business; and

(iii) proactive recruitment and training of skilled and experienced
technicians to enhance the Group’s R&D capability.
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For lithium-ion battery products, great importance is attached to
their quality and safety. The performance and safety of lithium-
ion battery is very sensitive to ambient environment. The safety of
lithium-ion battery lies in effective use of external circuit design
to ensure battery’s operation is normal and safe. However, the
efficiency and reliability of these safety devices are closely connected
with good and consistent manufacturing quality. Various different
circumstances or causes may also lead to short circuit and other
risks.

Actions taken by the Group to address these issues include the
following:

(i)  inthe pursuit of higher efficiency and endurance for batteries,
the Group conducted more rigorous review of the safety of
batteries to ensure that all the batteries delivered by the Group
meet high safety standards;

(i) the Group ensures it purchases sufficient product liability
insurance for protection. Product liability insurance covers the
liability arising from a defective product that causes personal
injury, property damage or other losses; and

(iii) the raw materials and other auxiliary materials used for the
Company’s products shall be certified by authorities before
being used. In the process of production, the Company’s
quality control department shall conduct inspection at each
stage throughout the whole production process to ensure the
quality of the Company’s product and safeguard the interests
of consumers with a quality monitoring system.

In 2020, more than 90% of the Group’'s turnover was derived
from its ODM business. Over 60% of the sales of its ODM business
was to three PRC smartphone brand manufacturers. If the Group
loses one of these top customers, it may have adverse effects on
the operation and financial results of the Group’s ODM business.
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Actions taken by the Group to address these issues include the REEEFKEUA T B MR ZE M
following:
() look for more potential customers to reduce its dependence () SHEEZBERFP BROHAKEFMKRE
on top customers; E
(i)  strengthen after-sales services for customers, pay regular visits (i) MBBEEFHMEEREIE THEFEFL
to customers and conduct customer satisfaction survey to METEPHEERES  THRAERLR
continuously improve the quality of products and services, fREEE  ZEASERTENEF AR
consolidate the Group’s competitiveness in the industry and ENMEFPEHE &

increase customer loyalty; and

(iii) develop more new products to meet customers’ needs. (i) HABEZFESUREEPHEK -

The vast majority of the Group’s sales revenue is from operating AEBHERTBRIDKREPBRHMNLES

units in the PRC. Adverse events in the PRC’s operation and political A7 o MBIE RBUAIBIER AN TFS ] b

environment may result in material adverse effects on the Group’s ERAEENES BRI EESEEST

business, financial position and operation results. BEARTRFE -

Actions taken by the Group to address these issues include the AEBCHBUA T EEERZERE -

following:

(i) development of overseas markets to increase revenue from () BB INTIB LG INEINER N - &
overseas operations; and

(i) continuous monitoring of PRC's operations and political (i) HEERPENEERBUARE @ FEH A
environment, anticipation of possible problems, and establish BEHIIR A HIRE - R EMER T ET R L E 2
quick strategic response to changing business environment. BIRIBEL R EY -

Overdue payments by customers granted with credit by the Group ERTAEEEERNEPUBHBAR  Be

will increase the financial risk to the Group and affect the Group’s BNAEEMNSREAR  TeTZEREERE

financial performance and operating cash flow. BREARKEHRESRE °
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Actions taken by the Group to address these issues include the
following:

(i)  regular review of the amount of accounts receivable from key
customers to control it at an appropriate level; and

(i) implementation of strict internal control measures and increase
collection efforts for overdue accounts receivable.

The main raw material for lithium-ion battery modules (being the
Group’s main product) is lithium-ion bare battery cell. The Group
purchases lithium-ion bare battery cells from many well-known
international manufacturers. In recent years, lithium-ion bare battery
cell has been widely used in smartphones, laptops, tablets, wearable
devices, power tools, electric bicycles, energy storage and other
fields. Any increase in the price or shortage of supply of lithium-ion
bare battery cells will have a material impact on the profitability
and production costs of the Group.

Actions taken by the Group to address these issues include the
following:

(i) regular research on and evaluation of suppliers to ensure
stable supply of raw materials; and

(i)  through automation upgrade of production lines, the Group
solves the problem with human resources and effectively
controls production costs, which have positive effects on
improvement of the Group’s profitability and control of
production costs.

ACCIDENT RISKS

Major accidents including fires, natural disasters or serious infectious
diseases will affect the Group's assets and operations, thus affecting
the Group's operational capacity and reducing profitability.
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Actions taken by the Group to address these issues include the
following:

(i)  ensure comprehensive insurance coverage over the Group’s
properties and business is purchased;

(i) provision of regular education and training sessions on safety

for all staff to strengthen staff’s awareness of production

safety;

(iii) training on fire safety, fire emergency evacuation and fire drill

at workplace are organised at least twice a year to ensure staff

have a solid understanding of the significance and necessity of

production safety and improve their own awareness of safety

protection; and

(iv) organise physical examination for the benefit of its staff to

help in assessing possible occupational and serious infectious

diseases.

INDUSTRY RISKS

The possible slowdown of the Chinese economy in the near future,
the possible drop in global shipment of smartphones and the possible
substantial decrease in consumers’ demands for replacement of
smartphones will have material adverse effects on the Group’s
business, financial position and operation results.

Actions taken by the Group to address these issues include the
following:

(i)  proactively pay attention to the application of lithium-ion
batteries in new industries and new fields, grasp opportunities
for access to the market and adjust the development strategy
in response to changes in the market; and

(i) proactively build a platform for communication with consumers,

pay close attention to consumers’ demands, timely listen to

consumers’ opinions, and provide good products and after-
sales services to increase customer loyalty.

(@

REBCRIUA THEMEARRZ ZMRE

(i) MERECATEEVEREBBEEZ@EMHRK
BIRIE

(i) FTHAZBEIRHZ2HERFIR
BREIREEERH

(i) BEZIEBMOBHZE2HEREI
SE B FE =B AR N BRI MR AR - TR
BTRARBBIECEEEENRYBE
- iREEFNLEHEER &

(v) HHEBTHEBEERD - b EBERm k&
BEPAFENELS  UAREBRINRER
7£\o

TR

BB D AR R AT RE AR - B REF A

B EX BRI T - BHBE U S FHL

EMBRAIGERBERD - EHARENE

485

% WM REEREETEATNEE

REBERIUA MEIBRRRZ FRRE

() WEREBHTEREN(TERIALY
FER - SETTIS B - AR MY
LEL AP

RERRIEEBEBROTL RO
HEEOHBL  REBISEENER -
DARIR A BLAT V@ R R RS - 1R

F R -

(ii)



'"VESON HOLDINGS LIMITED

HEERBRLE

ANNUAL REPORT %R 2020

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

INSIDE INFORMATION

With respect to procedures and internal controls for the handling and
dissemination of inside information, the Company:

o is aware of its obligations under the Securities and Futures Ordinance
and the Listing Rules;

o conducts its affairs in strict compliance with the relevant guidelines
and policies relating to inside information issued by the Securities
and Futures Commission and the Stock Exchange from time to
time;

o has implemented procedures for responding to external enquiries
about the Group’s affairs; and

o has implemented policy regarding prohibition on the unauthorised
use of confidential or inside information.

MODEL CODE FOR SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS
BY DIRECTORS OF LISTED ISSUERS

The Company has adopted the Model Code for Securities Transactions by
Directors of Listed Issuers as set out in Appendix 10 of the Listing Rules
(the “Model Code"). Having made specific enquiries of all Directors, the
Company confirmed that all Directors have complied with the required
standard as set out in the Model Code for the financial year ended 31
December 2020.

AUDITOR’S REMUNERATION

The Audit Committee is responsible for considering the appointment of
the external auditor and reviewing any non-audit functions performed by
the external auditor, including whether such non-audit functions could
lead to any potential material adverse effect on the Company. During
the Review Period, the Group paid approximately RMB1,600,600 to its
external auditors, namely BDO Limited, and approximately RMB375,700
to its PRC auditor for their audit services. The Group paid approximately
RMB266,700 and approximately RMB177,800 to BDO Limited for their
non-audit services in respect of the review of the interim financial
information of the Group for the six months ended 30 June 2020 and
procedures relating to the statement of sufficiency of working capital of
the Group in relation to the construction of staff dormitory and related
facilities as disclosed in the circular of the Company dated 24 April
2020 respectively. The Group also paid approximately RMB300,500 to
an affiliated firm of BDO Limited for the provision of internal control
post implementation consultancy services to the Group.
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DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITIES FOR ACCOUNTS

The Directors acknowledge their responsibility for preparing the
consolidated financial statements of the Group. The Directors’
responsibilities for the accounts and the reporting responsibilities of
the external auditors are set out on pages 82 to 85 of this annual report.

COMPANY SECRETARY

The company secretary of the Company is Mr. Yeung Mun Tai (FCCA,
CPA). Mr. Yeung took no less than 15 hours of relevant professional
training during the Review Period.

SHAREHOLDER AND INVESTOR RELATIONS
COMMUNICATION STRATEGIES

The Board established a Shareholders’ communication policy setting
out the principles of the Company in relation to its communication
with the Shareholders, with the objective of ensuring the Shareholders
are provided with access to information about the Company in order
to enable Shareholders to assess the Company’s overall performance,
exercise their rights in an informed manner and engage actively with
the Company.

Information would be communicated to Shareholders mainly through
the Company’s corporate communications including interim and annual
reports, annual general meetings and other general meetings that
may be convened, as well as by making available all the disclosures
submitted to the Stock Exchange, its corporate communications and
other corporate publications on the Company’s website. Shareholders
may direct enquiries about their shareholdings to the Company’s Share
Registrars. To the extent the requisite information of the Company is
publicly available, Shareholders and the investment community may at
any time make enquiry in respect of the Company in writing at our
head office in Hong Kong by post, facsimile or email via the address,
facsimile number or email address provided on the Company’s website.
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SHAREHOLDERS’ RIGHTS

Pursuant to the articles of association of the Company, any one or more
Shareholders holding on the date of deposit of the requisition not less
than one-tenth of the paid up capital of the Company carrying the right
of voting at general meetings of the Company shall at all times have
the right, by written requisition to the Board or the Company Secretary
at our head office in Hong Kong by post, facsimile or email via the
address, facsimile number or email address provided on the Company’s
website, to require an extraordinary general meeting to be called by the
Board for the transaction of any business specified in such requisition.
The written requisition may also be deposited at the Company’s head
office in Hong Kong at Room 1017, 10/F Leighton Centre, 77 Leighton
Road, Causeway Bay, Hong Kong, for the attention of the Board or the
Company Secretary. If within 21 days of such deposit of the written
requisition, the Board fails to proceed to convene such meeting, the
requisitionist(s) may do so in the same manner, and all reasonable
expenses incurred by the requisitionist(s) as a result of the failure of
the Board shall be reimbursed to the requisitionist(s) by the Company.

CONSTITUTIONAL DOCUMENTS

There was no change to the constitutional documents of the Company
during the year ended 31 December 2020.

STAKEHOLDERS

The continuing development and present scale of the Group were
benefited from the trust and support of the stakeholders. We have
been dedicating efforts not only to maximise the present value of the
Group but also to maximise the interest and return for all parties so
as to achieve harmonious development and collaboration with mutual
benefits in the long run.
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INVESTORS

The Group has always paid much attention to communication and
interaction with investors, and continues to improve communication
channels with shareholders and investors, so as to enhance
governance transparency. The Group’s management regularly meets
with investors, and proactively announces the latest information
and business development plans.

CONSUMERS
PRODUCT SAFETY

The Group has placed emphasis on the safety of products, especially
on mobile phone batteries, and has implemented strict quality control
such as the ISO standards so as to meet safety requirements. With
our product testing centres, we administer stages of tests, including
crash, high-temperature, damp and long period recharging, on
our battery products. We also invest resources in product R&D to
develop more reliable products. The battery products of the Group
have also passed the stringent requirements on quality control and
safety set by the relevant government authorities.

EMPLOYEES
OCCUPATIONAL SAFETY

The Group has focused on factory production safety, strived to
enhance employees’ safety knowledge and training, and increased
factory fire prevention facilities and safety patrols, so as to ensure
unobstructed fire passages and the availability of water in case of
fire. In addition, the Group has regularly held fire drills and increased
investments in fire prevention facilities in factories, so as to ensure
the sufficiency of fire prevention equipment and facilities.

The Group has proactively taken and implemented various measures,
including:

(i) increase factory fire prevention facilities and safety patrols
(once a week), resolve problems in a timely manner and ensure
unobstructed fire passages and the availability of water in case
of fire;

(i) hold regular safety seminar and training for employees,
especially for new staff, striving to enhance employees’ hazard
prevention and safety awareness;

(iii) conduct at least two large scale fire drills every year and
conduct general safety checks on such days;
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(iv) enhance factory management and divide it into safety
responsibility districts, appoint safety examiners at the
workshops with routine patrols, and eliminate potential
problems in a timely manner; and

(v) improve and formulate storage, safe keeping, transportation
and processing procedures for flammables, and provide
training for staff frequently in contact with such flammables.

ESTABLISHMENT OF OWN SKILL TRAINING INSTITUTE

Apart from occupational safety, the Group has also placed emphasis
on providing on-the-job training for its staff. The Group started
a comprehensive talent training programme, which is tied to
the establishment of its own skill training institute. Talents are
cultivated at the skill training institute and available in the pipeline
to resolve the labour shortage issue faced by industry participants.
After a period of training, the Group will allocate labour resources
directly to various departments, which will shorten the time for
staff replacement and reduce labour cost. Automated production
will also be implemented at different phases. Moreover, in the
training process, participating staff can understand the practical
operation issues arising from the course of production, which
will effectively enhance production efficiencies and qualities. The
Group invites talents from society and selects personnel with the
required management and technical expertise through professional
and rigorous training processes. At the same time, this also brings
to society a new generation of trained talents in fulfillment of the
Company's social responsibilities.
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PROTECTION OF EMPLOYEES’ LEGAL RIGHTS

The Group promotes and undertakes a fair and non-discriminative
employment policy. Employees are employed on contract basis and
employment contracts are signed based on principles of fairness and
on employees’ own volition, with clear provisions on contractual
terms such as scope of work, remuneration, social insurance and
working hours, among others. The legal rights and obligations of
the employer and employee are clearly defined. We also strictly
comply with the relevant laws and regulations in relation to national
social insurance to set up insurance scheme for basic pension,
medical, work-related injuries, unemployment and maternity for
employees and cover the various insurance expenses. Meanwhile, to
further protect the interests of individual employees, the Company
has taken out a commercial accident insurance scheme for all
employees. The Group has complied with the Labor Contract Law
of the PRC since 1 January 2008 and established a labor union.
We hold an employees’ meeting every two weeks, in support of
the construction and development of a harmonious and stable
employee and employer relationship.

COMMUNITY
ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION

As a responsible enterprise, the Group has always put emphasis
on supporting environmental protection. We strictly control the
production procedures and reduce waste generation. Although
small amounts of waste are generated during the packaging
process, some of them are delivered to qualified recycling plants
for treatment.

For the environmental, social and governance report of the Group,
please refer to the “Environmental, Social and Governance Report”
to be published.
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www.bdo.com.hk

T35 : +852 2218 8288
S5 : +852 2815 2239

www.bdo.com.hk

TO THE SHAREHOLDERS OF VESON HOLDINGS LIMITED
(Formerly known as SCUD Group Limited)
(incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)

OPINION

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of Veson
Holdings Limited (formerly known as SCUD Group Limited) (the
“Company”) and its subsidiaries (together the “Group”) set out on
pages 86 to 202, which comprise the consolidated statement of
financial position as at 31 December 2020, and the consolidated
statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income, the
consolidated statement of changes in equity and the consolidated
statement of cash flows for the year then ended, and notes to the
consolidated financial statements, including a summary of significant
accounting policies.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and
fair view of the consolidated financial position of the Company as at
31 December 2020, and of its consolidated financial performance and
its consolidated cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with
International Financial Reporting Standards and have been properly
prepared in compliance with the disclosure requirements of the Hong
Kong Companies Ordinance.

BASIS FOR OPINION

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards on
Auditing (“HKSAs") issued by the HKICPA. Our responsibilities under
those standards are further described in the “Auditor’s Responsibilities
for the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements” section of
our report. We are independent of the Group in accordance with the
HKICPA's “Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants” (the “Code”),
and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance
with the Code. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained
is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

Tel : +852 2218 8288
Fax: +852 2815 2239
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KEY AUDIT MATTER

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional
judgement, were of most significance in our audit of the consolidated
financial statements of the current period. These matters were
addressed in the context of our audit of the consolidated financial
statements as a whole, and in forming our opinion thereon, we do
not provide a separate opinion on these matters.

1. Impairment assessment of trade and notes receivables
(Refer to notes 4(g), 5(iii) and 21 to the consolidated
financial statements)

As at 31 December 2020, the Group had trade and notes receivables
with net carrying amount of approximately RMB1,977 million and a
net impairment loss of approximately RMB22 million was recognised
for the year ended 31 December 2020.

The directors of the Company have performed an impairment
assessment on the trade and notes receivables in accordance with
the Group’s accounting policies which required the exercise of
significant management judgement in considering factors such as the
credit history including default or delay in payments, ageing analysis,
settlement records during the year and subsequent settlements after
the year end.

Our response

Our key procedures in relation to the directors’ impairment assessment
included:

o Understanding the Group’s relationship and transaction history
with the customers;

e  Reviewing the ageing analysis of the trade and notes receivables;

o Reviewing payment patterns during the year and amount
of subsequent settlements after the year end made by the
customers;

o Assessing the reasonableness of the Group’s estimation of
recoverability of trade and notes receivables with reference to
factors considered by the directors.

e Assessing the appropriateness of the expected credit loss
provisioning methodology, examining the key data inputs on
a sample basis to assess their accuracy and completeness, and
challenging the reasonableness of the key assumptions, including
both historical and forward-looking information, used to
determine the expected credit losses.
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2. Impairment assessment of non-financial assets (Refer
to notes 4(o) and 5(iv) to the consolidated financial
statements)

As at 31 December 2020, the Group had property, plant and
equipment, investment properties, right-of-use assets and intangible
assets, with carrying amount of approximately RMB722 million,
RMB56 million, RMB38 million and RMB3 million respectively. As the
Group incurred a loss for the year, this has increased the risk that
the carrying amounts of these assets may be impaired. The directors
of the Company have performed an impairment assessment on the
cash-generating units in which these assets belonged to in accordance
with the Group’s accounting policies and concluded that, there was
no impairment loss for the year ended 31 December 2020.

Estimation of the recoverable amounts of the cash-generating units
required the exercise of significant management judgement.

Our response

Our key procedures in relation to the directors’ impairment assessment
included:

o Assessing the appropriateness of methodology used for assessing
the recoverable amounts; and

e  Assessing the reasonableness of the underlying key assumptions
used.
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OTHER INFORMATION
REPORT

The directors of the Company are responsible for the other

IN THE ANNUAL

information. The other information comprises the information
included in the Company’s annual report, but does not include the
consolidated financial statements and our auditor’s report thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not cover
the other information and we do not express any form of assurance
conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial statements,
our responsibility is to read the other information and, in doing so,
consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with
the consolidated financial statements or our knowledge obtained in
the audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If, based
on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material
misstatement of this other information, we are required to report that
fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation of
these consolidated financial statements that give true and fair view in
accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards and the
disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, and
for such internal control as the directors determine is necessary to
enable the preparation of consolidated financial statements that are
free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the directors are
responsible for assessing the Group’s ability to continue as a going
concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern
and using the going concern basis of accounting unless the directors
either intend to liquidate the Group or to cease operations, or have
no realistic alternative but to do so.

The directors are also responsible for overseeing the Group’s financial

reporting process. The Audit Committee assists the directors in
discharging their responsibility in this regard.
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AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE
AUDIT OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the
consolidated financial statements as a whole are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s
report that includes our opinion. This report is made solely to you, as
a body, in accordance with the terms of our engagement, and for no
other purpose. We do not assume responsibility towards or accept
liability to any other person for the contents of this report.

Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a
guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with HKSAs will
always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements
can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if,
individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to
influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these
consolidated financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we exercise
professional judgment and maintain professional skepticism
throughout the audit. We also:

o identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the
consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud or error,
design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks,
and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate
to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a
material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for
one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery,
intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of
internal control.

e  obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit
in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the
circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion
on the effectiveness of the Group’s internal control.

o evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the
reasonableness of accounting estimates and related disclosures
made by the directors.
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conclude on the appropriateness of the directors’ use of the
going concern basis of accounting and, based on the audit
evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related
to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the
Group's ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude
that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw
attention in our auditor’s report to the related disclosures in
the consolidated financial statements or, if such disclosures are
inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based
on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s
report. However, future events or conditions may cause the
Group to cease to continue as a going concern.

evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the
consolidated financial statements, including the disclosures, and
whether the consolidated financial statements represent the
underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair
presentation.

obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the
financial information of the entities or business activities within
the Group to express an opinion on the consolidated financial
statements. We are responsible for the direction, supervision and
performance of the group audit. We remain solely responsible
for our audit opinion.

We communicate with the Audit Committee regarding, among other

matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and significant

audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control

that we identify during our audit.

We also provide the Audit Committee with a statement that we have

complied with relevant ethical requirements regarding independence,

and to communicate with them all relationships and other matters

that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and

where applicable, related safeguards.
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From the matters communicated with the directors, we determine
those matters that were of most significance in the audit of the
consolidated financial statements of the current period and are
therefore the key audit matters. We describe these matters in our
auditor’s report unless law or regulation precludes public disclosure
about the matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances, we
determine that a matter should not be communicated in our report
because the adverse consequences of doing so would reasonably
be expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of such
communication.

BDO Limited

Certified Public Accountants
Tsui Ka Che, Norman
Practising Certificate no. PO5057

Hong Kong, 31 March 2021
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Hfth 2w W am &

For the year ended 31 December 2020 # %2020 12431 H 1L F/Z

2020 2019
Notes RMB’000 RMB’000
BiaE ARBT T ARBTT
Turnover S 6 6,216,571 7,395,203
Cost of sales SHEBA (5.830,625) (6,864,745)
Gross profit EF 385,946 530,458
Other revenue Hob e 7 46,033 97,956
Selling and distribution expenses HERSHEBEY (99,399) (109,705)
Administrative expenses TR (294,025) (308,251)
Other operating expenses H bR 5 9 (37.534) (105,957)
Finance costs BhE A A 12 (40,924) (48,274)
(Loss)/profit before income tax BRETISFLAI(E51R), Al 8 (39,903) 56,227
Income tax expense Frisfim s 13 (17,579) (7,531)
(Loss)/profit for the year REFE(ER),w Al (57,482) 48,696
Other comprehensive income for the AFEHEZEMBEKS !
year, net of tax:
ltem that may be reclassified subsequently 2B S FEETEREHN
to profit or loss HH
— Exchange differences on translating —HREBINETE 2 EH ZFE
foreign operations 7,497 (1,822)
Other comprehensive income for the year, ZAREEF % (2K
net of tax 7,497 (1,822)
Total comprehensive income for the AEEZHENFALE
year (49,985) 46,874
(Loss)/profit for the year attributable to: T ATRIEAEE(EIE),HF:
Owners of the Company ZIN/NETEZ 2= DN (52,683) 52,543
Non-controlling interests PR (4,799) (3,847)
(57,482) 48,696
Total comprehensive income attributable to: 35I| A L fE(E R E U5 25T -
Owners of the Company ZIN/NGIE 2SN (44,905) 50,304
Non-controlling interests FEERE R (5,080) (3,430)
(49,985) 46,874
(Losses)/earnings per share % (E18),&F
— Basic and diluted (RMB cents) —EXREE(ARES) 15 (4.83) 4.82
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At 31 December 2020 202012 H31H

2020 2019
Notes RMB’000 RMB’000
MosE AR¥TR AREEFTT
Non-current assets EREBEE
Property, plant and equipment ME -« WE K& 16 722,268 384,502
Investment properties HEYF 17 56,068 61,141
Right-of-use assets EREEE 18 38,089 18,227
Intangible assets I EE 19 3,268 2,461
Prepayments, deposits and other receivables a8 7B « 124 K H b fE Ik 22 40,959 28,655
Deferred tax assets FEREFTEE 30 128,451 140,995
Total non-current assets SEmEN B EARTE 989,103 635,981
Current assets REEE
Inventories FE 20 443,866 498,416
Trade and notes receivables FEWE 57018 & eI E R 21 1,976,887 2,329,774
Prepayments, deposits and other receivables 8 FI8 - & & & E A EULER 22 169,019 171,391
Amounts due from related parties FEURREE A T 30IR 23 87,917 152,259
Current tax recoverable A] U Bl BNHARS 18 15,077 11,728
Pledged bank deposits EEPRITIFRK 24 750,810 977,454
Bank balances and cash RITAEER IR 25 211,294 406,197
Total current assets MENEELRRE 3,654,870 4,547,219
Current liabilities REBERE
Trade and notes payables BB SR IE K BN =R 26 2,481,690 3,346,741
Other payables, contract liabilities and HibERFIE - SHEER
accrued charges e E 27 187,071 142,536
Lease liabilities — current portion HEBE-RBIH 18 7,870 4,133
Bank loans — current portion RITER - RBIH 28 698,175 582,689
Other loans — current portion EER—mEEsn 28 - 8,789
Amounts due to directors Rt ESEIE 29 36 409
Amounts due to related parties JEftREB A £ Z0E 23 1,997 11,648
Total current liabilities mERELARE 3,376,839 4,096,945
Net current assets REEETFE 278,031 450,274
Total assets less current liabilities EEABERARBERS 1,267,134 1,086,255
Non-current liabilities kFRBEE
Lease liabilities — non-current portion HEBE-EREFBY 18 23,466 5,765
Bank loans — non-current portion HRITER—IEMEE 28 213,767 -
Other loans — non-current portion HEihEX—FEREBD 28 - 604
Deferred tax liabilities RELEFIEAE 30 5,360 5,360
Total non-current liabilities BB EARE 242,593 11,729
Net assets BEE 1,024,541 1,074,526
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At 31 December 2020 202012 H31H

2020 2019
Notes RMB’000 RMB’000
B & AR®T T ARBTT
Capital and reserves EXE #E
Share capital i 31 107,590 107,590
Reserves i 906,233 951,138
Equity attributable to owners AAREE ANELER
of the Company 1,013,823 1,058,728
Non-controlling interests IR ER 33 10,718 15,798
Total equity Mg 1,024,541 1,074,526
,.q/ ¥
J ,
- ﬁ
FENG MING ZHU LIAN XIU QIN
BT HERE
DIRECTOR DIRECTOR
EE Ea
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For the year ended 31 December 2020 # %2020 12431 H 1 F/Z

Retained  Attributable

Statutory  Enterprise profits/  to owners Non-
Share Share  Capital ~ reserve expansion Translation (Accumulated of the Controlling Total
capital  premium  reserve fund fund  reserve losses) ~ Company  Interests equity
LN
v iz REEHN/  #AA

Bx  B#uE A48  0Re  RREc  ERER (RMER)  REND FERRE A4
RVBOO  AMBOOD  RMBOOO  RMB'O0O  RMBOOO  RVBOOD  RVB00D  RMBOOD  RMBO0  RMBOD

ARBTTL ARRTL ARETR ARETT ARMTR ARBTL ARETR ARETRT ARETR ARETR

Balance at 31 December 2018 R2018%12A31A

originally presented BREST|RER 10759 619288 186,215 125952 63,562 (72,569) (18602) 1,011,436 14,001 1,025437
Initil application of IFRS 16 BN ERERA RS ERR 6% = = = = = = (3012 (3012 (13 (3
Restated balance at 1 January 2019 201951 A1 B 7 &8 107590 619,288 186,215 125,95 63,562 (72,569) (21,614) 1,008,424 13,688 1,022,112
Profit{loss) for the year TEEET/ (BE) - - - - - - 52,543 52,543 (3847  48,6%
Exchange differences on translating foreign €50 £5 7 Ex £8

operations - - - - - (2,239) - (2,239 47 (1822)
Total comprehensive income FERRENAEE

for the year - - - - - (2.239) 52,543 50,304 (3.430) 46,874

Capital Contribution to a subsidiary by non- SEE R R MM B AT 4
controlling interest - - - - - - - - 5,540 5,540

=
=
=

1

1

1

Appropriations 8,305 4153 (12.458) = = =

Balance at 31 December 2019 and 2019128318 R

at 1 January 2020 200F1F18HER 10759 619288 186,215 134,257 67715 (74,808) 18471 1,058,728 15,798 1,074,526
Loss for the year FEEER = = = = = - (268) (2683 (4799 (5748))
Exchange differences on translating foreign 8551575 7B 258

operations - - - - - 1,778 - 17718 (281) 7,497
Total comprehensive income REREANGEE

for the year - - - - - 1718 (52,683) (44,905) (5,080)  (49,985)
Appropriations b - - - 1,556 - - (1,556) - - -
At 31 December 2020 20206128318 107590 619288 186215 135813 67,715 (67,030)  (35768)  1,013.823 10,718 1,024,541
Notes: PiaE
Share premium Bt E

%5 % B AR BT E (MR ETHR ) B A

BITRMEBZHE  WEFARRAZKRHRE
%E%JEJUFHH%’JMETEEM XSS R REE3MER
=

The share premium account represents the excess of the issue price
net of any issuance expenses over the par value of the shares issued
and has been credited to the share premium account of the Company.
The application of the share premium account is governed by Section
34 under the Companies Law of the Cayman Islands.
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GAMREBR

For the year ended 31 December 2020 # 220204 12 431 H 1FF/Z

Capital reserve

The capital reserve of the Group represents the difference between
the nominal amount of the shares issued by the Company and the
aggregate amount of the paid-in capital of subsidiaries acquired plus
the consideration received by the Company pursuant to the Group
Reorganisation in preparation of the listing of the Company’s shares.

Statutory reserve fund and enterprise expansion fund

Pursuant to relevant laws and regulations in the People’s Republic of
China (the “PRC") applicable to foreign investment enterprises and
the Articles of Association of the PRC subsidiaries of the Company,
these PRC subsidiaries are required to maintain two statutory reserves,
namely a statutory reserve fund and an enterprise expansion fund
which are non-distributable.

Scud (Fujian) Electronics Co., Ltd. (“Scud Electronics”), Scud Battery
Co., Ltd. (“Scud Battery”), Shenzhen Hongde Battery Co., Ltd.
("Shenzhen Hongde”), Dongguan Hongde Battery Co., Ltd. (“Dongguan
Hongde”), Scud Intelligent Technology Co., Ltd. (“Scud Intelligent
Technology”) (together the “PRC Subsidiaries”) are required to
transfer 10% of their respective profit after income tax as reported in
the PRC statutory financial statements to the statutory reserve fund
until the balance reaches 50% of their respective registered capital.
Pursuant to the Articles of Association of the PRC Subsidiaries, they
are also required to make appropriation from their respective profit
after income tax as reported in the PRC statutory financial statements
to the enterprise expansion fund at rates determined by their
respective boards of directors.

The statutory reserve fund may be used to make up prior year losses
incurred and, with the approval from the relevant government
authorities, to increase capital for expansion of production of the PRC
Subsidiaries. The enterprises expansion fund, subject to the approval
by the relevant government authorities, may also be used to increase
capital of the PRC Subsidiaries.

Translation reserve

Gain/loss arising on translating the net assets of foreign operations
into presentation currency.

Retained profits/(accumulated losses)

No dividend is proposed for the year ended 31 December 2020
and 2019. As at 31 December 2020, the balance of accumulated
losses of the Group was RMB35,768,000 (2019: retained earnings of
RMB18,471,000).
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For the year ended 31 December 2020 # %2020 12431 H 1 F/Z

2020 2019
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR%T T ARBT T
Cash flows from operating activities RETEBHRERE
(Loss)/profit before income tax B ErS 8 AT (E518) 3% A (39,903) 56,227
Adjustments for: FHEIER :
Interest income FLE WA (10,409) (11,182)
Finance costs A AN 40,924 48,274
Amortisation of intangible assets B 1,693 1,100
Depreciation of property, plant and ME - MENRETE
equipment 66,937 51,635
Loss/(gain) on disposal of property, plant  HE&EWE - WEMRHERE (U
and equipment 27 (3,232)
Write-off of property, plant and M - BB KA
equipment 1,529 3,917
Depreciation of investment properties KEERE 5,073 5,047
Depreciation of right-of-use assets EREEENE 6,408 20,854
Impairment loss recognised on trade and  FLFEUE 5 7018 K B 2 15 7ERR
notes receivables RIEEE 27,705 56,576
Impairment loss recognised on IENFIE - 1S R H fth B RIERER
prepayments, deposits and other ZRIEEE
receivables 4,076 20,641
Reversal of impairment loss on trade and B RER Z FEUNE 3018 Kk B E B RE
notes receivables previously recognised EsE B[O (5,338) (4,013)
Reversal of impairment loss on BARRZENRIE « e RHAEYZIR
prepayments, deposits and other VERI=Y =t
receivables previously recognised (2,567) (23,778)
Reversal of write-down of inventories FEMURE L (8,276) -
Write-off of inventories T &M 3,929 21,025
Operating profit before changes in EEESE BRI E R
working capital 91,808 243,091
Decrease in inventories FERED 58,897 77,102
Decrease/(increase) in trade and notes FEUE Sk IB R Z R A, (38 0)
receivables 333,000 (215,627)
(Increase)/decrease in prepayments, TERRIE « S R H AR
deposits and other receivables (), pi (11,441) 89,033
Decrease in amounts due from related JiE s 58 A =B R >
parties 64,342 131,550
(Decrease)/increase in trade and notes e E S5 IE R EMNZECRA) 1N
payables (865,051) 44,811
Increase/(decrease) in other payables, EMRERRIE - BB ENRESERE N,
contract liabilities and accrued charges OB ) 44,535 (6,309)
Cash (used in)/generated from EE(TA) EERE
operations (283,910) 363,651
Interest paid ERFLE (56,606) (48,274)
Income tax paid BT PTSEL (4,613) (4,613)
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For the year ended 31 December 2020 # %2020 12431 H 1L F/Z

2020 2019
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBT ARETT
Net cash (used in)/generated from SEEE(FrA),  FEEXERESFE
operating activities (345,129) 310,764
Investing activities KREEE
Interest received 2B 10,409 11,182
Capital contribution to a subsidiary by IR EERNB AR ZEE
non-controlling interests - 5,540
Decrease in pledged deposits BEHEBIFFOR 226,644 557
Proceeds from disposal of property, plant HEME - BE K&
and equipment FT1S 3018 674 13,666
Payments to acquire property, plant and BEME  BEMRERE
equipment (395,807) (243,419)
Payments to acquire intangible assets BEEPEENRIE (2,500) (1,656)
Net cash used in investing activities RETEFMARSTE (160,580) (214,130)
Financing activities R EE
Bank loans raised E8RITER 1,493,660 1,055,882
Repayment of principal portion of leases BEEEAREH S (6,808) (24,273)
Repayment of bank loans BERBITER (1,161,282) (854,966)
Repayment of other loans EE A E R (9,393) (10,038)
(Decrease)/increase in amounts due to FENEERECRD), EM
directors (373) 32
Decrease in amounts due to related parties &/ 2838 A +20IER (9.651) (38,589)
Net cash generated from financing METHIERSFE
activities 306,153 128,048
Net (decrease)/increase in cash and cash BRE&RREZEEE ORL) 12 NEE
equivalents (199,556) 224,682
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning F¥RERREEE/ER
of year 406,197 182,529
Effect of foreign exchange rate changes [EXR# B & 4,653 (1,014)
Cash and cash equivalents at end of FRASRESEEER
year 211,294 406,197
Analysis of the balances of cash and ReRESESEEBLERONT
cash equivalents
Bank balances and cash RITHEBREIRE 211,294 406,197

MAJOR NON-CASH TRANSACTIONS

During the year ended 31 December 2020, the Group had non-cash
additions to right-of-use assets and lease liabilities of RMB26,768,000
(2019: RMB8,127,000) and RMB26,768,000 (2019: RMB8,127,000)
respectively, in respect of the lease arrangements for the leased

factory, office and staff dormitory.
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GENERAL

Veson Holdings Limited (the “Company”), is a public limited
company incorporated in the Cayman Islands on 20 July 2006 as
an exempted company with limited liability and its shares were
listed on the Main Board of The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong
Limited (the “Stock Exchange”) on 21 December 2006.

Pursuant to a special resolution duly approved at the
extraordinary general meeting of the Company held on 13
October 2020, the English name of the Company has been
changed from “SCUD Group Limited” to “Veson Holdings
Limited” and the Chinese name of the Company has been
changed from “FREBREEFRAR]" to "HEEKRERAF",
with effect from 16 October 2020.

The Company’s principal activity is investment holding and its
subsidiaries are principally engaged in manufacture and sale of
lithium-ion battery modules and related accessories for mobile
phones, tablets and digital electronic appliances, while also
engaging in manufacture and sale of lithium-ion bare battery
cells.

ADOPTION OF NEW OR AMENDED
INTERNATIONAL FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“IFRSs")

(a) Adoption of new or amended IFRSs - effective
from 1 January 2020

In the current year, the Group has applied, for the first
time, the Conceptual Framework for Finanical Reporting
2018 and the following new or amended IFRSs, which
are relevant to and effective for the Group’s consolidated
financial statements for the annual period beginning on 1
January 2020.
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For the year ended 31 December 2020 # %2020 12431 H 1 F/Z

(a)

—RER

SHIEERER AR ARQT])K2006%7 820
BEHSHEEMR L AEREZ FHARA
Al HEIRMDR20065F 12 A21BEBBHAR S
FrAR AR ([BEZFT ) ER £ -

RIEFEAA RIR2020F 10 A 13 B EB/TH IR R
RIAE EFARBHERIRZESR - NAFIE
ZFBEAISCUD Group Limited |E A Veson
Holdings Limited ] RZANAFHR X EABE BRI RE
BEEARARIERAHEERERAR]
EH2020F 1016 HBAER -

ARBMEBEXBR/REZR - REKBEQA
TERNFRUETE  FPREMRBBRETE
mTAZ BT ENRAR B ZEER
HE - MMEFEBETFEC 2 EERBEE o

R RS RIS B &
28 ([ B PR A A5 3R 5 22 A )

BRANF T SRS T BRI 3R 5 R —8
2020F1H1HBEN

RAEE » AEBEEXERQROISFEHBRE
ZEESAEZR YA R LA TS AT sk AR S AT BB BA 75 3R
HAER - HEEAEEMN2020F 1 A1HRBA
FEREZGEVBRRA W EHERR -

Amendments to IFRS 3 Definition of a Business

I % o 765 e 5 22 I 28 355 (I8 RT AR B2 ER
Amendments to IAS 1 and IAS 8 Definition of Material
BIFR RS 15 R BEIPR 2 T ER 85 (85T 4A) BAZEE

Interest Rate Benchmark Reform

MR

Amendments to IFRS 9, IAS 39 and IFRS 7

BRI 5 S ERIFE 5% - BB &5t ERIF 395k R BR 7%
HAERIE 7R (IERTA)

Revised Conceptual Framework for Finanical Reporting

PR E < B SAEZR (IEET)
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2. ADOPTION OF NEW OR AMENDED IFRSs
(Continued)
(a) Adoption of new or amended IFRSs — effective

94

from 1 January 2020 (Continued)

Amendments to IFRS 3 — Definition of a Business

The amendments clarify the definition of a business and
introduce an optional concentration test that permits
a simplified assessment of whether an acquired set of
activities and assets is not a business. The election to apply
the concentration test is made for each transaction. The
concentration test is met if substantially all of the fair value
of the gross assets acquired is concentrated in a single
identifiable asset or group of similar identifiable assets. If
the concentration test is met, the set of activities and assets
is determined not to be a business. If the concentration test
is failed, the acquired set of activities and assets is further
assessed based on the elements of a business.

The Group elected to apply the amendments prospectively
to acquisitions for which the acquisition date is on or after
1 January 2020. The amendments did not have any impact
on the financial position and performance of the Group.

Amendments to IAS 1 and IAS 8 - Definition of
Material

The amendments provide a new definition of material.
The new definition states that information is material if
omitting, misstating or obscuring it could reasonably be
expected to influence decisions that the primary users of
general purpose financial statements make on the basis of
those financial statements. The amendments clarify that
materiality will depend on the nature or magnitude of
information, or both. The amendments did not have any
significant impact on the financial position and performance
of the Group.
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2. ADOPTION OF NEW OR AMENDED IFRSs 2. IRNHITRZIEITEBEREIERE
(Continued) 28l #)

(a) ERAHEIHEE T BRI BI|REE

(a) Adoption of new or amended IFRSs — effective

from 1 January 2020 (Continued)

Amendments to IFRS 9, IAS 39 and IFRS 7 — Interest
Rate Benchmark Reform

The amendments modify some specific hedge accounting
requirements to provide relief from potential effects
of the uncertainties caused by interest rate benchmark
reform. In addition, the amendments require companies
to provide additional information to investors about their
hedging relationships which are directly affected by these
uncertainties.

Revised Conceptual Framework for Finanical Reporting

Conceptual Framework for Financial Reporting 2018 (the
“Conceptual Framework”) sets out a comprehensive set of
concepts for financial reporting and standard setting, and
provides guidance for preparers of financial statements in
developing consistent accounting policies and assistance
to all parties to understand and interpret the standards.
The Conceptual Framework includes new chapters on
measurement and reporting financial performance, new
guidance on the derecognition of assets and liabilities, and
updated definitions and recognition criteria for assets and
liabilities. It also clarifies the roles of stewardship, prudence
and measurement uncertainty in financial reporting. The
Conceptual Framework is not a standard, and none of
the concepts contained therein override the concepts or
requirements in any standard.

Bl—H2020F1 B 1B BER4E)
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BERHANERERSTRENEYE
RN E S AR -

ISR R 2 2 S AT
20184 B T4 85 2 BEAMER ([BERIEZR )
BB 35 TR B AR T — RN
2 BB REERE BE RO G
BORIRUEE] - BBIFTA AR R FIAR R
Bl - BEAMER E15 4 B 8 R & 1548
ML - AR ENA EL LR
53l AREH T ABEENEAES
MRBOIRE - RS EETMBAREIE -
B A6 8 75 B MR B TS 9 2 o A 1
A« BEAERAIRR] - Hb B AW
BAET @R BRI A R E
2k -

95



VESON HOLDINGS LIMITED

BUSERBR DA

ANNUAL REPORT £ %R 2020

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

RE IR AR MR

For the year ended 31 December 2020 # %2020 12431 H 1L F/Z

2. ADOPTION OF NEW OR AMENDED IFRSs
(Continued)

(b) New or amended IFRSs that have been issued
but are not yet effective

The following new or amended IFRSs, potentially relevant to
the Group’s financial statements, have been issued, but are
not yet effective and have not been early adopted by the
Group.

Amendments to IAS 1

REEt RIS 5% (BRI A)
Amendments to IAS 16

BIFR &5t RIZE 1655 (BETAN)
Amendments to IAS 37

BIRR & 52 ERIFE 375 (B3] A)
Amendments to IFRS 3

BB B 75 R o5 R BN 32 35% (1E 7T AR )
Amendments to IFRS 10 and IAS 28

BARR A 75 3R 5 AE RN 251 05 R B BR & 5T 2RI 2858 (18 7] )

Amendments to IAS 39, IFRS 4, IFRS 7, IFRS 9 and IFRS
16

B &t RIF395% - BIRR B R E RIS 455% - BIFR A
BREEAFETS - BV BREELFE 5% K EEM

HERAFE 1698 (BETA)

Annual Improvements to IFRSs 2018-2020 Cycle

SR T R S 2ERI2018F 2 2020F 1A B 2 F R iUt

Annual Improvements to IFRSs 2018-2020 Cycle

I % B 7 e o R 12018 FF = 20205 B HA 2 B BuE

1 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1
January 2021.

2 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1
January 2022.

3 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1
January 2023.

4 The amendments shall be applied prospectively to

the sale or contribution of assets occurring in annual
periods beginning on or after a date to be determined.
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Proceeds before Intended Use?
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Onerous Contracts — Cost of Fulfilling a Contract?
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Reference to the Conceptual Framework?
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Sale or Contribution of Assets between an Investor and
its Associate or Joint Venture*
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Interest Rate Benchmark Reform — Phase 2!
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2. ADOPTION OF NEW OR AMENDED IFRSs 2. IRNHITRZIEITEBEREIERE
(Continued) 28l #)

(b) EHEAME N RERZHE REEFTE

(b) New or amended IFRSs that have been issued

but are not yet effective (Continued)

Amendments to IAS 1 — Classification of Liabilities as
Current or Non-current

The amendments clarify that the classification of liabilities
as current or non-current is based on rights that are in
existence at the end of the reporting period, specify that
classification is unaffected by expectations about whether
an entity will exercise its right to defer settlement of a
liability and explain that rights are in existence if covenants
are complied with at the end of the reporting period. The
amendments also introduce a definition of ‘settlement’ to
make clear that settlement refers to the transfer to the
counterparty of cash, equity instruments, other assets or
services.

Amendments to IAS 16 — Proceeds before Intended Use

The amendments prohibit deducting from the cost of an
item of property, plant and equipment any proceeds from
selling items produced while bringing that asset to the
location and condition necessary for it to be capable of
operating in the manner intended by management. Instead,
the proceeds from selling such items, and the cost of
producing those items, is recognised in profit or loss.

Amendments to IAS 37 — Onerous Contracts — Cost of
Fulfilling a Contract

The amendments specify that the ‘cost of fulfilling’ a
contract comprises the ‘costs that relate directly to the
contract’. Costs that relate directly to a contract can either
be incremental costs of fulfilling that contract (e.g. direct
labour and materials) or an allocation of other costs that
relate directly to fulfilling contracts (e.g. the allocation of
the depreciation charge for an item of property, plant and
equipment used in fulfilling the contract).

BB SR (E)

EIBRE s ERIE 15 (1537 %) —BESE
BREHITE
ZIEFTBBRBERENBERRFEZE
MAOBERRBIFRBDEE  BERED
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SPRRA) BIFEZAEN - RERTHEIA
[EE |MER - NAEKRTEETERR
& BETE HOBEEIRBEBER
HHEFTT -

EIRE T ERIE 1655 (165 F) —KEEFR
BIZ 158

ZEERELERIEME  BERRER
B HI R AR RS EE D iR E 1
ERENTAFAREEMVENLE R
fERfF B2 E AR B VR HEMER
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o

BB & &t ER| E37355 2 1K AT — A S
- BITERZHA

REER BB BITEH KA | BHENE
BHERBABIKA] BEMNEERNARM
ZRARBITANZIEERAN(NERS
IRV HEBTENERERZH
AR E(MBRETENZME - W
FREERBZFTEHAE) °

97



VESON HOLDINGS LIMITED

B2

ANNUAL

BRAERDE]

REPORT S #§ 2020

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

= A
,%/T\l:

TS ¥R AR MR

For the year ended 31 December 2020 # %2020 12431 H 1L F/Z

2. ADOPTION OF NEW OR AMENDED IFRSs
(Continued)

(b)

98

New or amended IFRSs that have been issued
but are not yet effective (Continued)

Amendments to IFRS 3 — Reference to the Conceptual
Framework

The amendments update IFRS 3 so that it refers to the
revised Conceptual Framework for Financial Reporting 2018
instead of the version issued in 2010. The amendments
add to IFRS 3 a requirement that, for obligations within the
scope of IAS 37, an acquirer applies IAS 37 to determine
whether at the acquisition date a present obligation exists
as a result of past events. For a levy that would be within
the scope of IFRIC-Int 21 Levies, the acquirer applies IFRIC-
Int 21 to determine whether the obligating event that
gives rise to a liability to pay the levy has occurred by the
acquisition date. The amendments also add an explicit
statement that an acquirer does not recognise contingent
assets acquired in a business combination.

Amendments to IFRS 10 and |IAS 28 - Sale or
Contribution of Assets between an Investor and its
Associate or Joint Venture

The amendments clarify with situations where there is a
sale or contribution of assets between an investor and its
associate or joint venture. When the transaction with an
associate or joint venture that is accounted for using the
equity method, any gains or losses resulting from the loss
of control of a subsidiary that does not contain a business
are recognised in the profit or loss only to the extent of
the unrelated investors’ interests in that associate or joint
venture. Similarly, any gains or losses resulting from the
remeasurement of retained interest in any former subsidiary
(that has become an associate or a joint venture) to fair
value are recognised in the profit or loss only to the extent
of the unrelated investors’ interests in the new associate or
joint venture.
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2. ADOPTION OF NEW OR AMENDED IFRSs 2. IRNHITRZIEITEBEREIERE
(Continued) 28l #)

(b) EHEAME N RERZHE REEFTE

(b) New or amended IFRSs that have been issued

but are not yet effective (Continued)

Amendments to IAS 39, IFRS 4, IFRS 7, IFRS 9 and IFRS
16 — Interest Rate Benchmark Reform — Phase 2

The amendments address issues that might affect financial
reporting when a company replaces the old interest rate
benchmark with an alternative benchmark rate as a result
of the interest rate benchmark reform (the “Reform”). The
amendments complement those issued in November 2019
and relate to (a) changes to contractual cash flows in which
an entity will not have to derecognise or adjust the carrying
amount of financial instruments for changes required by
the Reform, but will instead update the effective interest
rate to reflect the change to the alternative benchmark
rate; (b) hedge accounting in which an entity will not have
to discontinue its hedge accounting solely because it makes
changes required by the Reform, if the hedge meets other
hedge accounting criteria; and (c) disclosures in which an
entity will be required to disclose information about new
risks arising from the Reform and how it manages the
transition to alternative benchmark rates.

Annual Improvements to IFRSs 2018-2020 Cycle — IFRS 9
“Financial Instruments”

The amendment clarifies which fees an entity includes when
it applies the 10 per cent’ test in paragraph B3.3.6 of IFRS
9 in assessing whether to derecognise a financial liability.
An entity includes only fees paid or received between the
entity (the borrower) and the lender, including fees paid or
received by either the entity or the lender on the other’s
behalf.
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2. ADOPTION OF NEW OR AMENDED IFRSs
(Continued)

(b)

New or amended IFRSs that have been issued
but are not yet effective (Continued)

Annual Improvements to IFRSs 2018-2020 - lllustrative
Examples accompanying IFRS 16 “Leases”

The amendment to lllustrative Example 13 accompanying
IFRS 16 removes from the example the illustration of the
reimbursement of leasehold improvements by the lessor
in order to resolve any potential confusion regarding the
treatment of lease incentives that might arise because of
how lease incentives are illustrated in that example.

The Group is in the process of making an assessment of
the potential impact of these new pronouncements. The
Directors so far concluded that the application of these new
pronouncements is unlikely to have a significant impact on
the Group’s financial performance and financial position.

3. BASIS OF PRESENTATION

100

(a)

(b)

(c)

Statement of compliance

The financial statements have been prepared in accordance
with all applicable IFRSs, International Accounting Standards
("1ASs") issued by the IASB and Interpretations issued
by the International Financial Reporting Interpretations
Committee of the IASB (hereinafter collectively referred
to as the “IFRS”) and the disclosure requirements of the
Hong Kong Companies Ordinance. In addition, the financial
statements include applicable disclosures required by the
Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on The Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited.

Basis of measurement

The financial statements have been prepared under the
historical cost basis, except for notes receivables that have
been measured at fair value. The measurement bases are
fully described in the accounting policies below.

Functional and presentation currency

The financial statements are presented in Chinese Renminbi
(“RMB"), which is the same as the functional currency of
the Company.
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4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 4. EXEFHHE
(a) XBEHRGFEEE

(a) Business combination and basis of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements comprise the financial
statements of the Company and its subsidiaries (“the
Group”). Inter-company transactions and balances between
group companies together with unrealised profits are
eliminated in full in preparing the consolidated financial
statements. Unrealised losses are also eliminated unless the
transaction provides evidence of impairment on the asset
transferred, in which case the loss is recognised in profit or
loss.

The results of subsidiaries acquired or disposed of during
the year are included in the consolidated statement of
comprehensive income from the dates of acquisition or up
to the dates of disposal, as appropriate. Where necessary,
adjustments are made to the financial statements of
subsidiaries to bring their accounting policies into line with
those used by other members of the Group.

Acquisition of subsidiaries or businesses is accounted for
using the acquisition method. The cost of an acquisition is
measured at the aggregate of the acquisition-date fair value
of assets transferred, liabilities incurred and equity interests
issued by the Group, as the acquirer. The identifiable assets
acquired and liabilities assumed are principally measured
at acquisition-date fair value. The Group’s previously
held equity interest in the acquiree is re-measured at
acquisition-date fair value and the resulting gains or losses
are recognised in profit or loss. The Group may elect, on
a transaction-by-transaction basis, to measure the non-
controlling interests that represent present ownership
interests in the subsidiary either at fair value or at the
proportionate share of the acquiree’s identifiable net assets.
All other non-controlling interests are measured at fair value
unless another measurement basis is required by IFRSs.
Acquisition-related costs incurred are expensed unless they
are incurred in issuing equity instruments in which case the
costs are deducted from equity.
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4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(a)

102

Business combination and basis of consolidation
(Continued)

Any contingent consideration to be transferred by the
acquirer is recognised at acquisition-date fair value.
Subsequent adjustments to consideration are recognised
against goodwill only to the extent that they arise from
new information obtained within the measurement period
(@ maximum of 12 months from the acquisition date) about
the fair value at the acquisition date. All other subsequent
adjustments to contingent consideration classified as an
asset or a liability are recognised in profit or loss.

When the Group loses control of a subsidiary, the profit
or loss on disposal is calculated as the difference between
(i) the aggregate of the fair value of the consideration
received and the fair value of any retained interest and
(ii) the previous carrying amount of the assets (including
goodwill), and liabilities of the subsidiary and any non-
controlling interest. Amounts previously recognised in other
comprehensive income in relation to the subsidiary are
accounted for in the same manner as would be required if
the relevant assets or liabilities were disposed of.

Subsequent to acquisition, the carrying amount of non-
controlling interests that represent present ownership
interests in the subsidiary is the amount of those interests
at initial recognition plus such non-controlling interest’s
share of subsequent changes in equity. Total comprehensive
income is attributed to such non-controlling interests even
if this results in those non-controlling interests having a
deficit balance.
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4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(b) Subsidiaries (Continued)

(c)

A subsidiary is an investee over which the Company is able
to exercise control. The Company controls an investee if all
three of the following elements are present: power over
the investee, exposure, or rights, to variable returns from
the investee, and the ability to use its power to affect those
variable returns. Control is reassessed whenever facts and
circumstances indicate that there may be a change in any
of these elements of control.

In the Company’s statement of financial position,
investments in subsidiaries are stated at cost less impairment
loss, if any. The results of subsidiaries are accounted for
by the Company on the basis of dividend received and
receivable.

Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment are stated at cost less
accumulated depreciation and accumulated impairment
losses.

The cost of property, plant and equipment includes its
purchase price and the costs directly attributable to the
acquisition of the items.
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4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(c)

104

Property, plant and equipment (Continued)

Subsequent costs are included in the asset’s carrying
amount or recognised as a separate asset, as appropriate,
only when it is probable that future economic benefits
associated with the item will flow to the Group and the
cost of the item can be measured reliably. The carrying
amount of the replaced part is derecognised. All other
repairs and maintenance are recognised as an expense in
profit or loss during the financial period in which they are
incurred.

Property, plant and equipment are depreciated so as to
write off their cost or valuation net of expected residual
value over their estimated useful lives on a straight-line
basis. The useful lives, residual value and depreciation
method are reviewed, and adjusted if appropriate, at
the end of each reporting period. The useful lives are as

follows:

Building 5%

Plant and machinery 10%

Motor vehicles 20%

Electronic equipment, furniture and 20%
fixtures

Leasehold improvements 10%
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4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(c)

(d)

Property, plant and equipment (Continued)

Construction in progress is stated at cost less impairment
losses. Cost comprises direct costs of construction as
well as borrowing costs capitalised during the periods of
construction and installation. Capitalisation of these costs
ceases and the construction in progress is transferred to the
appropriate class of property, plant and equipment when
substantially all the activities necessary to prepare the assets
for their intended use are completed. No depreciation is
provided for in respect of construction in progress until it is
completed and ready for its intended use.

An asset is written down immediately to its recoverable
amount if its carrying amount is higher than the asset’s
estimated recoverable amount.

The gain or loss on disposal of an item of property, plant
and equipment is the difference between the net sale
proceeds and its carrying amount, and is recognised in
profit or loss on disposal.

Investment property

Investment property is property held either to earn rentals
or for capital appreciation or for both, but not held for sale
in the ordinary course of business, use in the production
or supply of goods or services or for administrative
purposes. Investment property is measured at cost on initial
recognition less accumulated depreciation and accumulated
impairment losses, if any.
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4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)
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(d)

(e)

Investment property (Continued)

When the Group holds a property interest under an
operating lease to earn rental income, the Group chooses
not to classify and account for these property interests as
investment property.

Leases

All leases (irrespective of they are operating leases or
finance leases) are required to be capitalised in the
statement of financial position as right-of-use assets and
lease liabilities, but accounting policy choices exist for an
entity to choose not to capitalise (i) leases which are short-
term leases and/or (i) leases for which the underlying asset
is of low-value. The Group has elected not to recognise
right-of-use assets and lease liabilities for low-value assets
and leases for which at the commencement date have
a lease term less than 12 months. The lease payments
associated with those leases have been expensed on
straight-line basis over the lease term.
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4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 4. EASHBE 2

(Continued)

(e) Leases (Continued) (e) HE(E)

Right-of-use asset

The right-of-use asset should be recognised at cost and
would comprise: (i) the amount of the initial measurement
of the lease liability (see below for the accounting policy to
account for lease liability); (ii) any lease payments made at
or before the commencement date, less any lease incentives
received; (iii) any initial direct costs incurred by the lessee;
and (iv) an estimate of costs to be incurred by the lessee
in dismantling and removing the underlying asset to the
condition required by the terms and conditions of the lease;
unless those costs are incurred to produce inventories.
Except for right-of-use asset that meets the definition of
an investment property or a class of property, plant and
equipment to which the Group applies the revaluation
model, the Group measures the right-of-use assets
applying a cost model. Under the cost model, the Group
measures the right-to-use at cost, less any accumulated
depreciation and any impairment losses, and adjusted for
any remeasurement of lease liability. For right-of-use asset
that meets the definition of an investment property, they
are carried at fair value and for right-of-use asset that
meets the definition of a leasehold land and buildings held
for own use, they are carried at fair value.

The Group accounts for leasehold land and buildings that
are held for rental or capital appreciation purpose under
IAS 40 “Investment Property” and are carried at fair value.
The Group accounts for leasehold land and buildings
which is held for own use under IAS 16 “Property, plant
and equipment” and are carried at fair value. Other than
the above right-of-use assets, the Group also has leased
a number of properties under tenancy agreements which
the Group exercises it judgement and determines that it
is a separate class of asset apart from the leasehold land
and buildings which is held for own use. As a result, the
right-of-use asset arising from the properties under tenancy
agreements are carried at depreciated cost.
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4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(e)

108

Leases (Continued)
Lease liability

The lease liability is recognised at the present value of
the lease payments that are not paid at the date of
commencement of the lease. The lease payments are
discounted using the interest rate implicit in the lease, if
that rate can be readily determined. If that rate cannot be
readily determined, the Group uses the Group’s incremental
borrowing rate.

The following payments for the right-to-use the underlying
asset during the lease term that are not paid at the
commencement date of the lease are considered to be
lease payments: (i) fixed payments less any lease incentives
receivable; (i) variable lease payments that depend on an
index or a rate, initially measured using the index or rate
as at commencement date; (iii) amounts expected to be
payable by the lessee under residual value guarantees;
(iv) the exercise price of a purchase option if the lessee is
reasonably certain to exercise that option; and (v) payments
of penalties for terminating the lease, if the lease term
reflects the lessee exercising an option to terminate the
lease.

Subsequent to the commencement date, the Group
measures the lease liability by: (i) increasing the carrying
amount to reflect interest on the lease liability; (ii) reducing
the carrying amount to reflect the lease payments made;
and (iii) remeasuring the carrying amount to reflect any
reassessment or lease modifications, e.g., a change in future
lease payments arising from change in an index or rate,
a change in the lease term, a change in the in substance
fixed lease payments or a change in assessment to purchase
the underlying asset.
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4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(f) Intangible assets

(i)

(i)

Acquired intangible assets

Intangible assets acquired separately are initially
recognised at cost. The cost of intangible assets
acquired in a business combination is fair value at
the date of acquisition. Subsequently, intangible
assets with finite useful lives are carried at cost less
accumulated amortisation and accumulated impairment
losses.

Amortisation is provided on a straight-line basis over
their useful lives as follows. Intangible assets with
indefinite useful lives are carried at cost less any
accumulated impairment losses. The amortisation
expense is recognised in profit or loss and included in
administrative expenses.
Software 3-5 years
Internally generated intangible assets (research
and development costs)

Expenditure on internally developed products is
capitalised if it can be demonstrated that:

it is technically feasible to develop the product
for it to be sold;

—  adequate resources are available to complete the
development;

—  there is an intention to complete and sell the
product;

—  the Group is able to sell the product;
—  sale of the product will generate future economic

benefits; and expenditure on the project can be
measured reliably.
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4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)
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()
(ii)

(iii)

Intangible assets (Continued)

Internally generated intangible assets (research
and development costs) (Continued)

Capitalised development costs are amortised over
the periods the Group expects to benefit from selling
the products developed. The amortisation expense is
recognised in profit or loss and included in cost of
sales.

Development expenditure not satisfying the above
criteria and expenditure on the research phase of
internal projects are recognised in profit or loss as
incurred.

Impairment

Intangible assets with indefinite useful lives and
intangible assets not yet available for use are tested
for impairment annually by comparing their carrying
amounts with their recoverable amounts, irrespective
of whether there is any indication that they may
be impaired. If the recoverable amount of an asset
is estimated to be less than its carrying amount,
the carrying amount of the asset is reduced to its
recoverable amount.

(g) Financial Instruments

(i)

Financial assets

A financial asset (unless it is a trade receivable
without a significant financing component) is initially
measured at fair value plus, for an item not at fair
value through profit or loss, transaction costs that are
directly attributable to its acquisition or issue. A trade
receivable without a significant financing component
is initially measured at the transaction price.

All regular way purchases and sales of financial assets
are recognised on the trade date, that is, the date
that the Group commits to purchase or sell the asset.
Regular way purchases or sales are purchases or sales
of financial assets that require delivery of assets within
the period generally established by regulation or
convention in the market place.

4, ERSHBEK®)

(f) BEEE®)
(i) AEBELZHELEE (HREM)(E)

BABANFERAGRAEEEH
WHEZME L ERNFHEN - &
HF RS AR T AHERAK
7 o

THE F I HBIRE H R AR
T B IR R A B S L B A B
RIBEPRER -

(iii) JE1E

A0 A HA R IR A Y B B B e R A]
HERNETLEESFETRER
A TERLEBEREEE K E S
o MAmAS HBRERTERER
PRS- fii fh et B E R A S B ER
HIFEE  AIEEREEZARKER
AU E SR

(9) EMIE

(i)

EREE(ABBEASHEMDHE
WE 5 ARSI B IRIBRAFENL
WEEEREIENRXZKAE (G
FUARFEFAABENEAEMS)
WEEADFE DM EKE H R
BRERFEE -

MBEUNERTARENSRHEEIN
RGBEIAEERAAEEZEEE
B)TUER - BERTABEEHERTE
BN — MR35 R SAE PIFESL 2 B
ARNEENEREERS -



'"VESON HOLDINGS LIMITED

HIEERBERLE

ANNUAL REPORT %R 2020

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(g) Financial Instruments (Continued)

(i)

Financial assets (Continued)

Financial assets with embedded derivatives are
considered in their entirely when determining whether
their cash flows are solely payment of principal and
interest.

Debt instruments

Subsequent measurement of debt instruments depends
on the Group’s business model for managing the asset
and the cash flow characteristics of the asset. There
are two measurement categories into which the Group
classifies its debt instruments:

Amortised cost: Assets that are held for collection
of contractual cash flows where those cash flows
represent solely payments of principal and interest
are measured at amortised cost. Financial assets at
amortised cost are subsequently measured using
the effective interest rate method. Interest income,
foreign exchange gains and losses and impairment are
recognised in profit or loss. Any gain on derecognition
is recognised in profit or loss.

Fair value through other comprehensive income
("FVTOCI"): Assets that are held for collection of
contractual cash flows and for selling the financial
assets, where the assets’ cash flows represent solely
payments of principal and interest, are measured at
FVTOCI. Debt investments at FVTOCI are subsequently
measured at fair value. Interest income calculated
using the effective interest rate method, foreign
exchange gains and losses and impairment are
recognised in profit or loss. Other net gains and losses
are recognised in other comprehensive income. On
derecognition, gains and losses accumulated in other
comprehensive income are reclassified to profit or loss.
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4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

112

(g) Financial Instruments (Continued)

()

(ii)

Financial assets (Continued)
Equity instruments

On initial recognition of an equity investment that is
not held for trading, the Group could irrevocably elect
to present subsequent changes in the investment'’s fair
value in other comprehensive income. This election is
made on an investment-by-investment basis. Equity
investments at FVTOCI are measured at fair value.
Dividend income are recognised in profit or loss unless
the dividend income clearly represents a recovery of
part of the cost of the investments. Other net gains
and losses are recognised in other comprehensive
income and are not reclassified to profit or loss. All
other equity instruments are classified as fair value
through profit or loss, whereby changes in fair value,
dividends and interest income are recognised in profit
or loss.

Impairment loss on financial assets

The Group recognises loss allowances for ECLs
on trade receivables, financial assets measured at
amortised cost and debt investments measured at
FVTOCI. The ECLs are measured on either of the
following bases: (1) 12-months ECLs: these are the
ECLs that result from possible default events within
the 12 months after the reporting date; and (2)
lifetime ECLs: these are ECLs that result from all
possible default events over the expected life of a
financial instrument. The maximum period considered
when estimating ECLs is the maximum contractual
period over which the Group is exposed to credit risk.

ECLs are a probability-weighted estimate of credit
losses. Credit losses are measured as the difference
between all contractual cash flows that are due to
the Group in accordance with the contract and all
the cash flows that the Group expects to receive. The
shortfall is then discounted at an approximation to the
assets’ original effective interest rate.
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4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(g) Financial Instruments (Continued)

(i)

Impairment loss on financial assets (Continued)

The Group has elected to measure loss allowances for
trade receivables using IFRS 9 simplified approach and
has calculated ECLs based on lifetime ECLs. The Group
has established a provision matrix that is based on the
Group's historical credit loss experience, adjusted for
forward-looking factors specific to the debtors and the
economic environment.

For other debt financial assets, the ECLs are based on
the 12-months ECLs. However, when there has been a
significant increase in credit risk since origination, the
allowance will be based on the lifetime ECLs.

When determining whether the credit risk of a
financial asset has increased significantly since initial
recognition and when estimating ECLs, the Group
considers reasonable and supportable information
that is relevant and available without undue cost or
effort. This includes both quantitative and qualitative
information analysis, based on the Group’s historical
experience and informed credit assessment and
including forward-looking information.

The Group assumes that the credit risk on a financial
asset has increased significantly if it is more than 30
days past due.

The Group considers a financial asset to be credit-
impaired when: (1) the borrower is unlikely to pay
its credit obligations to the Group in full, without
recourse by the Group to actions such as realising
security (if any is held); or (2) the financial asset is
more than 90 days past due.

'"VESON HOLDINGS LIMITED

HIEERBERLE

ANNUAL REPORT %R 2020

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

RE RS R AR MR

For the year ended 31 December 2020 # %2020 12431 H 1 F/Z

4., EXRSHBE#)

(9) TRI A (&)

(ii)

EHEERERFE(E)

AR B R P BB B 7 3R 5 E RSB 9%
BHLAFT 2N E ZRIBREERAE -
YREFRABHEERB R EEN
EEEE - AEEERIREBELEH
BREEEBHRLRITENBERER -
W RAE TS AR5 TE B A BE 1 R 3= e 40
RIBIEHAE

HREMEBEREENS - BHEE
BEAEAZEHEEEERE
%o R - MEERR B EAEKER
ZLT - ABEBAFRABBREE
EARREAE -

EETEREEZFERREL AT
FHERRAIRIEN - WRHFHREE
BEERR - AKEEEZEELER
B Z AR BN &S 2 518
RASEEH - WEEREBEAKE 2B
EEBRIMENEEFESEEENRE
2 ERDHT - LRIFAELEER -

REERE - fwe B E30K - Al
ZeBMBEEZEERBEZIEM -

ARERREREERTIBERTH
EERE : (MERATKAREER
SEEERERITH(HIM - B
i) (nFH)NBER TRAEEE
BXNEGEERE SQ%emE
ERHERBIOR °

113



VESON HOLDINGS LIMITED

BUSERBR DA

ANNUAL REPORT £ %R 2020

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
fra MR R AR M T

For the year ended 31 December 2020 # %2020 12431 H 1L F/Z

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

4, ERSHBEK®)

(9) €s@MIAE)
(i) EFEEEREEEE)

(g9) Financial Instruments (Continued)

(ii) Impairment loss on financial assets (Continued)
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Write-off

The gross carrying amount of a financial asset is
written off (either partially or in full) to the extent
that there is no realistic prospect of recovery. This is
generally the case when the Group determines that
the debtor does not have assets or sources of income
that could generate sufficient cash flows to repay the
amounts subject to the write-off. However, financial
assets that are written off could still be subject to
enforcement activities in order to comply with the
Group’s procedures for recovery of amounts due.

Interest income on credit-impaired financial assets is
calculated based on the amortised cost (i.e. the gross
carrying amount less loss allowance) of the financial
asset. For non credit-impaired financial assets interest
income is calculated based on the gross carrying
amount.
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4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(g) Financial Instruments (Continued)

(iii) Financial liabilities

(iv)

The Group classifies its financial liabilities, depending
on the purpose for which the liabilities were incurred.
Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or
loss are initially measured at fair value and financial
liabilities at amortised costs are initially measured at
fair value, net of directly attributable costs incurred.

Financial liabilities at amortised cost

Financial liabilities at amortised cost including trade
and other payables, financial liabiltiies included
in other payables, contract liabilities and accrued
charges, borrowings, amounts due to related parties,
amounts due to directors and lease liabilites are
subsequently measured at amortised cost, using the
effective interest method. The related interest expense
is recognised in profit or loss.

Gains or losses are recognised in profit or loss when
the liabilities are derecognised as well as through the
amortisation process.

Effective interest method

The effective interest method is a method of
calculating the amortised cost of a financial asset or
financial liability and of allocating interest income
or interest expense over the relevant period. The
effective interest rate is the rate that exactly discounts
estimated future cash receipts or payments through
the expected life of the financial asset or liability, or
where appropriate, a shorter period.
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4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
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(g) Financial Instruments (Continued)

(v)

(vi)

Equity instruments

Equity instruments issued by the Company are
recorded at the proceeds received, net of direct issue
costs.

Derecognition

The Group derecognises a financial asset when the
contractual rights to the future cash flows in relation
to the financial asset expire or when the financial
asset has been transferred and the transfer meets the
criteria for derecognition in accordance with IFRS 9.

Financial liabilities are derecognised when the
obligation specified in the relevant contract is
discharged, cancelled or expires.

Where the Group issues its own equity instruments
to a creditor to settle a financial liability in whole
or in part as a result of renegotiating the terms of
that liability, the equity instruments issued are the
consideration paid and are recognised initially and
measured at their fair value on the date the financial
liability or part thereof is extinguished. If the fair value
of the equity instruments issued cannot be reliably
measured, the equity instruments are measured
to reflect the fair value of the financial liability
extinguished. The difference between the carrying
amount of the financial liability or part thereof
extinguished and the consideration paid is recognised
in profit or loss for the year.
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4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 4. EASHBE 2
(Continued)

(h) Inventories

0]

Inventories are initially recognised at cost, and subsequently
at the lower of cost and net realisable value. Cost comprises
all costs of purchase, costs of conversion and other costs
incurred in bringing the inventories to their present location
and condition. Cost is calculated using the weighted
average method. Net realisable value represents the
estimated selling price in the ordinary course of business
less the estimated costs necessary to make the sale.

Cash and cash equivalents

For the purpose of the consolidated statement of cash
flows, cash and cash equivalents represent short-term,
highly ligquid investments which are readily convertible
into known amounts of cash and which were within three
months of maturity when acquired.
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()

Revenue recognition

Revenue from contracts with customers is recognised when
control of goods or services is transferred to the customers
at an amount that reflects the consideration to which the
Group expects to be entitled in exchange for those goods
or services, excluding those amounts collected on behalf
of third parties. Revenue excludes value added tax or other
sales taxes and is after deduction of any trade discounts.

Depending on the terms of the contract and the laws that
apply to the contract, control of the goods or service may
be transferred over time or at a point in time. Control of
the goods or service is transferred over time if the Group's
performance:

o provides all of the benefits received and consumed
simultaneously by the customer;

. creates or enhances an asset that the customer
controls as the Group performs; or

° does not create an asset with an alternative use to
the Group and the Group has an enforceable right to
payment for performance completed to date.

If control of the goods or services transfers over time,
revenue is recognised over the period of the contract by
reference to the progress towards complete satisfaction
of that performance obligation. Otherwise, revenue is
recognised at a point in time when the customer obtains
control of the goods or service.
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4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

@

Revenue recognition (Continued)

When the contract contains a financing component which
provides the customer a significant benefit of financing
the transfer of goods or services to the customer for more
than one year, revenue is measured at the present value of
the amounts receivable, discounted using the discount rate
that would be reflected in a separate financing transaction
between the Group and the customer at contract inception.
Where the contract contains a financing component which
provides a significant financing benefit to the Group,
revenue recognised under that contract includes the
interest expense accreted on the contract liability under the
effective interest method. For contracts where the period
between the payment and the transfer of the promised
goods or services is one year or less, the transaction price
is not adjusted for the effects of a significant financing
component, using the practical expedient in IFRS 15.

(i) Sale of lithium-ion battery modules and related
accessories for mobile phones and digital
electronic appliances

Customers obtain control of the products when the
goods are delivered to and have been accepted.
Revenue is thus recognised upon when the customers
accepted the products. There is generally only one
performance obligation. Invoices are usually payable
within 60-90 days.
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(j) Revenue recognition (Continued)

(i)

(ii)

Sale of lithium-ion battery modules and related
accessories for mobile phones and digital
electronic appliances (Continued)

Some of the Group’s contracts with customers from
the sale of product provides standard warranty service
for defective goods to assure that the product sold
complies with the agreed-upon specifications within 6
months following the date of delivery. The warranty
gives rise to a separate performance obligation if
a warranty provides a customer with a service in
addition to the assurance that the product complies
with agreed-upon specifications. Therefore, an entity
shall allocate the transaction price to the product and
the service.

Other revenue

Rental income under operating leases is recognised
on a straight-line basis over the term of the relevant
lease.

Interest income is accrued on a time basis on the
principal outstanding at the applicable interest rate.

Processing income is recognised over time when
processing services are provided.

(k) Contract liabilities

A contract liability represents the Group’s obligation to

transfer services to a customer for which the Group has

received consideration (or an amount of consideration is

due) from the customer.
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Income tax

Income tax for the year comprises current tax and deferred
tax.

Current tax is based on the profit or loss from ordinary
activities adjusted for items that are non-assessable or
disallowable for income tax purposes and is calculated using
tax rates that have been enacted or substantively enacted
at the end of reporting period.

Deferred tax is recognised in respect of temporary
differences between the carrying amounts of assets
and liabilities for financial reporting purposes and the
corresponding amounts used for tax purposes. Except for
goodwill and recognised assets and liabilities that affect
neither accounting nor taxable profits, deferred tax liabilities
are recognised for all taxable temporary differences.
Deferred tax assets are recognised to the extent that it is
probable that taxable profits will be available against which
deductible temporary differences can be utilised. Deferred
tax is measured at the tax rates appropriate to the expected
manner in which the carrying amount of the asset or
liability is realised or settled and that have been enacted or
substantively enacted at the end of reporting period.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for taxable temporary
differences arising on investments in subsidiaries, associates
and jointly controlled entities, except where the Group is
able to control the reversal of the temporary difference and
it is probable that the temporary difference will not reverse
in the foreseeable future.

Income taxes are recognised in profit or loss except when
they relate to items recognised in other comprehensive
income in which case the taxes are also recognised in
other comprehensive income or when they relate to items
recognised directly in equity in which case the taxes are
also recognised directly in equity.
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(m) Foreign currency

122

Transactions entered into by group entities in currencies
other than the currency of the primary economic
environment in which they operate(s) (the “functional
currency”) are recorded at the rates ruling when the
transactions occur. Foreign currency monetary assets and
liabilities are translated at the rates ruling at the end of
reporting period. Non-monetary items carried at fair value
that are denominated in foreign currencies are retranslated
at the rates prevailing on the date when the fair value
was determined. Non-monetary items that are measured
in terms of historical cost in a foreign currency are not
retranslated.

Exchange differences arising on the settlement of monetary
items, and on the translation of monetary items, are
recognised in profit or loss in the period in which they
arise. Exchange differences arising on the retranslation of
non-monetary items carried at fair value are included in
profit or loss for the period except for differences arising on
the retranslation of non-monetary items in respect of which
gains and losses are recognised in other comprehensive
income, in which case, the exchange differences are also
recognised in other comprehensive income.

On consolidation, income and expense items of foreign
operations are translated into the presentation currency of
the Group (i.e. RMB and INR) at the average exchange rates
for the year, unless exchange rates fluctuate significantly
during the period, in which case, the rates approximating
to those ruling when the transactions took place are
used. All assets and liabilities of foreign operations are
translated at the rate ruling at the end of reporting period.
Exchange differences arising, if any, are recognised in
other comprehensive income and accumulated in equity as
foreign exchange reserve (attributed to minority interests
as appropriate). Exchange differences recognised in profit
or loss of group entities’ separate financial statements on
the translation of long-term monetary items forming part
of the Group’s net investment in the foreign operation
concerned are reclassified to other comprehensive income
and accumulated in equity as foreign exchange reserve.
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4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(n) Employee benefits

(o)

(i)

(i)

(iii)

Short term employee benefits

Short term employee benefits are employee benefits
(other than termination benefits) that are expected
to be settled wholly before twelve months after the
end of the annual reporting period in which the
employees render the related service. Short term
employee benefits are recognised in the year when the
employees render the related service.

Defined contribution retirement plan

Contributions to defined contribution retirement plans
are recognised as an expense in profit or loss when
the services are rendered by the employees.

Termination benefits

Termination benefits are recognised on the earlier of
when the Group can no longer withdraw the offer
of those benefits and when the Group recognises
restructuring costs involving the payment of
termination benefits.

Impairment of non-financial assets

At the end of each reporting period, the Group reviews

the carrying amounts of the following assets to determine

whether there is any indication that those assets have

suffered an impairment loss or an impairment loss previously

recognised no longer exists or may have decreased:

Property, plant and equipment;

Investment properties under cost model;

Intangible assets ;and

Right-of-use assets.
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(o)

(p)

(a)

Impairment of non-financial assets (Continued)

If the recoverable amount (i.e. the greater of the fair
value less costs of disposal and value in use) of an asset
is estimated to be less than its carrying amount, the
carrying amount of the asset is reduced to its recoverable
amount. An impairment loss is recognised as an expenses
immediately, unless the relevant asset is carried at a
revalued amount under another IFRS, in which case the
impairment loss is treated as a revaluation decrease under
that IFRS.

Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs attributable directly to the acquisition,
construction or production of qualifying assets which
require a substantial period of time to be ready for their
intended use or sale, are capitalised as part of the cost of
those assets. Income earned on temporary investments of
specific borrowings pending their expenditure on those
assets is deducted from borrowing costs capitalised. All
other borrowing costs are recognised in profit or loss in the
period in which they are incurred.

Government grants

Government grants are recognised when there is reasonable
assurance that they will be received and that the Group
will comply with the conditions attaching to them. Grants
that compensate the Group for expenses incurred are
recognised as revenue in profit or loss on a systematic basis
in the same periods in which the expenses are incurred.
Grants that compensate the Group for the cost of an asset
are deducted from the carrying amount of the asset and
consequently are effectively recognised in profit or loss over
the useful life of the asset by way of reduced depreciation
expense.
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4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 4. EASHBE 2

(Continued)

(r) Provisions and contingent liabilities () BERIAREE
Provisions are recognised for liabilities of uncertain timing EASEEBATEHEE LERSHEER
or amount when the Group has a legal or constructive Eif A BE B BUR A B Tl - Bz B A
obligation arising as a result of a past event, which it is AL A IR AT AT - BIlE BE AR A2 T E B )
probable will result in an outflow of economic benefits that B RN B EHEREE

can be reliably estimated.

Where it is not probable that an outflow of economic i SRR RERR 2 H BN & - iz &5
benefits will be required, or the amount cannot be Regrl SEfbst - AlZEERBRBEERIASR
estimated reliably, the obligation is disclosed as a & MR B R = A S RO AIBR AN o
contingent liability, unless the probability of outflow of EABENESAE - TANEHARENHA
economic benefits is remote. Possible obligations, the AREERLFENAERE  NEHEES
existence of which will only be confirmed by the occurrence FABE - EREEBEN RS EKE
or non-occurrence of one or more future events, are also BRAN o

disclosed as contingent liabilities unless the probability of
outflow of economic benefits is remote.

(s) Related parties (s) BEAL
(@) A person or a close member of that person’s family is (@) fWEBUATAL - RIFZALTZZATA
related to the Group if that person: TR BERK B AN E B R
(i) has control or joint control over the Group; () IEHskERIEHAEE
(i) has significant influence over the Group; or (i) HAEBBEEAFESN ok
(i) is a member of key management personnel of (i) AAEEHARABGRAANE
the Group or the Company’s parent. ZEBENE o
(b) An entity is related to the Group if any of the (b) fHFFE TOMERE - BIZEEEA
following conditions apply: R B
()  The entity and the Group are members of the () ZERBEASEBER-—SEHH
same group (which means that each parent, RERBI(ANER]LAA - HEQ
subsidiary and fellow subsidiary is related to the AIRFARWEARKILEES A
others). &) o
(i) One entity is an associate or joint venture of the (il —REBRS EENBERQ
other entity (or an associate or joint venture of a AlgEE X (B S —EBAK
member of a group of which the other entity is a BRRIMEEKE QAR B
member). NAIHEEDE) -
(ili) Both entities are joint ventures of the same third (i) MREBHRA-—F=7NA&
party. B o
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4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 4. EASHBE 2

(Continued)
(s) Related parties (Continued) (s) BEAL(E)
(b)  (Continued) (b) (%)

(iv) One entity is a joint venture of a third entity and vy " REBRE=AEBNGE

the other entity is an associate of the third entity. T mME—EBARR-—F=
HEENEEATF

(v) The entity is a post-employment benefit plan for (v) gﬁ@?—%zﬁﬁliéﬁizﬁﬁlﬁ?ﬁ
the benefit of the employees of the Group or an B B BB E B M & i sk FO B
entity related to the Group. Big@FEtal o

(vi) The entity is controlled or jointly controlled by a (vi) EEX@FTEEATERSHE
person identified in (a). Rz o

(vii) A person identified in (a)(i) has significant (vii) @OFTIEATHERBEEANT
influence over the entity or is a member of key EHXBZER(IZERER
management personnel of the entity (or of a AMEZEEEKS -
parent of the entity).

(viii) The entity, or any member of a group of which (viii) E &8 - = H PR & E A E (AT K
it is a part, provides key management personnel SREEXEEERRRESE
services to the group or to the group’s parent. FTEEBABRE -

Close members of the family of a person are those family — B AR RKENX B 5 TR R E 58

members who may be expected to influence, or be MR SHHRAIEZALTHZZALHER

influenced by, that person in their dealings with the entity REERKE - B :

and include:

() that person’s children and spouse or domestic partner; () BATHFEZREBHIKERS

(i) children of that person’s spouse or domestic partner; (il FATREIREMENFL : &
and

(i) dependents of that person or that person’s spouse or (i) EATHZATHEBKEHEH
domestic partner. XEAN e
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CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS
AND KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION
UNCERTAINTY

The preparation of consolidated financial statements in
conformity with IFRS requires the directors to make judgements,
estimates and assumptions about the carrying amounts of assets
and liabilities that are not readily apparent from other sources.
The estimates and associated assumptions are based on historical
experience and other factors that are considered to be relevant.
Actual results differ from these estimates.

The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an
ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting estimates are recognised
in the period in which the estimate is revised if the revision
affects only that period, or in the period of the revision and
future periods if the revision affects both current and future
periods.

The directors have considered the development, selection
and disclosure of the Group’s critical accounting policies and
estimates. The estimates and assumptions that have a significant
risk of causing a material adjustment to the carrying amounts of
assets or liabilities are as follows:

(i) Useful lives and depreciation of property, plant
and equipment and investment properties

The Group determines the estimated useful lives and
related depreciation charges of its property, plant and
equipment and investment properties. These estimates
are based on the historical experience of the actual useful
lives of property, plant and equipment and investment
properties of similar nature and functions. The Group will
increase the depreciation charge where useful lives are less
than previously estimated lives, and will write-off or write-
down technically obsolete or non-strategic assets that have
been abandoned or sold. Actual economic lives may differ
from estimated useful lives. Periodic review could result in
a change in depreciable lives and therefore depreciation
charges in future periods.
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5. EEERHAM KA IEERSR

ZEERIR

REMEBRBRUBEREEANGEVHEREE
KEFHEMIRTABNEERBBENERER
BEELHE - 5 RERER - At MR /KRR
DERNBELRLEMERSEBNRE - &
PR RATBER BN UL F A5 ©

ZEG RBARREFERT - BRI
A WA BERI R BB Aara A - Al
EZHAEER  MARBITZEI A RIAEK
HifE - BITE(E AT HARE B bAf& BRI e o

EZEERASEFTEGHBUR R 2%
B EEBREE SERFHEEXAGRKRAE
EHERARZ F 2/ A M2 bt RREN
T

() "% BERREBURKRENEZT
ERFEHRITE
AEBEEENE  BERRBUARKED
E2 AR EAFEHARMEBETERS -
ZEHATRBEE MR 2 M
5 B R A R B W) SR B R AT R R
ZBEKRMEL - WA ERFHERZA
ZERE AIAREReRSITER
X - WK AR E 2 B Bk
FESR B B B WS SMURL - BRRAEE FHIR]
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5. CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS
AND KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION
UNCERTAINTY (continued)

(i) Net realisable value of inventories

5, EEGHERATTIEEREE
ZEERR#)

(i) FEZTSHFE

128

(iii)

Net realisable value of inventories is the estimated selling
price in the ordinary course of business, less estimated costs
of completion and variable selling expenses. These estimates
are based on the current market condition and the historical
experience of manufacturing and selling products of similar
nature. It could change significantly as a result of changes
in customer taste and competitor actions in response to any
industry downturn. The directors reassess the estimations at
the end of each reporting period.

Allowances for trade receivables

The Group uses a provision of matrix to calculate ECLs for
trade and notes receivables. The provision rates are based
on days past due for groupings of various debtors that
have similar loss patterns. The provision matrix is based
on management’s estimate of the lifetime expected credit
losses to be incurred, which is estimated by taking into
account the credit loss experience, ageing of overdue fee
receivables, customers’ repayment history and customers’
financial position and an assessment of both the current
and forecast general economic conditions, all of which
involve a significant degree of management judgement. The
provision of ECLs is sensitive to changes in circumstances
and of forecast general economic conditions. The
information about the ECLs and the Group’s trade and
notes receivables are disclosed in Note 21. If the financial
condition of the customers or the forecast economic
conditions were to deteriorate, actual loss allowance would
be higher than estimated.

FEZAERFEDNEEERGEEPIE
2 (et EER AT TR A J o] & &
P o M EMAET THIRIRIR I o KR LT
BreERMEEMBEKRMEDL -
TeFRERFRREEFHFREMTE
RRFMETBIMAEAZ( - EENER
SHREH A -

FEWE 5 mIE 2 B
AEEERBRBREERGERKE SRR
kKRB FREEEE - BEXKRA
BRUBIEE RN T RIER AR R 28
BHFE - BREEELDENEEEHKE
EHMFRABREEFR 2 GEE &5 R
EEERER BARERRKIARE
B ERRRENE P MR & Y B B &
BRRBEERR L HEREE  BFF
B REARENE R E HE - BHE
EEEREHRBEN LR BEEENR
NEBHYR - FHERREREEENENRK
AEE W E 5 308 R ERRER KT 21
WE - 1P B AR S TRR B
KBt - AEREBEEEESNMEE -



5. CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS
AND KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION
UNCERTAINTY (continued)

(iv) Impairment of non-financial assets

(v)

The Group assesses whether there are any indicators of
impairment for property, plant and equipment, investment
properties, intangible assets and right-of-use assets at the
end of each reporting period. These assets are tested for
impairment when there are indicators that the carrying
amounts may not be recoverable. An impairment exists
when the carrying value of an asset or a cash-generating
unit exceeds its recoverable amount, which is the higher of
its fair value less costs of disposal and its value in use. The
calculation of the fair value less costs of disposal is based
on available data from binding sales transactions in an arm’s
length transaction of similar assets or observable market
prices less incremental costs for disposing of the asset.
When value in use calculations are undertaken, the directors
estimate the expected future cash flows from the asset or
cash-generating unit and choose a suitable discount rate in
order to calculate the present value of those cash flows.

Deferred tax assets

Deferred tax assets are recognised for all unused tax losses
to the extent that it is probable that taxable profit will be
available against which the losses can be utilised. Significant
judgement is required to determine the amount of deferred
tax assets that can be recognised, based upon the likely
timing and the level of future taxable profits together with
future tax planning strategies.

Further details on deferred taxes are disclosed in Note 30.

'"VESON HOLDINGS LIMITED

HIEERBERLE

ANNUAL REPORT %R 2020

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

RE RS R AR MR

For the year ended 31 December 2020 # %2020 12431 H 1 F/Z

5. EEEHERAGTTREERE
ZEERIE @)

(iv) FEmEERE

(v)

AEEERZHREARFEDE BER
R BREDE  BVEERERAEEE
ERHRERMBELR - ZFEEERT
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EEBIREE
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5. CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS

AN

D KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION

UNCERTAINTY (continued)

(vi)

(vii)

130

Control over Cybertech Optiemus Holdings
Limited (“Cybertech”)

The Group owns 50% equity interests in Cybertech. For the
purpose of assessing whether or not the Group has control
over Cybertech and its subsidiaries (collectively “Cybertech
Group”), the directors considered whether the Group has
the ability to direct the relevant activities of Cybertech
Group. In making this judgement, the directors considered
that the relevant activities of Cybertech are directed by the
board of directors and all resolutions of directors’ meeting
are passed by simple majority. Since the Group is entitled
to appoint 3 out of 5 directors into the board of directors
of Cybertech in accordance with investment agreement,
the Group dominates the board of directors of Cybertech
and is able to direct the relevant activities of Cybertech
Group. The directors of the Company were therefore in
the opinion that Group has control over Cybertech Group
during the year despite its shareholding therein was
50% and Cybertech Group were qualified as subsidiaries
of the Company under IFRS 10 “Consolidated Financial
Statements” for the year ended 31 December 2020.

Estimation of incremental borrowing rate for
lease liabilities

The Group cannot readily determine the interest rate
implicit in a lease, and therefore, it uses an incremental
borrowing rate (“IBR”) to measure lease liabilities. The IBR
is the rate of interest that the Group would have to pay
to borrow over a similar term, and with a similar security,
the funds necessary to obtain an asset of a similar value to
the right-of-use assets in a similar economic environment.
The IBR therefore reflects what the Group “would have to
pay”, which requires estimation when no observable rates
are available (such as for subsidiaries that do not enter into
financing transactions) or when it needs to be adjusted to
reflect the terms and conditions of the lease. The Group
estimates the IBR using observable inputs (such as market
interest rates) when available and is required to make
certain entity-specific estimates.

5. EEEHERATTREERE
ZEERR 4

(vi) ¥Cybertech Optiemus Holdings

Limited ([ Cybertech ]) Z & 4l #

7N £ [ ¥ 5 Cybertech#)50% % # - & &F
fEAREE RS HCybertech & H Bt B A &
(# 78 Cybertechf B |) E G = - &
EEERAEL B ZE S 8 #48 ~Cybertech
SEMEMEEE - NEL L HIE - =
=R BCybertecht 1R ESI M ES 15
T BEEERNAIBRARREUBESH
AR ARAEEGRIRBRAREERE
CybertechZEE €@ A RESHH =4 -
It 7N 82 B A Cybertech® E & b {5 = E iy
iz - I §E #0945 RCybertechss B ) #8 B8 &
B Alt ARREERR  BREAEE
1 5 Cybertech® B50% /% # - (B A FE
MEEAERZEGIE - BREBEEERM RS
HRIZE105R] 4 & BF B 3k | - Cybertech
EEREZE2020F12A31B L FEFE
BRAEBAATINMHBAR °

(vi) EEHERE 2 BEEARF =X

AEBELESETHEANME S HF
FoEip EREEERMKR(TEER
FMEDAEHERE - LEBRA X
RASERBLEEIRE SR SEGEE M
EEEBEMOZEE - MABRLER M
EBEOSMEEARTESENZFE -
At - BEEKF KRR T NEE &
IR E . EEABENNEE(WAH
VEITUBERGZMBARME)XE
TR A 1T B A IR BRAH & 2 18R R K 16k
B - RIZAEHRFIR G5 - ERBRBA
BEA AR AEEERATBEERARE
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6. TURNOVER AND SEGMENT INFORMATION 6. EXBEEk 5 HER

(a) Turnover (a) &%

Turnover represents gross invoiced sales, less returns and
trade discounts.

The following table provides information about trade
receivables and contract liabilities from contracts with
customers.

ERBEREEHERBRERERE ST
il

TREHREAERKESTBARKEETFA

HzaaBEzE -
31 December 31 December
2020 2019
20205 20194
12A31H 12H31H
RMB’000 RMB’000

AR¥TR ARBET T

Trade and notes receivables
Contract liabilities EHBE

W5 5 5k 0A I R W R 1%

1,976,887 2,329,774
21,353 28,733

The contract assets primarily relate to the Group’s rights
to consideration for work completed but not billed
at the reporting date on revenue. The contract assets
are transferred to receivables when the rights become
unconditional. This usually occurs when the Group provides
the invoice to the customer.

The contract liabilities mainly relate to the advance
consideration received from customers. RMB28,733,000 of
the contract liabilities as of 31 December 2019 has been
recognised as revenue for the year ended 31 December
2020 from performance obligations satisfied in previous
year.

The Group has applied the practical expedient to its sales
contracts for lithium-ion battery modules and related
accessories for mobile phones and digital electronic
appliances and therefore the above information does not
include information about revenue that the Group will be
entitled to when it satisfies the remaining performance
obligations under the contracts that had an original
expected duration of one year or less.

BMBEETREAKEHE TR TIFER
RENENBR  ERRE BB E AR
SR - REFKSEIGHR  ANEE
BRERKFA - B —RRAEER
EFRARRREL -

EXHEBEFZHKEIRERFHENRE
B HE2019F12831B 28408 E
AR #£28,733,0007T B HER R ELE20204F
NRANBIEFEARTFEEKBENSR
FTRER ) Y 55

AEBE A TRE AR TR
BEETES NN T oA RAME
HHHEAK Bt FRERTREA
EEERITARRAET B A—FRE
B2 & BT RSB OE AR
WS B -
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6. TURNOVER AND SEGMENT INFORMATION
(Continued)

(b)

132

Reportable segments

The Group has adopted IFRS 8 “Operating Segments”
with effect from 1 January 2009. IFRS 8 requires operating
segments to be identified on the basis of internal reports
about components of the Group that are regularly reviewed
by the chief operating decision makers in order to allocate
resources to segments and to assess their performance.

The Group is engaged in the business of original design
manufacturing (“ODM business”) as well as bare battery cells
("Bare battery cells business”). The chief operating decision
makers (i.e. the Company’s directors) review the segment
information of these businesses and based on it to allocate
resources to segments and to assess their performance. The
Group’s reportable segments are set out below:

ODM business — Manufacture and supply of lithium-ion
battery modules, power banks, motive battery and related
accessories for branded mobile phone and tablets and EV
manufacturers within and outside China.

Bare battery cell business — Manufacture and sale of
lithium-ion bare battery cells for mobile phones, tablets and
power banks.

Others — Sales of raw materials and work-in-progress and
processing income.

6.

EEEE D EHBER 2

(b) ¥R AR

AREB AN T 120094 1 51 B E8 2 BIFR
WS =R FESR R E 5 E | o BIFRES
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6. TURNOVER AND SEGMENT INFORMATION 6. EXZRo3ER =)
(Continued)

(b) Reportable segments (Continued) (b) BIF|DE(E)

On 30 December 2019, the Group entered into a trademark
transfer agreement with Mr. Fang Jin, the controlling
shareholder, pursuant to which the parties agreed a total
of 15 “SCUD”, “FREM," and “"SCUDFRERR" trademarks
and related intellectual property rights shall be transferred
by the Group to Mr. Fang lJin for a total consideration of
RMB3,000,000. Upon the completion of the trademark
transfer, the Group shall cease to have any right in
respect of such trademarks and rights and accordingly, the
“Own-brand business” segment was terminated from 30
December 2019. The trademarks and related intellectual
property rights were internally generated and did not form
a cash-generating unit on their own. As such the trademark
transfer did not account for as a Discontinued Operation.
Hence, no profit or loss were presented under the “Own-
brand business” segment for the year ended 31 December
2020.

The Group reclassified the associated assets and liabilities
to the “ODM business” segment from the “Own-brand
business” segment in order to fully utilise the production
capacity of the Group. As a result, no assets and liabilities
were presented under the “Own-brand business” segment
as at 31 December 2020 and 2019.

During the year ended 31 December 2020, in the context
of fine tuning the Group’s performance measurement,
the allocation of certain staff salaries and allowances
and office expenses among the segments were adjusted
retrospectively in the year ended 31 December 2019.
Accordingly, segment profit of the ODM business and Own-
brand business in 2019 have been represented with an
increase of RMB26,864,000 and RMB6,401,000 respectively.
These expenses were reallocated to other segment and
unallocated expenses with amounts of RMB12,248,000 and
RMB21,017,000 respectively in 2019.

201912 308 » A& B 24 Jg J 3B
FeEEUAIEEREDGZ B &
FREAREE K S KI5@ESCUD] -~ [ 7R
FE R | RISCUDTR FE & | 7 13 JA K 48 8 &0
BEEEBETHSAE  BREAARE
3,000,0007T ° R EKEIRERE - K&
BT EREEZ SRR ASREES A
W ERER - Bt - [ BAmEER D
£ H2019F12 A30B £ & 1F - ZEBEE
RABEMBERETRASESE  HAFW
THEKRIRSELEBN - At - ZEIZHEE
RIVWEB AR IEAE & 27 - B - #122020
F12A31BLEFERR BB MEER IS
HT2%)18% -

REEBBKEEEERABAI BEEME
2755 1 HIRERIODMETS D30 - LR H
FMAREEMESE - Bt - M20205F &
2019 12A31B RN BEE REER 5
HBT2VEMNEERARE -

& £2020F 128318 Lt F E £ M H
REEREREENERT - HEHZ2019
FNRANBIEEFESHEIEETEL
FEREUMURHABERET T BHH
o At 2019FODME B K B B
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L2019 ZEBRAWENSEE HM
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12,248,0007T 2 AR#21,017,0007T ©
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6. TURNOVER AND SEGMENT INFORMATION 6. EXHERoHER #)

(Continued)
(b) Reportable segments (Continued) (b) RO ER(E)
Segment information about these businesses is presented as ERZEXEBNOIERZ5IT ¢
follows:
Segment revenue and results TEBY R FEAE
2020
ODM Bare battery
business cell business Others Total
ODME% ERER Hity Fohy
RMB’'000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETRT AR®Tn AR¥Tn AR®Tx
Total Turnover BERE 6,819,135 206,389 809,507 7,835,031
Less: Intersegment sales o AEHE (1,073,593) (21,691) (523,176)  (1,618,460)
Turnover EEE 5,745,542 184,698 286,331 6,216,571
Segment profit D ERF 22,215 9,210 6,195 37,620
Unallocated income AOBIA
- Bank interest income —RITFIBMA 9,850
— Others —Hith 4,653
Unallocated expenses APEHZ
— Auditor’s remuneration —ZEM e (2,045)
- Legal and professional fees —EEREEER (1,547)
- Staff costs —BIA (26,795)
— Exchange loss - ERBX (9,481)
— Finance costs — BB (40,924)
- Others —Hfb (11,234)
Loss before income tax %S R AT E R (39,903)
Income tax expense kG ilib3 (17,579)
Loss for the year AEEER (57,482)
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6. TURNOVER AND SEGMENT INFORMATION 6. EXHERoHER #)

(Continued)

(b) Reportable segments (Continued)

(b) HR¥RDAR(E)

Segment revenue and results (Continued) DB o R EAE (1E)
2019
Own-brand  Bare battery
ODM business business  cell business Others Total
BE
ODMET7 migE BNER Hith Fo
RMB'000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB’000
ARETT ARETT AREFTT AR%®Tr ARETR
Total Turnover BEER 8,106,445 44,704 310,321 508,945 8,970,415
Less: Intersegment sales W NEPIEE (1,235,981) - (25,827) (313,404)  (1,575,212)
Turnover EE 6,870,464 44,704 284,494 195,541 7,395,203
Segment profit/(loss) HEaF,/ (BE)
(represented) (g =51) 123,704 9,809 (11,492) 1,423 123,444
Unallocated income AAERA
- Bank interest income —RITHBUA 11,182
— Others —Hfth 6,383
Unallocated expenses APEAZ
- Auditor’s remuneration — S (2,112)
— Legal and professional fees —FEREXER (2,583)
- Staff costs (represented) —BIRAKEET) (24,607)
— Exchange loss - EREBX (344)
— Finance costs — BB (48,274)
— Others (represented) —Hh(&E5) (6,862)
Profit before income tax % 55 B A 56,227
Income tax expense FrieFiA % (7,531)
Profit for the year AERGF 48,696
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6. TURNOVER AND SEGMENT INFORMATION 6.

(Continued)

(b) Reportable segments (Continued)

EEEE D EHBER 2

(b) H¥RDAR(E)

Segment assets and liabilities DEHEEREE
2020
ODM Bare battery
business cell business Total
ODME# BENEK #at
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBTT AREBTRT ARETR
Segment assets DEEE 4,006,712 226,659 4,233,371
Unallocated corporate assets ROBEARIEE
— Property, plant and equipment — W - HERRE 264,430
— Investment properties — BB 56,068
- Bank balances and cash —RITEBREE S 2,212
— Prepayments, deposits and —TENHIE BE& Rk
other receivables H fh fE U GRIE 11,170
— Amounts due from related parties — e BAE A L F0E 23,555
— Others —Hh 53,167
Consolidated total assets A BEMRE 4,643,973
Segment liabilities SEaE 3,455,355 144,505 3,599,860
Unallocated corporate liabilities KOBEARIAE
— Other payables — Efb e F0E 13,531
— Amounts due to directors — B ESEHIA 36
— Deferred tax liabilities —REFIERE 5,360
— Others —HAth 645
Consolidated total liabilities e BaERs 3,619,432
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6. TURNOVER AND SEGMENT INFORMATION 6. EXHERoHER #)

(Continued)
(b) Reportable segments (Continued) (b) BIF|DE(E)
Segment assets and liabilities (Continued) TEHEERBRE(E)
2019
Bare battery cell
ODM business business Total
ODME7% BEDER st
RMB'000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETTT ARETTT ARBFT
Segment assets DEREE 4,813,850 210,468 5,024,318
Unallocated corporate assets ROBAFEE
— Property, plant and "% BER
equipment B 8,280
- Investment properties —REME 61,141
- Bank balances and cash —RITHB RS 2,242
— Prepayments, deposits and —EFE ek
other receivables H el R 18,732
- Others —Hfth 68,487
Consolidated total assets SAEERSE 5,183,200
Segment liabilities HEERE 3,931,773 149,108 4,080,881
Unallocated corporate liabilites KD EAFE &
— Trade payables —B S ENRIE 15,929
- Other payables — EL At (A RIE 5,061
— Amounts due to directors —ENEEHE 409
— Deferred tax liabilities —BERIBERE 5,360
— Others —Hft 1,034
Consolidated total liabilities mARERRE 4,108,674
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6. TURNOVER AND SEGMENT INFORMATION 6.

(Continued)

(c)

138

Other information

(c)

EEEE D EHBER 2

Ht g xR
2020
ODM Bare battery

business cell business Others Total
ODME7# ETER Hit @t
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARETR ARBTT ARTR AR%ET:n
Depreciation of property, plant and equipment W% BERRENE 62,843 4,067 27 66,937
Depreciation of investment properties REMERE - - 5,073 5,073
Depreciation of right-of-use assets BREESENE 3,103 2,958 347 6,408
Interest on lease liabilities REAEFE 1,430 417 125 2,032
Loss on disposal of property, LEWZ  BERZXEEE
plant and equipment 20 7 - 27
Write-off of property, plant and equipment 0% BERRENRS 1,050 479 - 1,529
Amortisation of intangible assets BB ESH 1,672 19 2 1,693
Impairment loss recognised on trade and notes receivables 5tEUTE S 700E R ENE
ALAEER 19,053 8,620 - 27,673
Impairment loss recognised on prepayments, deposits and  BtFE(UE - &4 RAMEKFIERA
other receivables MEEE 4,065 1 - 4,076
Reversal of impairment loss on trade and notes receivables BE#Z 2 ERE F7E N ENZEHE
previously recognised BEAE 3) (5.335) - (5.338)
Reversal of impairment loss on prepayments, deposits and  BEHER 2 BFUE - K4 kAR
other receivables previously recognised BREEEEE (93) (2.474) - (2.,567)
Write-off of inventories FEHE 3,929 - - 3,929
Reversal of write down of inventories FEMHER (375) (7,901) - (8.276)
Research and development costs HEER 93,405 7,894 - 101,299
Income tax expense/(credit) mERRY/(E%) 19,532 (3,081) 1,128 17,579
Additions to property, plant and equipment % BERRERE 419,552 335 - 419,887
Additions to intangible assets BYEERE 2,500 - - 2,500
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6. TURNOVER AND SEGMENT INFORMATION 6. EXHERoHER #)

(Continued)
(c) Other information (Continued) (c) HERE)
2019
ODM  Own-brand  Bare battery
business business  cell business Others Total
BE
ODMET mIEET BOER L &5t
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARETT  ARBTT ARETT ARETR ARET:
Depreciation of property, plant and equipment NE - BERRERTE 31,848 14,086 5,577 124 51,635
Depreciation of investment properties RENENE - - - 5,047 5,047
Depreciation of right-of-use assets FREEENE 13,560 4,683 2,279 332 20,854
Interest on lease liabilities REEEFIR 877 149 382 45 1,453
(Gain)/loss on disposal of property, HENE  BE kX
plant and equipment (hiz) /B8 (5,426) 6) 2,200 - (3,232)
Write-off of property, plant and equipment NE  BRERRERH 3,197 524 196 - 3917
Amortisation of intangible assets EYAEEH 1,041 40 19 = 1,100
Impairment loss recognised on trade and notes  FHEREZ 5B L ERERE
receivables AL REBR 1,269 21,462 33,845 - 56,576
Impairment loss recognised on prepayments, FEAFE - Re REMEKZE
deposits and other receivables BRLRESE 14,630 5,737 274 - 20,641
Reversal of impairment loss on trade and notes ~ BAEAZ EWE AR ENS
receivables previously recognised BRESERR (15) (562) (3,436) = (4,013)
Reversal of impairment loss on prepayments, BERAZBNZTE - R RkEM
deposits and other receivables previously W E R BB
recognised (21,506) (2,067) (205) - (23,778)
Write-off of inventories e 18,862 2,163 - - 21,025
Research and development costs HEER 94,526 7,069 12,187 - 113,782
Income tax (credit)/expense FEH(EE) /Ax (11,618) 21,141 (3,365) 1373 7,531
Additions to property, plant and equipment % - BEREERE 94,376 146,987 2,056 - 243,419
Additions to intangible assets B EERE 1,656 - - - 1,656
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6. TURNOVER AND SEGMENT INFORMATION 6.
(Continued)

EEEE D EHBER 2

(d) TEEMZEXE
KEAREEEIZERIOBEXENT

(d) Turnover from major products

The Group's disaggregated turnover from its major products
were as follows:

2020 2019
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR%T ARBTT
(re-presented)
(&%)
Turnover recognised at a point in time: AR — & %L ©
ODM business: ODME :
Mobile phone batteries FHEM 5,143,802 6,044,842
Power banks BEIEIR 426,480 787,669
Tablet batteries TR B ES 50,808 -
Communication backup power banks BIBEBOBRHEIR 54,133 399
Medical equipment batteries BEREEMN 16,475 6,073
Others Hit 53,844 31,481
ODM business ODMEETS 5,745,542 6,870,464
Own-brand business: BEmBER
Power banks BEIER - 18,137
Mobile phone batteries FHE - 14,050
Others EAh - 12,517
Own-brand business BHE mEER - 44,704
Bare battery cell business: BEEK:
Lithium-ion bare battery cells PSRBT 184,698 284,494
Others Hit 262,633 174,350
6,192,873 7,374,012
Turnover recognised over time: E—BREEARRNEEE
Processing income Ty A 23,698 21,191
Total turnover FEL—E 6,216,571 7,395,203




Lo

6. TURNOVER AND SEGMENT INFORMATION
(Continued)

(e) Geographical information

(f)

Analysis of the Group’s turnover and results as well as
analysis of the Group’s carrying amount of each relevant
segment’s assets and additions to property, plant and
equipment and intangible assets by geographical market
have not been presented as they are substantially generated
from or situated in the PRC.

Turnover contributed by the subsidiary in India was minimal
to the Group's turnover due to the impact of the national
lockdown ordered by the Indian Government on 24 March
2020 as a preventive measure against the COVID-19
pandemic.

Information about major customers

Revenue from major customers, each of them accounted for
10% or more of the Group's revenue, are set out below:

'"VESON HOLDINGS LIMITED

HIEERBERLE

ANNUAL REPORT %R 2020

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

RE RS R AR MR

For the year ended 31 December 2020 # %2020 12431 H 1 F/Z

6. EEXHERDHER (2

(e) HHEER

(f)

AEEWE2F BB IHE DN AKE
EEBREEDTURAEE G E D FH
HREERAEME  BERRERETY
BEMNKREENT  RESEBAZHR
hEELSMRPE -

AR ENE T R202063 248 T E2H
484 {E R FEHCOVID-19Z BRI FE [ #E
Mo ST E HEWBRARERAEE
BHAEBEMOEEREM S MTRE -

FEEFEH
REFERFZkRZ(FESMAEEK
#=10% 3 A B)EFIanT -

2020 2019

RMB’000 RMB’000

AR¥ET ARBT T

Customer A ZEA 2,189,957 2,950,171
Customer B =FB 1,311,633 888,381
Customer C BFEC TEAN/A 776,427

! The corresponding revenue did not contribute over
10% of the total revenue of the Group.

TOHEBRSEYREAEEKRSEAE
10%A I e
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7. OTHER REVENUE 7. HfttWzs

2020 2019
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBT T ARBTT
Government grants BT EEA 10,595 38,172
Interest income PN 10,409 11,182
Sales of moulds THERZA 4,104 12,337
Compensation from suppliers R e E 551 44

Reversal of impairment loss on trade and BITHER 2 BIE 5508 kB E R
notes receivables previously recognised EE1ERER 5,338 4,013

Reversal of impairment loss on prepayments, @fEHER Y TENEIE - S K H 4D FEUK
deposits and other receivables previously B R B B RO

recognised 2,567 23,778
Reversal of write down of inventories FE MR E O 8,276 -
Gain on disposal of property, plant and ey« mENRE 2 WS

equipment - 3,232
Gain on disposal of trademarks HeEmEE s s - 2,610
Recovery of prepayments to suppliers RS 2 TEHE e R SR IE U ]

previously written-off - 2,229
Sundry income FEIERA 4,193 359

46,033 97,956
The government grants represent subsidies received from the PRC BURERETE B P B BT U R 2 5 BE - DARRET AR
Government to appreciate the industrial contribution to the city, RAZHEZENBRARYZTAIELNESR
substantial amount of export trade and technology development R TELAMBRALDERRMER - %5
incurred by the Company’s wholly-owned PRC-based subsidiaries. R I AT AT AE A AR AR AR AT

There are no unfulfilled conditions relating to the grants.
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8. (LOSS)/PROFIT BEFORE INCOME TAX 8. BRETBFHAI(EE) RA
This is arrived at after charging/(crediting): B0k (GFA)THIIER ¢
2020 2019
RMB’'000 RMB’'000

ARBFR ARKTT

Auditor’s remuneration: ZEAN S

— audit service — 2 RS 1,600 1,849

— review service —EBRE 267 263

— other service — HAth R 7% 178 -
Depreciation of property, plant and ME - BB RREITE

equipment (including depreciation (BIERHAZEE R RSN

recorded in research and development e AR 3,882,0007T

costs of RMB3,882,000 (20194 : A¥6,731,0007T))

(2019: RMB6,731,000)) 66,937 51,635
Depreciation of investment properties TEMENE 5,073 5,047
Depreciation of right-of-use assets FREEENE 6,408 20,854
Amortisation of intangible assets E A 1,693 1,100
Cost of inventories recognised as expenses RERSZ ZFERA 5,812,060 6,850,287
Cost of processing income INTUAZ B AR 18,565 14,458
Operating lease rentals for office premises  #AZEKLAER S 21,600 4,674
Research and development costs e & A 101,299 113,782
Staff costs (including staff costs recorded BTHRA(BIETAMEEBRMNE T

in research and development costs of BN AR #37,475,0007T (20194 :

RMB37,475,000 (2019: RMB49,605,000)) AR#49,605,0007T))

(Note 10) (M$3E10) 576,451 638,487
Net foreign exchange loss T 5 B F 5 9,481 344

9. OTHER OPERATING EXPENSES 9. Hh K&
2020 2019
RMB’000 RMB’000

ARBFR ARBT T

Impairment loss recognised on trade and TR E Z BN EREIEERZ

notes receivables BEE R 27,705 56,576
Impairment loss recognised on prepayments, FETENFUIE © 2% M H At fE N IERE R
deposits and other receivables ZIREEE 4,076 20,641
Write-off of inventories TFE 3,929 21,025
Write-off of property, plant and equipment %1% - 5 K& &S 1,529 3,917
Loss on disposal of property, plant and HEWE « BB REEEE
equipment 27 -
Sundry expenses HEAX 268 3,798
37,534 105,957
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10. STAFF COSTS 10. ET A
2020 2019
RMB’'000 RMB’'000
ARET T AREEF T
Directors’ remuneration (Note 11) BEME (M) 3,960 3,702
Other staff costs Hih 8 TR 543,149 595,537
Retirement benefits scheme contributions RRB T B R 29,342 39,248

576,451 638,487

11. DIRECTORS’ AND EMPLOYEES' REMUNERATION 11. EEREEEM

(a) Directors’ emoluments disclosed pursuant to Section 383 (@) WHBEEAEDBIKEH(E622E)5383F &
of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance (Cap. 622) and NA(BMBEFNmER)ROI(F622G
the Companies (Disclosure of information about Benefits of ZIWENESMET ¢

Directors) Regulation (Cap. 622G) is as follows:

2020 2019
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®TF T ARET T

Salaries, housing allowances, other HN - BEERY  Hi)EE R

allowances and benefits in kind EYEF 1,768 1,300
Fees ik 2,172 2,378
Other emoluments: HAb & :
Retirement benefits scheme contributions IRIRAE AT B LR 20 24

3,960 3,702

144



11. DIRECTORS’ AND EMPLOYEES’ REMUNERATION

'"VESON HOLDINGS LIMITED

HIEERBERLE

ANNUAL REPORT %R 2020

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

RE RS R AR MR

For the year ended 31 December 2020 # %2020 12431 H 1 F/Z

(Continued)

(b)

Details of emoluments paid by the Group to the directors

are as follows:

M.EEREEFHFMH 2

(b) AEEREEX(MOMESFBENOT

2020
Salaries,
housing
allowances,
other Retirement
allowances benefits
and benefits in scheme Total
kind Fees  contributions  emoluments
M- ERB
A Hi
)= 1:954 RIER
ENRER He TEMR MemsE
RMB'000 RMB000 RMB000 RMB'000
ARBF T AREF T AR®T T ARBT R
Feng Ming Zhu BT 834 213 10 1,057
Lian Xiu Qin BAE 934 213 10 1,157
Hou Li {3V - 160 - 160
Heng Ja Wei Victor MR 4 - 320 - 320
Lam Yau Yiu WRIE - 320 - 320
Cheung Wai Kwok Gary KA
(appointed on 19 May 2020) (R202055 R 19HEZ(T) - 198 - 198
Loke Yu BE AR
(appointed on 1 September (R202059 A1 REZE)
2020) - 160 - 160
Ho Chung Tai Raymond &%
(term of appointment expired on  ({EHAR 202046 A 16 B &)
16 June 2020) - 428 - 428
Wong Chi Wing FEE
(term of appointment expired on  ({FEAA202046 A 16 B J&)
16 June 2020) - 160 - 160
1,768 2,172 20 3,960
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11. DIRECTORS’ AND EMPLOYEES’ REMUNERATION 11. EEREEHEN»)
(Continued)
(b) Details of emoluments paid by the Group to the directors (b) AEBRESIZNMMESFBENT (&)
are as follows: (Continued)
2019
Salaries,
housing
allowances,
other Retirement
allowances benefits
and benefits in scheme Total
kind Fees  contributions  emoluments
M- BE
AL Bt
R R RKRER
EDER ik BEESA it
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETTT ARETTT ARBFTT ARBTTT
Feng Ming Zhu SERT 600 211 12 823
Lian Xiu Qin BHE 700 211 12 923
Hou Li (z3va = 160 - 160
Ho Chung Tai Raymond BFEES - 845 - 845
Heng Ja Wei Victor TR 4 - 317 - 317
Lam Yau Yiu MR R - 317 - 317
Wong Chi Wing B - 317 - 317
1,300 2,378 24 3,702
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(Continued)

(0

(d)

The five highest paid individuals include two directors for
the year ended 31 December 2020 (2019: three), details of
whose emoluments are set out above.

The emoluments of the remaining three (2019: two) non-
director highest paid individuals are as follows:

(c)

M.EEREEFHFMH 2

B E2020F12831BIEEE A2 55
FEALTBERZ(2019F : =R)EF -
W EM S FFBER £ »

HEHE=2(2019%F - WA ) IFESEH S 56
ATBSAT

2020 2019
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBTR ARBTT

Salaries, housing allowances, other B - BEEEL - EfbEEL

allowances and benefits in kind KEYEH 3,489 2,720

Retirement benefits scheme RIREFIET B HEER
contributions 42 32
Bonus e - -
3,531 2,752

The emoluments of the remaining non-director, highest
paid individuals are within the following bands:

HEHRFFEERSFMA LMD FIAT
#HE

2020 2019
Nil to RMB889,200 (equivalent to Nil ~ ZZ&E AR #¥889,200c(HHENREE

to HK$1,000,000) 1,000,000 7T) 2 1
RMB889,201 to RMB1,778,400 AR889,201TE AR1,778,4007T

(equivalent to HK$1,000,001 to (81,000,001 L=

HK$2,000,000) 2,000,000/ 7T) - =
RMB1,778,401 to RMB2,223,000 ANER#1,778,401 &2 AR#E2,223,000

(equivalent to HK$2,000,001 to JL (&7 2,000,0018CE

HK$2,500,000) 2,500,000/ 7T) 1 1

During both years, no emoluments were paid by the Group to
the five highest paid individuals (including both directors and
employees) or any directors of the Company as an inducement
to join or upon joining the Group or as compensation for loss
of office. None of the directors has waived or agreed to waive
any emoluments during both years.

(d)

RMEFEAR  AEEHBERNARZSH
AT(BREERER)AARAERNES
SERBE - ERRSIIMAREE LN
AR B IR - RERBERAOME o
RAEFERAYEEEHREXRBHESL
A
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ITVAAS

12.

13.

148

FINANCE COSTS 12. ®E KA
2020 2019
RMB’'000 RMB’'000
AR¥TR ARBT T
Interest on bank borrowings RITIE R AL 31,896 24,891
Interest on other loans H A0 B A2 _ 825
Interest on discounted notes receivable BHIR FE W Z IR T 8 22,657 21,075
Interest on lease liabilities HESFEFE 2,032 1,453
Other finance costs H fth B & AR A 21 30
56,606 48,274
Less: Capitalisation of borrowing costs B B ARE AR (15,682) -
40,924 48,274

Borrowing costs capitalised during the year arose on the specific
and general borrowing pool and are calculated by applying a
weighted average capitalisation rate of 4.40% (2019:Nil) to
expenditure on construction in progress.

INCOME TAX EXPENSE

No provision for income tax has been made by the Company
as it is not subject to tax in the Cayman Islands or other
jurisdictions save for the PRC where it conducts its principal
business operations.

No provision for Hong Kong Profits Tax has been made as the
Group's profits were neither arising in nor derived from Hong
Kong during both years, and all subsidiaries incorporated in
Hong Kong incurred losses during the current and prior years.

Provision for PRC Enterprise Income Tax is calculated based on
the estimated taxable income for PRC taxation purposes at the
rate of taxation applicable for the year.

Pursuant to the PRC Enterprise Income Tax Law, the subsidiaries
of the Group that established in the PRC are subject to PRC
Enterprise Income Tax rate at 25%. Subsidiaries established in
the PRC which are qualified as an Advance and New Technology
Enterprise (“ANTE”) for a 3-year period are entitled to a
concessionary Enterprise Income Tax rate of 15%, subject to the
fulfilment of certain conditions on yearly basis during the 3-year
period.

13.

FREMME 2 EFTRAEEREE M —RER
B WHAEZTREBERRAINEFESEAR
{b2E4.40% (20194 : M\)ETE o

PR X<

HRBERABEETEZEBELI - ARAE
FHMFSEEREMREERNBTE - B4
RAEAE S HEE o

HREMFAREENEMREIFRBAELE -
TRIERBEE - MAHREE LML A E
RAAREFEERBEFESSESE - QU
BREBFISHELES -

hEIGRAERBETIRER A BEEERN
R BN IR A G R AT R TR A T AHE -

RIBHBIERASEUE - AREEH BRI E
REVEIRR B EPTIS B R 25% 81 © B
A ABRIERBI=FNSHEME R (S
MR ]DAKE AR BEZE15%NERMEHE
BHEX - AR Z=FPReFRRE TR -
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13. INCOME TAX EXPENSE (continued)

On 30 November 2017, Scud Electronics was approved to
continue as an ANTE for a period of 3 years and the certificate
number is GR201735000475. It is subject to income tax at
15% accordingly. However, as Scud Electronics did not fulfill
the condition during the year ended 31 December 2020 and 31
December 2019, it is subject to income tax at 25% accordingly.

On 2 December 2019, Dongguan Hongde was approved to
continue as an ANTE for a period of 3 years and the certificate
number is GR201944006396. It is subject to income tax at 15%
accordingly.

Details of the income tax expense in the consolidated statement
of profit or loss and other comprehensive income are as follows:

RE RS R AR MR

For the year ended 31 December 2020 # %2020 12431 H 1 F/Z

13. TBHiEX @)

M2017F11A308 - REMRE T £ # &
ARIENtCE BRH=F BFBERRKA
GR201735000475  E 7B 15% Y T 5 54 4 48
FEFTSRE o A » BRRERE FREIZE2020
F£12H318 R20195F12A31B L EEAFA
T - HEIR25% M B R ANABFEFT 1S 7 o

2019 12H2B  RE B EREEE R
BHEMEE AHR=F BERERKAE
GR201944006396 ° H 12215% &) 5t & & 44 A8 &
FR1S%L

AR A AR M 2SR OAEHR X
BT

2020 2019
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBT T AREF T

Current tax — PRC B EARR 18 — A
Enterprise Income Tax: EEMEE

— Tax for the year —AFEBIE 1,200 4,477

— Under/(over) provision in prior years —BEFERETR (BEREE) 3,835 (1,160)
Deferred tax — current year (Note 30) IEREFLTE — AFE (F17E30) 12,544 4,214
Income tax expense FriS iR = 17,579 7,531
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ITVAAS

13.

14.

150

INCOME TAX EXPENSE (Continued) 13. FREBRA  (#)
The reconciliation between (loss)/profit before income tax and AEBEkEMEARERP RS AT(ES

income tax expense in the consolidated statement of profit or

loss and other comprehensive income is as follows:

18),aFIER S B 2 BRI

2020 2019
RMB’000 RMB'000
ARBT T ARBTT

(Loss)/profit before income tax BrATIS R AT (E518),m A (39,903) 56,227
Tax at tax rates applicable in the relevant REAREER AEERREGTE

jurisdictions KR IR (8.671) 12,946
Tax effect of expenses not deductible for tax R 2 H R R 2

purposes 6,595 24,531
Tax effect of income not taxable for tax purposes /B2 W AR TF 2 (347) (11,678)
Deduction of research and development costs BT E R (17,912) (17,205)
Tax effect of tax losses not recognised AERTIBEEBORETE 13,047 4,482
Tax effect of temporary difference not recognised RIEZEGAFIEZ AT S 2 16,533 (2,125)
Under/(over) provision in prior years BEFERETR(B3EEE) 3,835 (1,160)
Effect of concessionary rate granted to the PRC KPR BENERREBRHTEERN

subsidiaries S - (2,260)
Others A, 4,499 -
Income tax expense FriSis 17,579 7,531

DIVIDENDS

No dividend was declared for the years ended 31 December

2020 and 2019.

14. B2

KRS,

H E2020F N2019F 12831 HIEFEN &£
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15. (LOSSES)/EARNINGS PER SHARE 15. 8RR (&B8) BF
The calculation of the basic and diluted (losses)/earnings per RNARHAARESREAREE(BE) &
share attributable to the owners of the Company is based on the FIRBIR LA FEURETE -

following data:

2020 2019
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®TF T ARET T

(Loss)/profit for the purposes of basic and ARFTESRERREE(ER),/
diluted (losses)/earnings per share ((loss)/profit ~ BFI&I(BIB), Swfl (KA FHESE
for the year attributable to the owners of the — AME(EZAREE (EIB) % F)
Company) (52,683) 52,543

Number of ordinary shares

ZEREE
2020 2019
‘000 ‘000
T TR
Weighted average number of ordinary shares  FREHE G EAN K 58 (&iE)
for the purpose of basic and diluted (losses)/ 7 ) 3 38 AR N AE 39 #
earnings per share 1,090,001 1,090,001
Diluted (losses)/earnings per share is of the same amount as GREE(ER) /BRI SEEGRENE
the basic (losses)/earnings per share as there were no potential B) /BFER - BEAR2020E12831H &
dilutive ordinary shares outstanding as at 31 December 2020 I EESE R B BT EAR (20194F ¢ #BA]) ©

(2019: same).
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For the year ended 31 December 2020 & %2020 12 731H 1 F/Z

16. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 16. 1% - BMERRE

Electronic
equipment,
Leasehold Plant and fumiture  Construction Leasehold
[and Building ~ machinery Motor vehicles  and fixtures i progress  improvements Total
Efik i
i) b BF  HERER RE HR%E REIR e it
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARETT  ARETT ARETR ARBTr ARMTR ARETR ARETR ARETR
Cost A
1 January 2019 W195141H 12,904 - 3,1 10526 68,677 5985 66,911 507,175
Iital recogntion of RS 16 SRR RS 65 (12,004 - - - - - = (1904
Additions e - - 1101 1,762 5971 154,861 3753 13419
Transfer 2 - 5183 3 - - (5,536) 120 -
Disposdls te - - (16,229) (2,746 (2817 - = (21,79)
Written off i - - (7.113) - (9.835) (612) - (17,560)
31 December 2019 and 1 January 2020 2019512431AR200051A1R = 5,183 396,135 9542 61,9% 154,698 70,784 698,338
Additions e = = 84,117 4 8187 31861 = 411,489
Transfer &7 - - 16,131 - - (16,131) - -
Disposals it = = 46%) = (963) - - (5,655)
Whritten off k] - - (10,681) - (5311) - - (1599)
Exchange realignment ERaE - - (47193) - - - - (4793)
31 December 2020 0205128318 = 5183 476,217 9,766 63,909 45758 70,784 1,083,387
Accumulated depreciation ithTE
1 January 2019 WI9E171A 3216 - 165,143 7,268 48257 - 66,534 290,418
il recogntion of IFRS 16 EREARRT RS 058 (3.216) - - - = - - (3.216)
Charge for the year FEERR - 7 38,625 640 10,155 - PAE) 51,635
Disposals it = = (6,927) (2430 (1,997) - - (11,359)
Witten of 4 = = (4674 - (8.969) - - (1368)
31 December 2019 and 1 January 2020 019512A31A k202051 A1A - 18 192,167 5474 47 446 - 68,671 313,83
Charge for the year KERER - 195 56,402 87 8,700 - 83 66,937
Disposals ik - - (228) - (126) - - (4,954)
Written off L Ed - - (9,559) - (4,904) - - (14.463)
Exchange realignment EREe - - 23 - - - - (37)
31 December 2020 0205128318 - 133 234,545 6,301 50,516 - 69,524 361,119
Net book value RAFE
31 December 2020 20205128318 = 4950 U6n 3465 13393 457,528 1,260 122,268
31 December 2019 019E12R318 = 5,105 203,963 4,088 14550 154,698 2113 384,502
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For the year ended 31 December 2020 & %2020 12 731H 1F F/Z

16.PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 16.¥%¥ - BMER&RE @

(Continued)

As at 31 December 2020, plant and machinery with a carrying 2020612 A31H + BREE & A K #599,0007T
amount of RMB599,000 (2019: RMB1,001,000) has been (20194 : AEE#1,001,0007T ) HI R = R 28 B 1
pledged to a landlord as collaterals for electricity expenses RIENE BRI YIEIR T3 (f5E24) -

payable (Note 24).

As at 31 December 2020, construction in progress with a 72020612 A31H + BREE A A K 441,846,000
carrying amount of RMB441,846,000 (2019: RMBNil) have been T0(2019%F : ARBZ )N HERTIRERAKE
pledged by the Group in favour of the banks to secure bank TR TIRIT - LWERRITR T AREE ZRITER
loans granted by the banks to the Group (Notes 24 and 28). (PiEE245228) °
As at 31 December 2019, the Group has pledged property, plant 2019F12A318 - AREEEREEERLDA
and equipment carried at approximately RMB20,853,000 for R#20,853,0007CHIMIZE - RE Mk i AT EA
other loans (Notes 24 and 28). B (MiF24%28) °
17. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES 17. REWF
RMB’000
AR¥T T
Cost AR
1 January 2019, 31 December 2019 2019F1H1H ~ 2019612H31H
and 31 December 2020 N2020912H31H 106,797
Accumulated depreciation Rt E
1 January 2019 2019 1A1H 40,609
Charge for the year REEFRX 5,047
31 December 2019 and 1 January 2020 20199128318 &2020%1A1H 45,656
Charge for the year REEZHRXZ 5,073
31 December 2020 2020512H31H 50,729
Net book value BRTE R {E
31 December 2020 2020512A31H 56,068
31 December 2019 201912 A31H 61,141
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17.

154

INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (Continued)

The Group leased out certain formerly self-occupied buildings
located in the PRC under operating lease to Scud Stock, where
Mr. Fang Jin is the common controlling shareholder and has
beneficial interest. The fair value of the building at 31 December
2020 amounted to RMB64,900,000 (2019: RMB66,100,000).

The fair value of the Group’s investment properties at 31
December 2020 and 31 December 2019 have been arrived at
on market value basis carried out by Ascent Partners Valuation
Service Limited, an independent valuer who holds a recognised
and relevant professional qualification and has recent experience
in the location and category of the investment property being
valued.

The fair value was determined based on the depreciated
replacement cost approach that considers the cost to reproduce
or replace in new condition the property appraised in accordance
with current construction costs for similar buildings and
structures in the locality, with allowance for accrued depreciation
as evidenced by observed condition or obsolescence present,
whether arising from physical, functional or economic causes.

The fair value measurement of the Group’s investment properties
has been categorised into the three-level fair value hierarchy
as defined in IFRS 13 "Fair value measurement”. All of the fair
values of the investment properties as at 31 December 2020 and
31 December 2019 is a level 3 recurring fair value measurement,
which uses significant unobservable inputs in arriving at fair
value. During the year ended 31 December 2020 and 31
December 2019, there were no transfers between level 1 and
level 2, or transfers into or out of level 3.

17. REWHE &)

AEBRBLSERERE TEAMRTPELN B
HEFLEFREBRRD - FEEERZAR]
ZHBEZERBRRIES EmiEs o R20209F
12A318EFZAFEAARKE4,900,0007T
(20194 : AK¥66,100,0007T) °

7202012 A31H &2019F12 A31H » AEE
ZIREWMEZ AFEDRENAFEHZRNBR
RA(FHERAREAEEER - WHEESAE
ZIE RZ PR E M FE 2 MELR 2 BIGE
BT 2 A EEMEEEE -

RFEDRBFESERAZEE  TEEE
FRASE TR B B M B T RE LR S Rl
ERA - HEMEERABEEEENREZA
A W BBSERRIBRRR(TREY
g e RERRAM SR ) FrERM R ITE
BB -

REBZREYENR FE 2B RBER T

HRAEI3R AT EFEIFTRENATFE
B={EERHIZEDE - M2020F12A318 &
20195F 12 A3 B2 FEREM*E 2 AP EBSE
=R EERTERE  EATEFEATER
PAIBR 2@ AL HMEL - 8F2020512 8
31 KX2019F 12 A31BIEFE AT EFET
ERENVRRE2HR 2 EERE - MEESRASE
BEHE3MR -
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17.INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (continued)

Details of the Group’s investment property and information
about the fair value hierarchy as at 31 December 2020 are as

an\ /|~ jﬁ%#&%lﬁt
For the year ended 31 December 2020 & %2020 12 731H 1F F/Z
17. REWH»)

R2020F 128310 » BEEAAEBREMER R
FEEBRER ZFBNOT

follows:
Carrying Fair
value at value at
31 December 31 December
2020 2020
S S
20204 20204
12A31H 12A31H
ZBREE ZAFE
Fair value hierarchy RMB’000 RMB'000
AFEER AR®T T ARBT T
Buildings located in the PRC Level 3 56,068 64,900
SRR ERET B

The above investment property is depreciated on a straight-line
basis at the following rate per annum:

Buildings Over the remaining lease term of the land

As at 31 December 2020, investment properties with a carrying
amount of RMB56,068,000 (2019: RMB61,141,000) have been
pledged by the Group in favour of the banks to secure bank
loans granted by the banks to the Group (Notes 24 and 28).

EAREMENERELA T FRIFE ¢

BT e T AR

72020512 A31H - BREE A A K #56,068,0007T
(2019% : AR¥61,141,0007T) W B EE M
NEBEE TIRT  AEBSBRITETALER 2
IRITER(ME24%28) -

155



VESON HOLDINGS LIMITED

BUSERBR DA

ANNUAL REPORT £ %R 2020

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
fra MR R AR M T

For the year ended 31 December 2020 # %2020 12431 H 1L F/Z

ITVAAS

18.

156

LEASES

The Group has lease contracts for various items of leasehold land
held under operating lease, factory, office and staff dormitory
used in its operations. Lump sum payments were made upfront
to acquire the leased land from the owners with lease periods
over the lease term, and no ongoing payments will be made
under the terms of these land leases. Leases of factory, office
and staff dormitory generally have lease terms between 1 to 5
years (2019: between 1 to 10 years). Generally, the Group is
restricted from assigning and subleasing the leased assets outside
the Group.

(@) Right-of-use assets

The carrying amount of the Group’s right-of-use assets and
the movements during the year are as follows:

18. HE

AEERELEPMEANSERREEHE
REMNEELTH ITH HAERBIBER
EHEAH - AREE —NEBEMNZERE
WERBEAESGRFINAESHRAES AEEH
E4i BT EREZE DA ENGERE
B IR HAEKBIGEHE—RE]
E5FEHAEH(2019F - 12105) - —fEmM 5
AEENMSEAEE NG ERERAEEE -

(a) EREEE

AEHEEREEENREERNFANE
BT

Factory, office

and staff
Leasehold land dormitory Total
IR WA=

HELT BIEE et

RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000

ARET R AR¥T AR%T T

1 January 2019 20191 A1H 9,688 21,266 30,954

Additions INE - 8,127 8,127

Charge for the year FARZ (287) (20,567) (20,854)
31 December 2019 and 1 2019 12A318 &

January 2020 2020F1R1H 9,401 8,826 18,227
Additions INE - 26,768 26,768
Charge for the year FARX (258) (6,150) (6,408)
Exchange realignment [ 5 2L - (498) (498)
31 December 2020 2020412 A31H 9,143 28,946 38,089

As at 31 December 2020, leasehold land with a carrying
amount of RMB9,143,000 (2019: RMB9,401,000) have
been pledged by the Group in favour of the banks to
secure bank loans granted by the banks to the Group (Notes
24 and 28).

M2020F12A318 REEAARK
9,143,0007C(20194F : A R #9,401,000
)M E L BRAEEEE TR
17 UBRERITIR T RS B M IRITE RIER
#(PffzE24328) °
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18. LEASES (continued) 18. HE (»)
(b) Lease liabilities (b) HEEE
The carrying amount of lease liabilities and the movements HESENERAEMRFERNNESMT ¢

during the year are as follows:

RMB’000

ARBT T

At 1 January 2019 75’\2019¢1 A1H 24,591

Additions INE 8,127

Interest expense (Note12) I8 B (MizE12) 1,453

Lease payments HERRK (24,273)

At 31 December 2019 and 1 January 2020 E’\2019¢12ﬂ31 A %2020%181H 9,898

Additions NE 26,768

Interest expense (Note 12) B (FEE12) 2,032

Lease payments HENR (6,808)

Exchange realignment bE 5, o B (554)

At 31 December 2020 72020125311 31,336

Future lease payments are due as follows: RIRAEFRAUT B :
31 December 2020
2020 12831H

Total Interest of the Present value

minimum lease  minimum lease of the minimum

payments payments lease payments

BERR BEAR BEAR

B FRZFIE NR2BRE

RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000

ARMF T AR¥TF R AR®TR

Within one year —FR 10,444 2,574 7,870
More than one year but not —FAEENBBME

exceeding two years 10,069 1,696 8,373
More than two years but not — WM& HETBBHSE

exceeding five years 16,453 1,360 15,093

Total st 36,966 5,630 31,336
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18. LEASES (Continued)

(b) Lease liabilities (Continued)

18. A& »#)
(b) HESEZ)

31 December 2019
20195128318
Interest of the
Total minimum  minimum lease

Present value
of the minimum

lease payments payments lease payments

REHSE RIEHEE RIEHEE

(e L HRZHE NRZBRE

RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000

ARET R ARET R AR®T R

Within one year —FR 5,311 1,178 4,133
More than one year but not —FA L ETNRBMRE

exceeding two years 2,751 837 1,914
More than two years but not  RI4EIA HERBBAE

exceeding five years 4,679 828 3,851

Total st 12,741 2,843 9,898

The Group leases its investment properties as disclosed in Note
17 consisting of a factory building and a warehouse building
in PRC under operating lease arrangement. Rental income
recognised by the Group during the year was RMB5,538,000
(2019: RMB5,618,400).

At 31 December 2020, the undiscounted lease payments
receivable by the Group in future period under non-cancellable

AEERBELCEHSELHRENFI7THEE
WIEEME  BREURPEN—ERER—IE
BE - AEERFAERNERBARARE
5,538,0007t(20194F : AR¥5,618,4007T) °

R2020F 12 A318 » A& B AR SR B 4R 15 61
AP T A RN LT & U RITIR A E 5%

operating lease with its tenants are as follow: LU
2020 2019
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARMT T ARETT
Within one year —FR 4,689 6,421
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19. B EE

Software
B4
RMB’000
AREF T
Cost %S
1 January 2019 20191818 11,970
Additions INE 1,656
31 December 2019 and 1 January 2020 2019612H31H X 2020F1H1H 13,626
Additions N 2,500
31 December 2020 2020512H31H 16,126
Amortisation and impairment BHRRE
1 January 2019 20191818 10,065
Charge for the year REERZ 1,100
31 December 2019 and 1 January 2020 2019%12H31H %20206181H 11,165
Charge for the year REERT 1,693
31 December 2020 2020%12H31H 12,858
Net book value BRENFE
31 December 2020 2020%12H31H 3,268
31 December 2019 2019412 H31H 2,461
Note: Mz -
i) The amortisation charge recognised for the year is included ) AFEBRANEBEAZ I AGEEBRR
in “Administrative expenses” in the consolidated statement HEfh2AWERITTBAZIET -

of profit or loss and other comprehensive income.
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20. INVENTORIES

20. EE

2020 2019
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR®TF T ARBTT

Raw materials BERHE 121,245 86,743
Work in progress E S 134,889 101,748
Finished goods BUAK oA 187,732 308,799
Goods in transit TEE D - 1,126

443,866 498,416

At 31 December 2020, the carrying amount of inventories
carried at the lower of cost and net realisable value amounted
to RMB443,866,000 (2019: RMB498,416,000), after provision
for impairment of RMB935,000 (2019: RMB9,211,000). During
the year, reversal of write-down of inventories of RMB8,276,000
(2019: RMBNil) and a write-off of inventories of RMB3,929,000
(2019: RMB21,025,000) were recognised in consolidated
statement of profit or loss.

21. TRADE AND NOTES RECEIVABLES

7202012 A318 « & KAl # 3R FEAER
REFIR 2 FERREERAKRKE443,866,000
JL(2019%F © AR #498,416,0007T) * & HE
RO E 5 A R #935,0007T(2019%F = A
K #9,211,0007T ) - £ A - 17 & MUK B A
R #8,276,0007C(2019F : ARBZT L) RTF
5 88 A R #3,929,0007T(20194F : A R ¥
21,025,0007T) ER4RE B R IER o

21. EREZREAREVRERE

2020 2019
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBTF T ARBTT

Trade receivables FEWE 5508 2,030,648 2,389,303
Notes receivables =R 41,788 116,649
2,072,436 2,505,952
Less: Allowance for bad and doubtful debts i : RiZEERE (95,549) (176,178)
1,976,887 2,329,774
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21. TRADE AND NOTES RECEIVABLES (continuved) 21. EWEB S HEREWERE )

An aged analysis of trade and notes receivables at the end of RIFEZEZH - EHNBREBEERIRE RN ER
the reporting period, based on the invoice date and net of B O RIERERZBENRERS AT

allowance, is as follows:

2020 2019
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®BT T ARETTT

0 to 60 days 0260H 1,443,043 1,828,698
61 to 180 days 61£2180H 475,049 466,595
181 to 365 days 1812365H 58,795 34,481
1,976,887 2,329,774
The average credit period granted on sale of goods ranged from BTHEEMNTEHEESNT60E90H -

60 to 90 days.

Movements in allowance for bad and doubtful debts during the FARERBENESHOT :
year were as follows:

2020 2019
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®BTF T ARETTT

1 January 1H1H 176,178 273,900
Written off hH (102,996) (152,854)
Impairment losses recognised BERRREEE 27,705 56,576
Reversal of impairment losses previously BEMER 2R EEERERE

recognised (5,338) (4,013)
Exchange difference PE =58 - 2,569
31 December 12HA31H 95,549 176,178
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21. TRADE AND NOTES RECEIVABLES (continuved) 21. EW B S HEREWERE )

The aged analysis of the trade and notes receivables that are %81 BA B 10 AR (E B B U B 5 R TR I B IR R Y
past due but not impaired is as follows: BRI OATANT ¢

2020 2019

RMB’000 RMB’000

AR¥TR ARBT T

Less than 6 months past due BERS B 7~ A 104,795 96,354
Over 6 months past due wHEA7NE B A 6,432 4,676

111,227 101,030
Receivables that were past due but not impaired relate to a BHEWARRENERRIBEESZZBYRFE
number of independent customers that have a good track record M MESEASEERITFHNEELE - RBIE
with the Group. Based on past experience, the directors of the NELS  ARAESRARALAEERERSR
Company are of the opinion that no provision for impairment BERRE - MEMRIBEIEN 2 EUE - B1
is necessary in respect of these balances as there has not been E AL EREEITRERE -

a significant change in credit quality and the balances are still
considered fully recoverable.

Notes receivables are stated at FVTOCI. The directors are of FEU IR Ty iR A ERT AH M 2 E W AR o
the opinion that the carrying amounts of notes receivables EERB/ERRBREZREERKE 2 A TFER
approximate to their fair value. Ao
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22. PREPAYMENTS, DEPOSITS AND OTHER 22.F8{J%E -~ R& R HAibpEW =g
RECEIVABLES
2020 2019

RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBTR ARBTT

Advance to suppliers ) £ JE P EA 3k 141,217 196,008
VAT recoverable AR [O] G (E L 6,863 5,858
Deposits paid for acquisition of property, BEYWE  BMEMEENE NS
plant and equipment 4,824 23,507
Deposits paid for other loan arrangement BEMERTHES M 2iRE - 5,148
Refundable deposits AR [Ei% % 36,316 2,016
Others Hih 28,677 9,716
217,897 242,253
Less: Allowance for bad and doubtful debts & : RIZEERE (7,919) (42,207)
Total st 209,978 200,046
Less: Current portion W mEhE Y (169,019) (171,391)
Non-current portion ERBE D 40,959 28,655
Movements in allowance for bad and doubtful debts during the FRRBRBENESHNOT :

year were as follows:

2020 2019
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARMBT T ARBTT

1 January 1818 42,207 70,886
Impairment losses recognised ERRBEEE 4,076 20,641
Reversal of impairment losses BT 2B E E R

previously recognised (2,567) (23,778)
Write-off s (35,797) (25,542)
31 December 12A31H 7,919 42,207
As at 31 December 2019, amount due from a shareholder of 2019512 A318 « st AR IR « ‘e KA
RMB2,840,000, which was included in prepayment, deposits and b JRE LS R TE ) UK AR ER R IE A R #52,840,0007T
other receivables, was unsecured, interest-free and repayable on AERR  RERAREREEE FARKS
demand. The maximum amount outstanding during the year was KREELFE S ARE3,000,0007T °

RMB3,000,000.

None of the above assets is past due. The financial assets LAEBEWRGH - L EEBRTEENERE
included in the above balances relate to receivables for which BB B B HRN 48 2 A0 Se R FE U GRIE ©

there was no recent history of default.
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23.AMOUNTS DUE FROM/TO RELATED 23.fEW FEEALTZIE
PARTIES

The amounts due from/to related parties are unsecured, interest- U HEEATHFRIEAEKIR 28878
free and repayable on demand. REREE -
The information disclosed pursuant to Section 383 of the Hong BERB A AN (55622% ) F383 5 AHER
Kong Companies Ordinance (Cap.622) is as follows: BRI

Maximum Balance at Balance at

amount 31 December 31 December

outstanding 2020 2019
during the year 20205 R20194F
FARER 12A31H 12A31H
Eae K A5 ek 1Y 45 R
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000

ARETT AR¥TR ARBT T

Scud Stock (Fujian) Co., Ltd. (Note i) fBEMRERRIXD AR A A (HiED) 46,916 11,933 46,916
EBTEB New Energy Technology Co.,  S{A&EFHEERERI AR A R]
Ltd. (Note ii) (P =Eii) 100,206 62,721 100,206
Fujian Scud Technology Co., Ltd. BENREREHTER AT
(Note i) (B =) 286 286 -
Scud Communication Technology RERBERMBRA A
Co., Ltd. (Note i) (P 5ED) 12,977 12,977 =
Fuzhou Shanghe Electronics Co., Ltd. &/ FFIEFAER AT
(Note iii) (Bl i) 5,137 - 5,137
87,917 152,259
Notes: BosE
(i) Its director and shareholder, Mr. Fang Jin, is also the () EHBERBRFEASEENDABART ZER
controlling shareholder of the Company. AR o
(i) Its director is the son of Mr. Fang Jin, the controlling (i) EEEAEARRGNERERSRILEEZTF ©
shareholder of the Company.
(iii) Its director and major shareholder is the son of Mr. Fang (i) HEBEERFEREA/RNGERKRRT S
Jin, the controlling shareholder of the Company. FEZF o
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24. PLEDGE OF ASSETS

25.

At the end of the reporting period, the following assets have
been pledged by the Group in favour of the banks as guarantees
for the issuance of bank accepted notes for payments to
suppliers, landlord as collaterals for electricity expenses payable
and pledged for bank and other loans:

RE RS R AR MR

For the year ended 31 December 2020 # %2020 12431 H 1 F/Z

24. EERHA

RBERAR AEBEDHATEEER TR
17 ERAHRERNRMELRTELER 2
BR - ERENEENERYERTEERE
RERRITREMERAER -

2020 2019
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARMT T ARBTT

Property, plant and equipment (Note 16)  #1% - = M & (HizE16) 442,445 21,854
Investment properties (Note 17) TEMEE(FE17) 56,068 61,141
Leasehold land held under operating lease st AfFFAEEEZ RIBKSHERE 2
included in right-of-use assets (Note 18) A& +b(FizE18) 9,143 9,401
Bank deposits RITIF K 750,810 977,454
1,258,466 1,069,850
BANK BALANCES AND CASH 25. RITHEBRRRE

Bank balances and cash comprise cash held by the Group and
short-term bank deposits with an original maturity period of
three months or less.

The Chinese Renminbi (“RMB”) is not freely convertible into
other currencies, however, under the PRC’s Foreign Exchange
Control Regulations and Administration of Settlement, Sale
and Payment of Foreign Exchange Regulations, the Group is
permitted to exchange RMB for other currencies through banks
authorised to conduct foreign exchange business.

RITEHR LA ERAKEFENR S RRE
HARARR 2 = M8 B sk A TV RE HRSR 1T 173K

ARBETARE DA ERLBEMBES
AT R BSNE B RDI R A IE - EE RN
EEEATE  AREARHRREETINEL
BEBZRITRIEARE -
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26. TRADE AND NOTES PAYABLES

26. ENEZRERENRE

2020 2019
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®TF T ARBTT

Trade payables BB S5IE 891,601 1,380,436
Notes payables AN eSS 1,590,089 1,966,305
2,481,690 3,346,741

An aged analysis of trade and notes payables at the end of the

reporting period, based on the invoice date, is as follows:

RIFHFA - RMEHRENE S KB RERN
SEREOTAT :

2020 2019
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR®T R ARBTT

0 to 60 days 0£60H 1,739,164 2,442,875
61 to 180 days 612180H 649,757 832,817
181 to 365 days 1812365H 26,790 6,152
More than 1 year but within 2 years —FAEERRERN 5,911 14,788
More than 2 years but within 3 years MF A EBR=FA 13,875 26,817
Over 3 years =FLAE 46,193 23,292

2,481,690 3,346,741

Trade payables principally comprise amounts outstanding for

trade purchases and ongoing costs. The average credit period

taken for trade purchases ranged from 30 to 90 days.
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27. OTHER PAYABLES, CONTRACT LIABILITIES 27. H#tfEZIE s SN A B REL

AND ACCRUED CHARGES EH
2020 2019
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBT T ARBTT
Contract liabilities BHEE 21,353 28,733
Payroll and welfare payables & A8 357 B % A= ) 37,248 38,724
Accrued expenses FERTRX 3,213 11,744
Payables for acquisition of property, plant  BEE W - MR KR E RN FKIE
and equipment 62 62
Other tax payables H h fE 718 67,548 46,227
Others Hih 57,647 17,046
187,071 142,536
2020 2019
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBT ARBT T
Contract liabilities arising from: EEEUATEEZEL
afs
Sale of lithium-ion battery modules and HE RN T &S
related accessories for mobile phones B EMAER TS
and digital electronic appliances W4 N A BB 21,353 28,733
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27.

168

OTHER PAYABLES, CONTRACT LIABILITIES
AND ACCRUED CHARGES (Continued)

The deposit which the Group receives on sale of lithium-ion
battery modules and related accessories for mobile phones and
digital electronic appliances remains as a contract liability until
it is recognised as revenue when control of goods is transferred
to the customers. Typical payment terms which impact on the
amount of contract liabilities are set out in Note 3.

27. Hth BN RIE - SN EBERER

= 0::1C )

AEBEEHERARNFRRBBRETERN
PR T E AR N A B R R AT B R £ AT
RAMAE  EEEVEFREBEETFIEH
RERL/RER/IL FEANBBESHE LK
R TR BRI 5E3

Movements in contract liabilities EHEBERE
2020 2019
RMB’000 RMB’'000
AR®T R AREETIT
Balance as at 1 January R1RA1BZ & 28,733 31,031
Decrease in contract liabilities as RAEE AERW RN ETDBIEE
a result of recognising revenue  SHBERN)MERE N B ERD
during the year that was included  (Fff36)
in the contract liabilities at the
beginning of the year (Note 6) (28,733) (31,031)
Increase in contract liabilities as a HESRZERFEMERENEE
result of receipts in advance on 0
sale of goods 21,353 28,733
Balance at 31 December K12 8318 2 & 21,353 28,733
Amount due to a shareholder of RMB160,000 (2019: RMB HAHMEMNGKE - ANEaERESERNE

Nil), which is included in other payables, contract liabilities and
accrued charges, is unsecured, interest-free and repayable on
demand.

IR X IE AR #160,0007T (20194F : AR
T0) AEER - RERAREREFEE -
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28. BORROWINGS 28. B

2020 2019
RMB’000 RMB’'000
AR¥TR AREETTT
Bank loans (Note (a)): RITE R (HIFE@Q)) :
Secured bank loans BEIFIRITER 495,500 291,019
Unsecured bank loans ERAIRTTER 416,442 291,670
911,942 582,689
Other loans (Note (b)) HabE R (Ki7ED)) - 9,393
911,942 592,082
Less: Amounts shown under current W OREBENRY 2S5
liabilities (698,175) (591,478)
Amounts shown under non-current ERBBETNEY 225
liabilities 213,767 604
Notes: BT EE
(@) The terms of repayment of the bank loans are as follows: (a) SRITEFERFHWT
2020 2019
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®T R AREET T
Current portion: mENE S
Within 1 year or on demand —FREIRENRK 698,175 582,689
Non-current portion: ERBE D ¢ 17,424 -
More than 1 year but not exceeding ~ —% LA HERFBIBME
2 years 101,061 =
More than 2 years but not exceeding M4 HEFHBBRE
5 years 95,282 -
More than 5 years HFELAE 911,942 582,689

169



VESON HOLDINGS LIMITED

BUSERBR DA

ANNUAL REPORT £ %R 2020

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

RE IR AR MR

For the year ended 31 December 2020 # 220204 12 431 H 1FF/Z

28. BORROWINGS (continued)

Notes: (Continued)

(@) The terms of repayment of the bank loans are as (@)

28. B (#)
W (48)

RITERERFHOT (&)

follows:(Continued)

As at 31 December 2020, bank loans of approximately
RMB495,500,000 (2019: RMB291,019,000) were secured
by the Group’s property, plant and equipment of
RMB441,846,000 (2019: RMBNil) (Note 16), investment
properties and leasehold land with aggregate carrying
amount of RMB65,211,000 (2019: RMB70,542,000)
(Notes 17 and 18(a)) and by personal guarantee from the
Company'’s controlling shareholder, Mr. Fang Jin, and the
son of Mr. Fang Jin for certain bank loans of the Group up
to an amount of RMB877,750,000 (2019: RMB582,689,000)
and RMB343,799,000 (2019: RMB Nil), respectively.

The average effective interest rates per annum (which are

20205128318 » #) A R #495,500,000
J6(2019% : AR #291,019,0007T ) &I R 1T
BB AL E A R#441,846,0007T(2019
FAREZIL)ZUE - BE REER
716) - #8 BR ™ A A R ¥65,211,0007T A9
BEYMERBE L (20195 AR
70,542,0007T) (M3E17%18@)) © AR T
ERRER A RER TS RENTTHRIH
mASBERHE SRS ZEARKS77,750,000
JC(20194 : A R#582,689,0007T) M AR
#£343,799,00070 (20195 : ARBEZ L)
ETIRITERATEEAERIERIF o

also equal to the contractual interest rates) on the Group's ANEE B RITIE TR T BRR G FE(TF
bank borrowings are as follows: HEREKHMZ)INT
2020 2019
RMB’000 RMB'000
ARBT T AREFTT
Average effective interest rate on fixed- [& S &2 FHERRF =R
rate borrowings 4.50% 4.56%
Other loans: (b) HMEFK :

As at 31 December 2019, the Group obtained other loans
from a financial institution. These other loans are secured
by certain plant and machinery of net carrying amount of
RMB20,853,000 (Note 16) bear fixed interest rate at 4.75%
per annum and are repayable in three years.

M2019F 12 A318 » AEEN — 5 i
BESHMBER - Z2SHEMERMETE
R E A AR #20,853,00070 (M #£16) 89
= M e 2SR - B e FFER B4.75% KA
R=FANIEE -

During the year ended 31 December 2019, the average BE2019F12A31BLLFE - A&EEHE
effective interest rates per annum (which are also equal to tEREFEERFRER(TERE LT
the contractual interest rates) on the Group’s other loans K)B42% °
are at 4.2%.
2020 2019
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBT ARETFT
Current portion: mENE S
Within 1 year or on demand —FATIRER - 8,789
Non-current portion: IERHED:
More than 1 year but not exceeding 2 years  —%E LA FBTHBBRE - 604
Total #Et - 9,393
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29. AMOUNTS DUE TO DIRECTORS 29. EHESRIE
The amounts due to directors are unsecured, interest-free and FENESHIE ) AMEIKE - 4 8 BBEIRENRE
repayable on demand. = o

30. DEFERRED TAX ASSETS AND LIABILITIES 30.ERRNELEHEEERAE

RECOGNISED
The components of deferred tax assets/(liabilities) recognised RERNERE M BRARBERNELEFIEE
in the consolidated statement of financial position and the E/(BE) RS REBNT

movements during the year are as follows:

Impairment Provision for
loss on trade write down to  Undistributed
and other  Provision for net realisable profits of
receivables warranty value  subsidiaries Tax loss Total
FERE SR
REMEY ER  HMAZETZ HEAR
RERERRE REEEE  RFERE  A2WEA HERE Eh)
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000

ARETR  ARETT  ARETR ARMTR  ARETR  ARETR

1 January 2019 20191818 87,221 80 4,907 (5,360) 53,001 139,849
(Charge)/credit to profit or loss ~ REH(31%) /3t A (7,978) (64) (3.277) = 7,105 (4,214)
31 December 2019 and 2019128318

1 January 2020 2020F1A1H 79,243 16 1,630 (5,360) 60,106 135,635
Credit/(charge) to profit or loss ~ RBZETEA /(1K) 2,332 (16) (1,480) - (13,380) (12,544)
31 December 2020 2020%12A318 81,575 - 150 (5,360) 46,726 123,091
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30.

172

DEFERRED TAX ASSETS AND LIABILITIES
RECOGNISED (Continued)

For presentation purpose, certain deferred tax assets and
liabilities have been offset in the consolidated statement of
financial position. The following is an analysis of the deferred tax
balances for financial reporting purposes:

30 EERNELEBEBEEREE®)

MEIME BETEEHREERBBECRE
SHBIRARIESE o AT BB ®RE ML
HEIER RS R

2020 2019
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBT T ARBT T
Net deferred tax assets recognised in the RERE ISR R AR 2 IEIET
consolidated statement of financial position B EFE 128,451 140,995
Net deferred tax liabilities recognised in the REFE B BAROR R AR 2 ELER
consolidated statement of financial position IHEaEFE (5,360) (5,360)
123,091 135,635

The Group has tax losses carry forwards amounting to
approximately RMB191,264,000 (2019: RMB87,753,000) which
relate to subsidiaries that have a history of losses and may not
be used to offset taxable income elsewhere in the Group. These
subsidiaries have no temporary taxable differences which could
partly support the recognition of deferred tax assets. Also, there
are no tax planning opportunities available that would further
provide a basis for recognition.

If the Group was able to recognise all unrecognised deferred tax
assets, profits would increase by approximately RMB47,816,000
(2019: RMB15,248,000).

REEFEERIEEBNARE191,264,0007T
(20194 : AR%87,753,0007T) * WEBIES
Ko 6715 518 RO BT B A B Ko AR w4 AT FA LA 8 AN
SEHEMM T B ERBIA o L EWE R R
A B IS RERIE T IE & E W EER R E B

EE o MO UEBIAF RS T RINE—F
PR HER AL -

INAEERERERT AR ERONELERIBEE -
Y ) #5388 hn 49 A R #547,816,0007T (20194 :
AER#15,248,0007T) °



30. DEFERRED TAX ASSETS AND LIABILITIES

RECOGNISED (Continued)

According to Articles 3 and 37 of the PRC Enterprise Income Tax
Law, distribution of dividends by a foreign investment enterprise
in China to its non-tax resident foreign investor is subject to
Enterprise Income Tax at source on a withholding basis. The
standard withholding tax rate pursuant to Article 4 of the PRC
Enterprise Income Tax Law is 20%. According to Article 27
of the PRC Enterprise Income Tax Law and Article 91 of the
Detailed Implementation Rules of the PRC Enterprise Income
Tax Law, the applicable withholding tax rate has been reduced
to 10%. Under the Arrangement between the Mainland China
and Hong Kong Special Administration Region (“HKSAR") for
the Avoidance of Double Taxation and the Prevention of Fiscal
Evasion, or Mainland China/HKSAR Double Taxation Agreement,
Hong Kong tax residents which hold 25% or more of a PRC
enterprise are entitled to a reduced dividend withholding tax rate
of 5%.

In addition, according to Cai Shui [2008] No.1, a circular jointly
issued by the Ministry of Finance and State Administration of
Taxation on 22 February 2008, distribution of dividends out of
pre 2008 retained profits by a foreign investment enterprise to
its foreign investor in or after 2008 is exempted from Enterprise
Income Tax, whereas distribution of dividends out of profits
generated by a foreign investment enterprise in or after 2008
shall be subjected to Enterprise Income Tax in accordance with
the relevant articles of the PRC Enterprise Income Tax Law and its
Detailed Implementation Rules as described above. Accordingly,
dividends receivable from certain subsidiaries in respect of profits
earned since 1 January 2008 is subject to 5% withholding tax.
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30 EERNELEBEBEERE R ®)

BIERBEMEMERESIEREIE - P
INEIREREREATERIINEREEREZ
BREERENZ T XA EMBR - R
BHRBECEMSRAFME SEBBIRE A
20% ° MBEFBBEMETHIEE 276K+ E
EMBRAERIEHIZEIE - FialEATEN
TR ZE10% © BIEC A Hh TS B 5 BI1T B
([BEFFRIITER |) B R T P15 8 2 S BB
MBI IERIRTRR A ZHE) - RIS APEEE25%K
A ERE=EBEBARER - ATREER K%
AR B FEFL

SO0 - ARIR BB ED I B R B 48 B 200842
RA22BH & EMEOCBREEMSETE TESR
BR BB A ) (B4F{[2008]15%) » 20084 2 B oM
R EREFKR REARSBCFE - /£20085
2 EDEEINEZEEN - Al RBREME
i M20084F 3k 2 & FFE NI B B ERFTIT
FESE - Ak b B EEREREE BIIE
Bl R B EEPIS RS - Bt - &F
MEB A RF E20084 181 HMAKBES KGRI
JE U A% B B BN 5 % RO TEHNFL
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30. DEFERRED TAX ASSETS AND LIABILITIES 30.CRIANELENEESEREREH)
RECOGNISED (Continued)

At 31 December 2020, the Group’s share of aggregate amount ﬁA2020$12H31 B NEBEELAR TR B
of temporary differences associated with retained earnings of the RRARBENEANEREZESHLOARE
Company’s PRC subsidiaries was approximately RMB337,541,000 337,541,00075(20195- AER#362,192,0007T) °
(2019: RMB362,192,000). Deferred tax liabilities have not BN AN E RSB O 2R 2 R - B
been all provided for in the consolidated financial statements ZRN ] R RSN E - AN BN LR
in respect of the Group’s share of temporary differences $’“ﬂ¢'IW%’“ﬂ%%iﬁ?ﬁ'ﬂﬂﬁZFﬁﬁiﬁﬁ%%
attributable to retained profits of the Company’s PRC subsidiaries ARE BTG RER (R IR TR TE B E R o

as the Group is able to control the timing of the reversal of
the temporary differences and it is probable that the temporary
differences will not reverse in the foreseeable future.

31. SHARE CAPITAL 31. R4

Number of

ordinary shares

of HK$0.10

each
FR0.10E T Amount
EZEREE Ex-]
in Thousands RMB’'000
& ARBTT

Issued and fully paid: BEETREE :
At 1 January 2019, 31 December 2019 R2019F1H1H * 2019F &

and 2020 2020 12H31H 1,090,001 107,590
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32. RESERVES 32. f#fE
The reconciliation between the opening and closing balances of REBIFREEROSER D RF R FERE
each component of the Group’s consolidated equity is set out N BRHENGEERETSEK - XRRFI R
in the consolidated statement of changes in equity. Details of FERFERNS S rES B 2 5 IEEHI DT -

the changes in the Company’s individual components of equity
between the beginning and the end of the year are set out

below:
Share Capital  Translation Retained
premium reserve reserve profits Total
R EE EARRE E XA REBF @t
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARETT AR®FrT ARETT ARETT ARETR
At 1 January 2019 20191318 619,288 250,887 (71,233) 51,095 850,037
Loss for the year AEEEE = = = (2,386) (2,386)
Other comprehensive income HitzEkes - - 15,817 - 15,817
Total comprehensive income for the AEEEANEEE

year - - 15,817 (2,386) 13,431
At 31 December 2019 and M20195F12 4318 %

1 January 2020 20201818 619,288 250,887 (55,416) 48,709 863,468
Loss for the year AEEBE = = = (2,245) (2,245)
Other comprehensive income Hip 2 miies - - (43,583) - (43,583)
Total comprehensive income for the AEELARGEEE

year - - (43,583) (2,245) (45,828)
At 31 December 2020 120205124318 619,288 250,887 (98,999) 46,464 817,640
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33. NON-CONTROLLING INTERESTS 33. FiEERER

Summarised financial information in relation to the Group’s REEHAEAIEERERS ([ FEZREZ]) 2
subsidiaries that have material non-controlling interests (“NCls"), FEARNEERNYHEAM U BERREZY
before intra-group eliminations, is presented below: (1 N

2020 2019
Percentage of equity interest held by NCls: FEIZEfR#EzSFThER= A DL ¢
Shenzhen Hongde and its subsidiary R BE R ENE AR 21% 21%
Cybertech and its subsidiaries Cybertech R E & A A 50% 50%
For the year ended 31 December 2020 HZE2020F12A31BLEE

Cybertech and its Shenzhen Hongde

subsidiaries and its subsidiary

Cybertech wIIBE
REKBAR REKMBLF
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®T R AR® T
Revenue Wz 19,421 186,702
(Loss)/profit for the year REE(FR),SwF (17,911) 11,865
(Loss)/profit allocated to NCls DB E IR 2 (B518), &8 5 (8,956) 2,498
Cash flows generated from operating K& EHAERETRE
activities 16,336 34,731
Cash flows used in investing activities #&&EBFMAR S RE (6,613) (10,102)
Cash flows used in financing activities & EEBFTARECRE (1,598) (3,587)
Net cash inflows BEMAFRE 8,125 21,042
Current assets MEEE 15,040 175,668
Non-current assets ERBNEE 23,811 51,102
Current liabilities mEaE (46,377) (133,377)
Non-Current liabilities IEREBAE (2,949) (17,596)
Net assets FEE (10,475) 75,797
Accumulated NCls Bt Ep iR (5,237) 15,955
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33. NON-CONTROLLING INTERESTS (Continued) 33. FEEER AR ()
For the year ended 31 December 2019 HZE2019F12831HILEE
Cybertech and its ~ Shenzhen Hongde
subsidiaries and its subsidiary
Cybertech Y=
K E AR MEKIE AR
RMB’000 RMB’000
AREBT T ARBT T
Revenue s 7,866 284,494
Loss for the year REEEHE (3,917) (8,972)
Loss allocated to NCls DECE TR E R 2 B1E (1,959) (1,889)
Cash flows generated from operating #&Z/EFHFAERESTRE
activities 7,732 20,851
Cash flows (used in)/ generated from & EE(FAA),/ FIBRERE
investing activities (15,131) 9,318
Cash flows generated from/(used in)  BLEEREAE, (A BRELRE
financing activities 9,706 (12,705)
Net cash inflows WMEMAFEE 2,307 17,464
Current assets mEEE 15,617 156,500
Non-current assets IEREEE 20,016 36,579
Current liabilities mEAE (23,278) (129,147)
Non-Current liabilities FERBAG (4,358) -
Net assets FEE 7,997 63,932
Accumulated NCls BT IEERAE RS 3,999 11,799
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34. STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION OF 34. A&/ B &
THE COMPANY

2020 2019
Notes RMB’'000 RMB’'000
MisE AR¥T R AREEFTT
Non-current asset FREBEE
Investments in subsidiaries RHTEB R BIRE 35 250,901 250,901
Total non-current asset FEmENE EARTE 250,901 250,901
Current assets REEE
Amounts due from subsidiaries FEUTH B A T I8 679,799 725,703
Bank balances and cash RITEHR LIRS 1,337 919
Total current assets MENEEBEE 681,136 726,622
Current liabilities REBERE
Other payables E fth fE < 5RIE 3 3
Amount due to a subsidiary FESTB B A Rl ZA 6,804 6,462
Total current liabilities mEN B EERE 6,807 6,465
Net current assets REBEEFE 674,329 720,157
Net assets BEE 925,230 971,058
Capital and reserves EARRREE
Share capital N 31 107,590 107,590
Reserves (e 32 817,640 863,468
Total equity BRER 925,230 971,058

L, '

=
FENG MING ZHU LIAN XIU QIN
BT ERE
DIRECTOR DIRECTOR
E2F E2F
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35. SUBSIDIARIES

Details of the subsidiaries of the Company at the end of the

35. B A )

RBERARRWNBRARFBOT - BRIES
reporting period are as follows. The class of shares held is BB AN ER AL B
ordinary unless otherwise stated:

Place of incorporation/ Issued and paid-

establishment and

up share/registered

Group's effective

Name of companies operation capital ownership interest Principal activities
MR/ BILK BRTREARE/
ARER EE ok AER rEEENERES TEEH
2020 2019

Great Speed Enterprises Limited British Virgin Islands US$50,000 100% 100%  Investment holding
RREEERAT RERIES 50,000% 7T RERR
Scud Group (Hong Kong) Company Hong Kong HK$1 100%* 100%*  Provision of corporate management

Limited BA 18T services
REREE(EB)ERAA REAAERRYE
Keen Power Holdings Limited Hong Kong HK$1,000 100%* 100%*  Investment holding
HAEEEERAT] B 1,00087 REER
Scud (Fujian) Electronics Co., Ltd. PRC US$127,000,000 100%* 100%*  Manufacturing and sale of lithium-

(Note (i) i 127,000,000%7¢ ion battery modules, power

RERE(BR)EFERAFME()

*  Interest indirectly held through Great Speed Enterprises

Limited

& Interest indirectly held through Keen Power Holdings

Limited

banks, motive battery and related
accessories for mobile phones and
digital electrical appliances

HERHEFRREERS AR
BERFSHEA BHER - BN
Bt SRR

* BEBRACEAERATEESEER

o EBBIREEEBRAREERS AR
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35. SUBSIDIARIES (continued)

Place of incorporation/ Issued and paid-
establishment and up share/registered

35. ftEB A T4

Group's effective

Name of companies operation capital ownership interest Principal activities
MR/ KL R ERTRESRE/
ARER Bew afEA rEERNREES FTEEH
2020 2019
Scud Battery Co., Ltd. (Note (ii)) PRC US$30,000,000 100%* 100%*  Manufacturing and sale of lithium-
RERZpERA A () HE 30,000,000 7T ion battery modules, power
banks, power management
module, motive battery, smart
wearable device battery and
related accessories for mobile
phones and digital electrical
appliances
HERHEFRREERETER
MEETENEE BEER
SREREM PHE Bt
FHEZESH IR
Shenzhen Hongde Battery Co., Ltd. PRC RMB38,000,000 79%° 79%°  Research and development,
(Note (iii)) e AR#38,000,0007T manufacturing and sale of
A s A R A (B R (i) lithium-ion bare battery cells
BETEDCHE  £EREE
Dongguan Hongde Battery Co., Ltd. PRC RMB50,000,000 79%" 79%"  Research and development,
(Note (iv)) HE AR#50,000,0007T manufacturing and sale of
HETEEE AR AR () lithium-ion bare battery cells
BETEU ME  FEREE
*  Interest indirectly held through Keen Power Holdings * EBHEERARAREESARER

Limited

@ Interest indirectly held through Scud (Fujian) Electronics Co.,

Ltd.

A Interest indirectly held through Shenzhen Hongde Battery

Co., Ltd.
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35. SUBSIDIARIES (continued)

Place of incorporation/ Issued and paid-
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35. ftEB A T #)

establishment and up share/registered Group's effective
Name of companies operation capital ownership interest Principal activities
FMRL/ IR BRTREBHRE/
DNAEH REhE TMEA rEEENET RS TEEK
2020 2019
Patriots Group (China) Company Hong Kong HK$10,000 100%* 100%*  Not yet commenced business
Limited B8 10,0007 HARRER
FEESE(PE)BRAF
Patriots (Hong Kong) Power Sources  Hong Kong HK$10,000 100%* 100%*  Not yet commenced business
Company Limited B 10,0007C HAFIRE ¥
FEE(EE)RERBRAA
Scud Intelligent Technology Co., Ltd. ~ PRC RMB50,000,000 100%° 100%°®  Not yet commenced business
(Note (v)) t ARE50,000,0007C GENGEGE
REREEMBEERAF (M)
Scud Electronics Japan Co., Ltd. Japan JPY20,000,000 100%° 100%®  Research and development and sale
RERETANRASH BA 20,000,000H of lithium-ion battery modules,
power banks, chargers and
network terminal products
BERMTEHEE BBER 72
BRABRBERTEREE
Scud Hong Kong Trading Limited Hong Kong HK$10,000 100%* 100%*  Not yet commenced business
REREZEEZERAA i 10,0007 7T HARRESR

@ Interest indirectly held through Scud (Fujian) Electronics Co.,
Ltd.

*  Interest indirectly held through Great Speed Enterprises
Limited

° FARERER)EFERAFMEERSF

e

M

* BEBRRACERARAREESAER
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35. SUBSIDIARIES (continued)
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Place of incorporation/

establishment and Issued and paid-up

35. B A =l (4

Group's effective ownership

Name of companies operation share/registered capital interest Principal activities
ML/ RIR BERATRERAREK/ ‘
NRER fen ERER FRERAERER TEER
2020 2019
Prime Power Technology Co., Ltd. Hong Kong HK$50,000,000 100%¢ 100%°  Investment holding
hEMRERAR &% 50,000,000 7 REER
Cybertech Optiemus Holdings Limited  British Virgin Islands HK$50,000,000 50%" 50%"  Investment holding
(Note(vi)) (HizE(vi) RERURS 50,000,000 7 REER
Cybertech Optiemus (HK) Limited Hong Kong HK$10 50%: 50%"  Investment holding
(Note(vi)) (HfzE(vi)) Bk 1087 RARR
lluminar Merchandising Private Limited ~ India INR107,509,642 50%" 50%"  Provision of mobile phone battery cell and
(Note(vi)) (FiiE(vi)) HE 107,509,642 FE E S, power bank assembly service in India
REEREFRETRBYEREERE
Veson (Hong Kong) Co., Limited Hong Kong HK$10,000 100%* N/A  Dormant
BEERARAA BR 10,0002 70 TER  EERE
@ Interest indirectly held through Scud (Fujian) Electronics Co., @ BEARERER)ETERAAEHESBE
Ltd. i
o Interest indirectly held through Prime Power Technology i FERLEBRRARAFEESEER
Co., Limited
« Interest indirectly held through Cybertech Optiemus «  FiECybertech Optiemus Holdings Limitedf#
Holdings Limited EREER
B Interest indirectly held through Cybertech Optiemus (HK) B #iBCybertech Optiemus (HK) Limitedf& s
Limited BiEm
* Interest indirectly held through Great Speed Enterprises * ERRACEBRRARMEERAER
Limited
Notes: BT
(i)  Wholly-foreign owned enterprise for a term of 50 years () SMEBEDE  1997F10831 B AT
commencing 31 October 1997. T4 o
(i) Wholly-foreign owned enterprise for a term of 50 years (i) S EBmELE  2005F12A6H B AE R
commencing 6 December 2005. T o
(i) Limited liability company for a term of 20 years (i) BREMAF - 2005F1A21B T AH =
commencing 21 January 2005. TE -
(iv) Limited liability company commencing 11 April 2011. (ivy AREMEAF ' 2011F4811 B -
(v) Limited liability company for a term of 30 years (v) AREMEAR 201345830 AH=1
commencing 3 May 2013. Fo
(vi) The directors are of the opinion that, notwithstanding (i) EERAE BERZEAAMEBS0%MRE

having 50% shareholding on these companies, having
considered in substance all facts and circumstances, the
Group has control over these companies. See note 5(vi) for
further details.

During the year, none of the subsidiaries had issued any debt
securities.

BAEBEEERMEEEREBENLE  AEED
HZERRFEFENE FHREZFEH2
BAFEES(vi) °

RAFEE - ENEQRETENERES -



36. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

The name of and the relationship with related parties (a)

are as follows:
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36. BEALR S
MEATEERELBENT -

Name Relationship

=L e

Fang Jin Controlling shareholder of the Company.

ik ZA/NEIEE SR

Scud Stock Scud Stock (Fujian) Co., Ltd., a company in which Mr. Fang Jin was a director and held
RERRIMD 70% (2019: 70%) shareholding interest.

Scud Technology
HRERRTIR

Scud Power Technology

RERRE DR

Fuzhou Shanghe
B A

EBTEB New Energy
SIARHTELIR

Scud School
FREBEZR

BERERBRNDBERRR]  TEAERZARNEELRHAZAAT0%(2019%F : 70% ) Bt

Fujian Scud Technology Co., Ltd., a company in which Mr. Fang Jin was a director and
held 18% (2019: 18%) shareholding interest.
BEREBRLAR AR  HEEERZARERWIHAZLA18% (20195 ¢ 18% ) AkiE

Fujian Scud Power Technology Co., Ltd., a company with its director and shareholder
holding 93.95% (2019: 94.55%) shareholding interest of the company being the son of
Mr. Fang Jin, the controlling shareholder of the Company

BEREBRBNOEHLAR AR - HAZRA93.95% (20195 : 94.55% ) IREME S KRR
RARBERBRRA R FRELTF

Fuzhou Shanghe Electronics Co., Ltd., a company with its director and shareholder holding
45.45% (2019: 45.45%) shareholding interest of the company being the son of Mr.
Fang Jin, the controlling shareholder of the Company

BN EFBFAERIA - EHZAAA5.45%(20194F : 45.45% ) RENBRERBRR /AR
AERRR A SEEZ T

EBTEB New Energy Technology Co., Ltd., a company wholly owned by Fuzhou Shanghe
and with its director being the son of Mr. Fang Jin, the controlling shareholder of the

Company
SRR ERAR  —HARMN ENE2EHEN AR BEEEZ AR A AERREA
SREZT

Fujian Scud Senior Technician Training School, a company of which Mr. Fang Jin was a
director and had beneficial interest

BERERSARTIHIER  —HIEEREZYHEESERN AR

183



VESON HOLDINGS LIMITED

BUSERBR DA

ANNUAL REPORT £ %R 2020

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e R Rk I EE

For the year ended 31 December 2020 #ZE20204 12431 H I F/E

36. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (continued) 36. BEALTRZ ()

(b) Transactions with related companies during the year (b) IR BIFSRR E A EE D T F A LR

not disclosed elsewhere in the financial statements are BREZENRZ BT

184

summarised as follows:

2020 2019
RMB'000 RMB’000
ARETR AREFT
Rental expenses paid to: BERBEERY
Scud Stock (Note i) FRERRRR (2 (Pt 5Ei) 13,627 19,111
Scud Technology (Note i) FREBR (i EEi) 883 868
Rental income received from: R GEELONE
Scud Stock (Note iii) TR RERR £ (Fif i) 5,538 5,618
Purchases of finished goods from: (Note iv) RS m : (M)
EBTEB New Energy SIERATHER 2,147 3,624
Purchases of raw materials from: (Note iv) RRERME : (M)
Scud School RERER - 47
EBTEB New Energy SIEFRER 155,297 157,706
Purchases of property, plant and equipment BEME - BELRE : (H:Ev)
from: (Note v)
Scud School RERER - 62
Processing fee to: (Note vi) SHAMIET « (Fiztvi)
EBTEB New Energy SEREER 8 34
Processing income from: (Note vi) WeER AT = (B &Evi)
Scud Power Technology RERE B 1,943 =
Training expense to: (Note vii) SREHBET (i)
Scud School RERER 389 1,292
Research and development expense to: (Note viii) SAHEBRT (M)
EBTEB New Energy SERERER - 38
Sales of raw material to: (Note iv) HERMBT « (M)
Scud Power Technology RERE HEHL 200 -
EBTEB New Energy SIERATHER 16,565 5,853
Sales of low-value consumables to EBTEB HEREREM T HEFTER
New Energy (Note iv) (FifzEiv) 233 -
Interest income charged from EBTEB New Energy 18] 55 18 45 2T A TR MR ER R B A (B i)
(Note ix) - 148




36. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (continued)

(b)

(Continued)

The above transactions were made at prices and terms as
agreed between the parties.

Notes:

(i)

On 30 December 2016, Scud Electronics (as lessee)
and Scud Stock (as lessor) entered into a lease renewal
agreement (the “New First Lease Agreement”) to
extend the lease period of the existing leased premises
for the period commenced from 1 January 2017 and
ended on 31 December 2019. The annual rental for
the year ended 31 December 2019 was approximately
RMB14,325,000.

On 30 December 2019, Scud Electronics (as lessee)
and Scud Stock (as lessor) entered into a lease renewal
agreement (the “Renewed First Lease Agreement”) to
extend the lease period of the existing leased premises
for the period commenced from 1 January 2020 and
ended on 31 December 2020. The annual rental for
the year ended 31 December 2020 was approximately
RMB10,362,000.

During the year ended 31 December 2020, in view
of the COVID-19 pandemic, Scud Stock and Scud
Electronics mutually agreed a rent concession,
pursuant to which the monthly rental was reduced
by approximately RMB255,000 for February 2020.
Accordingly, the annual rental was reduced from
approximately RMB10,362,000 to approximately
RMB10,107,000.

On 30 December 2016, Scud Battery (as lessee) and
Scud Stock (as lessor) entered into a lease renewal
agreement (the “New Second Lease Agreement”) to
extend the lease period of the existing leased premises
for the period commenced from 1 January 2017 and
ended on 31 December 2019. The annual rental for
the year ending 31 December 2019 was approximately
RMB4,786,000.
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36. BEALTRF )

(b)

(%)

RS T A W T R B R
17 -

GEX

(i)

MN2016512H308 * RE B T ¥
(tEBAMAAN) BRERBD(EA T
BN ERRR(FEF—HHEE
Wl UERBEHEEWEZA
By - FHHIB2017F1A1H £ =2019
F128318 k- & Z2019F12A
BSIALEFEZFEHSNAARE
14,325,0007T °

M2019512 A308 @ REBRE F(E
BERMBAN)EBRERR G (EAHA
NEvER=(CEEFE—HH
EiHzl)  MERBREHEWE A
8 - FHHI 520201 A1H £ £2020
F12A318 k- & Z2020%F12A8
BMABLFEZFERESHNAARE
10,362,0007T, °

HE2020F12A31B IEFE &R

COVID-19% 1% - MEMRBMH RRE
BREF-—BREHSEE &t

2002 A AEE R HARK
255,0007T © E bt - FHE H O A
R #10,362,0000L B P EH AR

10,107,0007T °

M2016F12A30H @ K E R T
(tEAEMEAN) BRERBMD(EAT
BN ER B E_mHEE
&l MERREHEWE M
Hy - FHEIBH20174F1 818 #£ 22019
F128318 k- & F£20194F12A8
BMBLEFEZFEREHNAARE
4,786,0007T °
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36. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (Continued)
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(b)

(Continued)

Notes: (Continued)

(ii)

On 30 December 2019, Scud Battery (as lessee) and
Scud Stock (as lessor) entered into a lease renewal
agreement (the “Renewed Second Lease Agreement”)
to extend the lease period of the existing leased
premises for the period commenced from 1 January
2020 and ended on 31 December 2020. The annual
rental for the year ended 31 December 2020 was
approximately RMB3,598,000.

During the year ended 31 December 2020, in view of
the COVID-19 pandemic, Scud Stock and Scud Battery
mutually agreed a rent concession, pursuant to which
the monthly rental was reduced by approximately
RMB78,000 for February 2020. Accordingly, the annual
rental was reduced from approximately RMB3,598,000
to approximately RMB3,520,000.

The rental payable under the New First Lease
Agreement, the Renewed First Lease Agreement,
the New Second Lease Agreement and the Renewed
Second Lease Agreement were determined after
arm’s length negotiations between Scud Electronics,
Scud Battery and Scud Stock with reference to the
market rental for similar properties nearby in the PRC
and having taken into account availability of similar
premises nearby and the cost of relocation.

The rental payable was determined after arm’s length
negotiations between the Group and Scud Technology
with reference to the market rental for similar
properties nearby in the PRC and having taken into
account availability of similar premises nearby and the
cost of relocation.

36. BEALTRF 2

(b)

(%)

By aE

(#)

R2019%12 A30H  REREM({E
BAEMAN)BRERRG(EALH
Nl ERm#(EEEE _HA
EHzl)  MERREHEEWEZMA
HY - FHHA 5202041 A1 8 #£ £2020
F128318 k- & £20209F12A°
BMBLEFEZFEREHNAEARE
3,598,0007T °

B E2020F12A31B It FE @ &£
HRCOVID-19% 1E + i E BRI O &
REREHL—BREHSEER &
I - 202052 A W AR A 49 A
R#78,000t - At FHESHL
AR #3,598,0007T8 L E ) AREE
3,520,0007T °

S—HMEERE E_0MEER
@ REEF-DHEERINLESR
F_HEEHZ THRNES AR
ERREF - RERE M NMRERRND
r2EREMIAUMEZTSES
58 N ST FE ) 5 2 AT R 1 K 8

RN E TR AR E K IREBRR AL
S2EREMTBLUYE 2T HEEST
B MR % 7 AT A1 B A



36. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (continued)

(b)

(Continued)

Notes: (Continued)

(iii)

(iv)

(v)

(vi)

(vii)
(viii)

(ix)

On 31 December 2018, Scud Battery (as lessor) and
Scud Stock (as lessee) entered into a lease agreement
(the “Third Lease Agreement”) pursuant to which
Scud Battery agreed to lease certain premises to Scud
Stock for the period commenced from 1 January 2019
and ended on 31 December 2019. The annual rental
was approximately RMB5,618,000 and receivable by
cash on a monthly basis.

On 30 December 2019, Scud Battery (as lessor) and
Scud Stock (as lessee) entered into a lease renewal
agreement (the “Renewed Third Lease Agreement”)
pursuant to which Scud Battery agreed to extend
the lease period of the existing leased premises for
the period commenced from 1 January 2020 and
ended on 31 December 2020. The annual rental was
approximately RMB6,421,000 and receivable by cash
on a monthly basis.

During the year ended 31 December 2020, Scud
Battery and Scud Stock mutually agreed a rent
concession for the period from 1 February 2020 to 31
December 2020 in view of the COVID-19 Pandemic
and the annual rental was reduced from approximately
RMB6,42 1,000 to approximately RMB5,538,000.

The rental receivable under the Third Lease Agreement
and the Renewed Third Lease Agreement were
determined after arm’s length negotiations between
Scud Battery and Scud Stock with reference to the
market rental for similar properties nearby in the PRC
and having taken into account availability of similar
premises nearby and the cost of relocation.

The selling prices of finished goods, raw materials and
low-value consumables are determined and agreed by
both parties.

The selling price of property, plant and equipment is
determined and agreed by both parties.

The processing income and processing fee is
determined by both parties.

The training expense is determined by both parties.

The research and development expense is determined
by both parties.

The interest rate applied on the loan is determined
and agreed by both parties.
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36. BEALTRF )

(b)

(%)

BeE - (&)

(iif)

(iv)

(v)

(vi)

(vii)
(viii)

(ix)

20185128310 - REBRBMB(E
AR ERERRR (D ({E AR A)
AIVMEE A F=EEHE])
Bt REREBRSEES TWE
TREBR N - HHIH2019F1A18
2201956123101 - BFHEE R
,”%?Z}\E%,m&oooﬁ CABANRE
HY -

201912 H30H » RERE S M ({E
AN ) ERERRB D (EAREA)
AIVHESEERE(KEEF —HH
Shzl) B REREMEEILE
RIEFHEEWENTEE - 5202051
A1H £ Z2020F12H318 1k - B4
e AHOARE,421,0007T © BEA
LAZR 5 URER -

#H E2020F12B831B IEFE » RE
BREE M S FREREAR (D ZE R COVID-19%%
15— B [ = 56202052 A1 8 £2020
FRANBERESES  §FHS
B AR ¥E6,421,0007THE LA R B
5,538,0007T ©

E=hHERBENEEEE=—NHEE
e T FE M E & Th R AR EBREE ) K
REBEOE2ZRBMLIALYE
Z TS eI E &I EUE 2 AT
M REBR AL RN FEBERERE °

Skm - BV REERMNEER

EFETLRE
%% - HERRENEERENEE
WEE e

MITWARIMNTEREHEE

BIIERRENEE
MEBRBEHETE °

ERMNEHEHEELRE
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36. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (Continued) 36. AEANLTRZ (2

(c) Other transaction with related party: (0 HEBEATHEMRZS :
As at 31 December 2020, Mr. Fang Jin has guaranteed 20206128318 75 € 5t & 5 | A
certain bank facilities made to the subsidiaries of the EENBARREESERSEARE
Group of up to an amount of RMB907,750,000 (2019: 907,750,0007T(20194F : AR #579,688,000
RMB579,688,000). TOHETIRITRE FL LR -

(d) Remuneration for key management personnel, including d) FEEEEBASHNNS(BEOMEIA
amounts paid to the Company’s directors as disclosed in BENESYNAATESME )T -

Note 11, is as follows:

2020 2019
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBT T ARETT

Salaries, housing allowances, other %% - (£ 285 « HAb 28 K%

allowances and benefits in kind BEYER 3,940 3,678
Post-employment benefits BER 2R A 20 24
3,960 3,702
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37. NOTE SUPPORTING STATEMENT OF CASH
FLOW

Reconciliation of liabilities arising from financing activities:

37. X B HERERPHEE

BMERBELNEBEHR :

Amounts due

Lease Amounts due to related
Bank loans  Other loans liabilities  to directors parties
EftEmE
RITER HER HE8E EAESFE ATFHE
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARETT  ARETT ARBTT ARETR  ARET:
Balance at 31 December 2018 as originally 2018512 A31 RIEMIA RS 2 &%
presented 380,548 19,431 377 50,237
Initial application of IFRS 16 BREREREBEREENE16% = = 24,591 = =
Restated balance at 1 January 2019 R2019F1 A1 B 2 E5II% 380,548 19,431 24,591 377 50,237
Changes from cash flow RenEsy)
Proceeds from new borrowings REFEZZFEFE 1,055,882 - - - -
Repayment of borrowings BEfER (854,966) (10,038) = = -
Repayment of principal portion of leases EERE AT R = = (24,273) = =
Advances received G - - - 2 -
Repayment of advances BB = = = = (38,589)
Interest paid TAFE (24,891) (825) = = -
Qther changes: Hings
Foreign exchange movement INEEE) 1,225 - - - -
Interest expense GRS 24,891 825 1,453 - -
Capitalisation of new leases HMHEAR = = 8,127 = =
As at 31 December 2019 and 1 January 2020 #2019 124318 K%2020F1 818 582,689 9,393 9,898 409 11,648
Changes from cash flow BERELRH
Proceeds from new borrowings REFERZFERE 1,493,660 - - - -
Repayment of borrowings BRER (1,161,282) (9,393) - - -
Repayment of principal portion of leases BERE AT D - - (6,808) - -
Repayment of advances BEBR - - - (3713) (9,651)
Interest paid S (31,896) - - - -
Other changes: Hin )
Foreign exchange movement SNEE @j (3,125) - (554) - -
Capitalisation of new leases MHEERL - - 26,768 - -
Interest expense FERX 31,896 - 2,032 - -
As at 31 December 2020 120208128318 911,942 31,336 36 1,997
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38. CAPITAL COMMITMENTS 38. AIER B

2020 2019
RMB'000 RMB'000
AR¥TR ARETT

Contracted but not accounted for, in respect EStEEWE  BE K&
of acquisition of property, plant and RAEFTAMER A SR
equipment 55,789 24,220

39. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS BY CATEGORY 30. ZEREs2EMIT A

The carrying amounts of each of the categories of financial REIEER - SFEmITANRIERNT :
instruments at the end of the reporting period are as follows:

2020 2019
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR®TF T ARBTT

Financial assets SRMEE
Financial assets measured at amortised IREBEFAHBENESREE

costs
Trade receivables FEWE 53R 1,935,099 2,213,125
Financial assets included in prepayments, STATBNTFIE « e R EMEWETER

deposits and other receivables EREE 57,074 15,982
Amounts due from related parties FEUR A A +5RIE 87,917 152,259
Pledged bank deposits BHEARITIFR 750,810 977,454
Bank balances and cash RITEHR KRS 211,294 406,197

3,042,194 3,765,017
Financial assets measured at FVTOCI BRAFEFAEMEZEKETEN
LREE

Notes receivables S 41,788 116,649

190



'"VESON HOLDINGS LIMITED

HIEERBERLE

ANNUAL REPORT %R 2020

Lo

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
iR e MR R AR M RE

For the year ended 31 December 2020 # %2020 12431 H 1 F/Z

39. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS BY CATEGORY 39.R¥RIZ9 €@ I A

(Continued)
2020 2019
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBT T ARBT T
Financial liabilities LRIEE
Financial liabilities measured at REBHEEATTENSREE
amortised costs
Trade and notes payables e E 5B RERN R’ 2,481,690 3,346,741
Financial liabilities included in other STAEAMERIE - aHAER
payables, contract liabilities and accrued EAERNSRBE
charges 59,744 24,687
Lease liabilities HEBE 31,336 9,898
Bank loans RITER 911,942 582,689
Other loans HA B - 9,393
Amounts due to directors BN EEHIE 36 409
Amounts due to related parties JETRAE A T FIB 1,997 11,648
3,486,745 3,985,465
The above financial instruments which are measured at amortised EHAEEAATTENSRITE - BESHM
costs are not measured at fair value due to their short-term BRAUATFEFE - U EEeMTEANEREE
nature. The carrying values of the above financial instruments EENTERE °

approximate their fair values.
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40. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR 40. 2 iEMEEREMIAE 22
VALUES OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS SR

(a) EmEREE

(@) Financial risk management

192

The Group's activities expose it to a variety of financial

risks, which include market risk (including foreign currency

risk, interest rate risk and price risk), credit risk and liquidity

risk. Details of the policies on how to mitigate these risks

are set out below. The directors manage and monitor these

exposures to ensure appropriate measures are implemented

on a timely and effective manner.

(i)

Interest rate risk management

Interest-bearing financial assets are mainly pledged
bank deposits and bank balances which are all short-
term in nature and carry fixed interest rates. Interest-
bearing financial liabilities are mainly bank loans
with fixed interest rates; therefore, the Group is not
exposed to significant fair value interest rate risk due
to the short maturity of the items. The Group currently
does not have an interest rate hedging policy and will
consider enter into interest rate hedging should the
need arise.

Interest rate sensitivity analysis

The sensitivity analysis below has been determined
assuming that a change in interest rates had occurred
at the end of the reporting period and had been
applied to the exposure to interest rates for financial
instruments in existence at that date. A 1% increase
or decrease is used when reporting interest rate risk
internally to key management personnel and represents
management’s assessment of the reasonably possible
change in interest rates.

AEENEHEAZZHEeRER 25
MRk (EEIMNERRE - FIXEREE
®ER)  EERRMABIERRE - AREE
BEZERBROBRONFEHER T - &
EEEREEZERMB - DARECR NI LA
BRI ABIEENEE o

(i) FIERREE
AREREEIEAEHMENEE
WIRITF R R IRITAEER - DREEH
KR A EERMABEEERREE
MEFFBMRITER : At - A%KE
HAETRAMIIHARE - Ut A
AXBRHRFHENEERE - AEH
T8y 7 S A AAT ) SR S R R K 2
RE B ERFET LM S o

NRYRBED T

A TEGRED T HERRNEXEEHE
RBmERRBELEMETE - YERAR
IRZBEAXRESBITAZAH
R -RAZREEEABRERN
R [ i Y P P e o B {6 PR 8 A sl
1% DEREBREHMNEAESEE
EpA T



40. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR
VALUES OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS
(Continued)

(a) Financial risk management (Continued)

(i)

(i)

Interest rate risk management (Continued)
Interest rate sensitivity analysis (Continued)

If interest rates had been 1% higher/lower and all
other variables were held constant, the Group’s
loss for the year ended 31 December 2020 would
increase decrease and the accumulated losses as
of 31 December 2020 would increase/decrease by
approximately RMB9,119,000 (2019: profit would
increase/decrease by approximately RMB5,827,000).
This is mainly attributable to the Group’s exposure,
to interest rates on its variable rate bank balances,
pledged bank deposits and bank loans.

The Group’s bank balance also expose it to cash
flow interest rate risk due to the fluctuation of the
prevailing market interest rate on the bank balances.
The directors consider the Group’s exposure on the
bank deposits is not significant as interest-bearing
deposits are within short maturity periods in general.

The Group's sensitivity to interest rates has not
changed significantly from prior year.

Foreign currency risk management

Foreign currency risk refers to the risk that movements
in foreign currency exchange rates which will affect
the Group’s financial results and its cash flows.
Although the Group has certain bank balances and
bank loans denominated in United States dollars,
Japanese Yen, Indian Rupee and Hong Kong dollars,
the proportion of these foreign currency balances to
the Group's total assets is insignificant. Furthermore,
the Group carries out majority of its transactions in
Chinese Renminbi. Accordingly, in the opinion of the
directors, the Group is not exposed to any significant
foreign currency risk.
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ITVAAS

40. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR
VALUES OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS
(Continued)

194

(a) Financial risk management (Continued)

(iii) Price risk management

(iv)

In the opinion of the directors, the Group does not
have significant exposure to price risk.

Credit risk management

Credit risk refers to the risk that a counterparty will
default on its contractual obligations resulting in
financial loss to the Group. The Group’s credit risk
primarily relates to the Group’s bank balances, trade
and notes receivables, and other receivables. The
maximum exposure to credit risk in the event that
the counterparties fail to perform their obligations
as at end of the financial year in relation to each
class of recognised financial assets is the carrying
amount of those assets as stated in the statement
of financial position. In order to minimise the risk,
management of the Group closely monitors overdue
debts. The recoverable amount of each individual
debt is reviewed at each of the reporting period and
adequate allowance for doubtful debts has been made
for irrecoverable amounts. In this regard, the directors
of the Company consider that credit risk associated
with the Group’s trade and notes receivables, and
other receivables is significantly reduced.

At the end of the reporting period, the Group
has a certain level of concentration of credit
risk as approximately 22.1% (2019: 33.0%) and
approximately 70.9% (2019: 74.5%) of the total trade
and notes receivables, arising from the Group’s largest
customer and the five largest customers, respectively.

The credit risk on bank balances is minimal because
the counterparties are banks with high credit-rating.

The Group’s concentration of credit risk by
geographical location is mainly in the PRC.
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40. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR 40. 2 iEMEEREMIAE 22

VALUES OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS FE )

(Continued)

(a) Financial risk management (Continued) (a) ERIAREEZ)

(iv) Credit risk management (Continued) (iv) ERBEEE)

The Group measures loss allowances for trade AEBZESENFRABRESERE
receivables at an amount equal to lifetime ECLs, which (FIRBEBEREAR) NS EERK
is calculated using a provision matrix. As the Group’s B IRIENEEREE - ARNAEEB
historical credit loss experience does not indicate A EEEBECRIUARTRAERFHE
significantly different loss patterns for different ZRBETANEERN - SRR
customer segments, the loss allowance based on past REBTRAREFEEBE—FRHIBE
due status is not further distinguished between the B ERIE R IE L B IR R -

Group’s different customer bases.

The following table provides information about the TRIRME B A S B R2020F &
Group’s exposure to credit risk and ECLs for trade 201912 A31HETE R A EE R B
receivables as at 31 December 2020 and 2019: FEWE SFENEREEBENE
e

As at 31 December 2020 72020%12H31H
As at 31
Carrying Dec 2020
amount ECLs allowance A2020%F
AREE TEERE E IR 128318
RMB'000 RMB’000 RMB’000
AREFIT % ARETT AR%®TrR
0 to 60 days 0£60H 1,425,696 0.73% (10,423) 1,415,273
61 to 180 days 612180H 465,489 0.96% (4,458) 461,031
181 to 365 days 181£365H 67,144 12.43% (8,349) 58,795
Total st 1,958,329 (23,230) 1,935,099
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40. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR
VALUES OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS
(Continued)

(a) Financial risk management (Continued)
(iv) Credit risk management (Continued)

As at 31 December 2019

0.2REBREERESEMIAEZA
EE=)

(a) SRIEEEE)
(iv) EERBREE(E)
2019512 H31H

As at 31

Carrying Dec 2019

amount ECLs allowance 20194

RmEE TaHiE G B R RS 12A431H

RMB’000 RMB’'000 RMB’000

ARET T % AR¥EFIT ARKETT

0 to 60 days 0£60H 1,722,457 0.49% (8,505) 1,713,952
61 to 180 days 61£2180H 465,676 0.54% (2,503) 463,173
181 to 365 days 181£365H 37,167 3.14% (1,167) 36,000
Total et 2,225,300 (12,175) 2,213,125

Expected loss rates are based on actual loss experience
over the past 3 years. These rates are adjusted to
reflect differences between economic conditions
during the period over which the historic data has
been collected, current conditions and the group’s
view of economic conditions over the expected lives of
the receivables.
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40. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR 40. 2 iEMEEREMIAE 22

VALUES OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS EE®)

(Continued)

(a) Financial risk management (Continued) (a) cRAREEE)
(iv) Credit risk management (Continued) (iv) EEREERE(E)

The Group has adopted general approach to measure
ECLs on financial assets included in prepayments,
deposits and other receivables, and other financial
assets at amortised costs. Under the general approach,
the Group applies the “3-stage” impairment model
for ECLs measurement based on change in credit risk
since initial recognition as follows:

— Stage 1: If the credit risk of the financial
instrument has not increased significantly since
initial recognition, the financial instrument is
included in Stage 1.

— Stage 2: If the credit risk of the financial
instrument has increased significantly since its
initial recognition but is not deemed to be credit-
impaired, the financial instrument is included in
Stage 2.

—  Stage 3: If the financial instrument is credit-
impaired, the financial instrument is included in
Stage 3.

The ECLs for financial instruments in Stage 1 are
measured at an amount equivalent to 12-month ECLs
whereas the ECLs for financial instruments in Stage 2
or Stage 3 are measured at an amount equivalent to
lifetime ECLs.

When determining whether the risk of default
has increased significantly since initial recognition,
the Group considers reasonable and supportable
information that is relevant and available without
undue cost or effort. This includes both quantitative
and qualitative information and analysis, based on the
Group’s historical experience and informed credit risk
assessment and including forward-looking information.
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For the year ended 31 December 2020 # 220204 12 431 H 1FF/Z

40. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR 40. 2 iEMEEREMIAE 22

VALUES OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS FE®)
(Continued)
(a) Financial risk management (Continued) (a) SRIEEEE)
(iv) Credit risk management (Continued) (iv) EEREERE(E)

At the end of each reporting period, the Group #Riﬁiﬁﬁifi AREBEFhEREE

assesses whether a financial asset is credit-impaired. A GHBREERE - §¥E£—ER%

financial asset is considered as credit-impaired when Iﬁﬂémﬁﬁgﬁa‘l‘?ﬁiﬁfﬁ(ﬁﬁﬁﬂ:ﬂ
one or more events that have a detrimental impact on FBRE R - %Eﬁﬁ%?ﬁﬁ%ﬁjfﬁ
the estimated future cash flows of the financial asset EERE -  2REEEERENZE
have occurred. Evidence that a financial asset is credit- BTS2 AT R HE
impaired include observable data about the following

events:

(a) significant financial difficulty of the debtor; (a) BEBALBEANMIEHE

(b) a breach of contract, such as a default or past (b) BEREY WHERBEHEM;
due event;

() granting a concession to the debtors that (0 EREEMAZYIEREEHETFRH
the lender would not otherwise consider for LB E ANIRBMmA T ES
economic or contractual reasons relating to the AE—RIERTHRHARTZE
debtor’s financial difficulty; or EHEBEMS 5

(d) it is becoming probable that the debtor will enter (d) & AR A RE M BE A &= s E Aty
bankruptcy or other financial reorganisation. Br5EE4E o

The measurement of ECLs is a function of the TEEEEEE 2 EREANNE &

probability of default, loss given default (i.e. the NEE(AZOREBEEZ) RED

magnitude of the loss if there is a default) and the FFRBRRR O Z KK - BABERKIEN
exposure of default. The assessment of the probability EiE 2 S E T ERE L 8RR RTIE 1t
of default and loss given default is based on historical BRMERE - AT ERERTEBS
data and adjusted for forward-looking information REREBRNEEHEIARRESH
through the use of industry trend and experienced = UREBFERZBEEINESER
credit judgment to reflect the qualitative factors, and HEAT ©

through the use of multiple probability-weighted
scenarios.
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40. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR
VALUES OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS
(Continued)

(a) Financial risk management (Continued)
(iv) Credit risk management (Continued)

The loss allowance for financial assets included in
prepayments, deposits and other receivables as at
31 December 2019 reconciles to the opening loss
allowance on 1 January 2020 and to the closing loss
allowance as at 31 December 2020 are as follow:
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0.2RmEREEREBMIAEZA
YE)

() eREBEEE)
(iv) EERREEE)
M2019%F12 8318 5T ATE 08
Be REMBYWHRIBE L ©BEEZE
BREEN2020F1818 2 F 05
BB RN2020F12A318 2 F K

BREEZHRNT
2020 2019
RMB’000 RMB’000

AR®TR ARBT T

Opening loss allowance as  R1A1B 2EAEERE

at 1 January 1,737 5,412
Impairment loss recognised on  FtEt ATERIFIE - =& R H A EIGIE

financial assets included in ZEREERRBEEE

prepayments, deposits and

other receivables 131 1,443
Reversal of impairment loss on  #[EI L FIghat ATENFUR ~ #2d K H A

financial assets included in FEWGRIE 2 & Bl & EE TSR 2 B B 18

prepayments, deposits and

other receivables previously

recognised (7) (5,118)
Written off 84 (1,433) =
Closing loss allowance as at ®12A31H ZFKREERE

31 December 428 1,737

(v) Liquidity risk management

The ultimate responsibility for liquidity risk
management rests with the board of directors, which
has built an appropriate liquidity risk management
framework for the management of the Group’s
short, medium and long term funding and liquidity
management requirements. The Group manages
liquidity risk by maintaining adequate reserves,
banking facilities and reserve borrowing facilities, by
continuously monitoring forecast and actual cash flows
and matching the maturity profiles of financial assets
and liabilities.

(v) mEIEEREEE

REBRAEENEY - FHRAEHE
eRFERBUEERNER  EFg
ERY—E/ENABESRBRER
HE - YERBUERREREAKKE
- AEEEZBEFERHFE - R
TREMFRESRE - FEHES
BERRLMERRSRE - YRIT SR
BESEAENEHARTAEE RS
PEREBR o
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40. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR
VALUES OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS
(Continued)

.cHEAREEREMIAZAD
TE m)

(a) Financial risk management (Continued) (a) sREREE &)

BRI EEE (4F)

20204 %2019 12A31H © A&
EremaERECTTARIIERE

(v) Liquidity risk management (Continued) v)

The maturity profile of the Group’s financial liabilities
as at 31 December 2020 and 2019, based on the

200

contractual undiscounted payments, was as follows: HEIHE R -
2020
Less than 1 Total Total
year or on More than undiscounted carrying
demand 1-5 years 5years  cash flows amount
SR-F AHR
HEEX it BELE ReRELE REAR
RMB'000 RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB000 RMB'000
ARETR  ARBTR  ARETR AR%Tn  ARETR
Trade and notes payables ERESTERENSRE 2,481,690 - - 2481690 2,481,690
Financial liabllities included in other payables, A (T2 - AIBER
contract liabilities and accrued charges EABAmMERAR 59,744 - - 59,744 59,744
Lease liabilities HEAE 10,444 26,522 - 36,966 31,336
Bank loans RITER 710479 162,987 104,145 977,611 911,942
Amounts due to directors ENESHE 36 - - 36 36
Amounts due to related parties FEREEALZE 1,997 - - 1,997 1,997
3,264,390 189,509 104,145 3,558,044 3,486,745
2019
Less than 1 Total Total
year or on More than  undiscounted aarrying
demand 15 years 5 years cash flows amount
PR—F AR
HREX —E0f BRLE FORELR RHER
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARESTT  ARETT ARETR ARETR  ARETH
Trade and notes payables ENEZTERENSE 3,346,741 - - 336741 3346741
Financial liabilities included in other payables, stAZft/ENZUE  AXEER
contract liabilities and accrued charges EHBRNEBAR 24,687 - - 24,687 24,687
Lease liabilities HEGR 5311 7430 - 12,741 9,898
Bank loans RITER 599,429 - - 599,429 582,689
Other loans EfER 9,071 607 - 9,678 9,393
Amounts due to directors ENESTE 409 - = 409 409
Amounts due to related parties EREEALZE 11,648 - - 11,648 11,648
3,997,296 8,037 - 4,005,333 3,985,465
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40. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR

41.

VALUES OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS
(Continued)

(b) Fair values of financial instruments

The notional amounts of financial assets and liabilities
with a maturity of less than one year are assumed to
approximate their fair values.

The fair value of balances with related parties has not been
determined as the timing of the expected cash flows of
these balances cannot be reasonably determined because of
the relationship.

CAPITAL MANAGEMENT

The primary objective of the Group’s capital management is to
safeguard the Group’s ability to continue as a going concern and
to maintain healthy capital ratios in order to support its business
and maximise shareholder value.

The Group manages its capital structure and makes adjustments
to it, in light of changes in economic conditions and the risk
characteristics of the underlying assets. To maintain or adjust the
capital structure, the Group may adjust the dividend payment to
shareholders, return capital to shareholders or issue new shares.
The Group is not subject to any externally imposed capital
requirements. No changes were made in the objectives, policies
or processes during the years ended 31 December 2020 and
2019.

The Group monitors capital using a gearing ratio, which is
interest-bearing borrowings divided by the capital. Capital
includes equity attributable to owners of the Company and the
non-controlling interests. The gearing ratios as at the end of the
reporting period were as follows:

RE RS R AR MR

For the year ended 31 December 2020 # %2020 12431 H 1 F/Z

0.2RmEREEREBMIAEZA

NRERE )

(b) EMIAZATE
FHIRN-—FNEMEERBENEES
BIERRABEQFERE

HREEATEHRNTARRSRENKH
HmENBENEES BMET - R E
EEZEHEBNATE -

41. EXREE
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REBEENRREEHEREBETAE -
REFAEERNERE  AEE]ARIRMNRKR
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41. CAPITAL MANAGEMENT (Continued) 4. EXEHE )

2020 2019

RMB’000 RMB’000

ARBT ARETFT

Interest-bearing borrowings sHEER 911,942 592,082
Equity attributable to owners of the RABIER AEIE R

Company 1,013,823 1,058,728

Non-controlling interests JEPE AR = 10,718 15,798

Total equity g 1,024,541 1,074,526

Gearing ratio BRBEELE 89.0% 55.1%

42. HEHEREE
RIS AR - ARERE T EE

42. EVENT AFTER THE REPORTING PERIOD

Subsequent to the end of the reporting period, the Group had
the following event:

el B0 TE B 5 465 240202148 R B8 B 1R T 46 2 3%
2ESE  EFHEEREBEBERRSR

The directors believe global consumer sentiment will recover
from the COVID-19 pandemic eventually amid the expectation of

vaccines becoming available for extensive distribution worldwide
later in 2021. However, given there were new COVID-19 cases in
many regions recently still, the Group will cautiously stay vigilant

COVID-19& 1B K18 - 1B MAR Z & i)
BCOVID-19F11E =N - REBSHRIFEES
BRFLGRIEHRE °

and react to the evolving situation.

43. COMPARATIVE FIGURES 43. L BE T
Certain comparative figures in Note 6 of the consolidated 4= A B SRR M6 S T BB FE R EH D
financial statements have been reclassified to conform to the 5 B AREERNRY - S5 o
current year's presentation. Details are set out in Note 6.
44. YGRS M B RK

APPROVAL OF THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The consolidated financial statements were approved and

44,

AATEEESEMN2021F3 431 B E RiFHE
FE 47 & BT 3REK o

authorised for issue by the board of directors of the Company
on 31 March 2021.
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RESULTS ES
The Group KEE
Year ended 31 December
BZ12A31BLEE
2020 2019 2018 2017 2016
RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000

ARBF T ARETTT ARETT ARETT ARETT

Turnover ) 6,216,571 7,395,203 6,962,078 5,801,566 6,061,477
(Loss)/profit before B TS Al

income tax (E518), s F (39,903) 56,227 105,280 20,290 (174121)
Income tax (expense)/credit  FriSHi (B ), K% (17,579) (7,531) (9,196) (409) 49,288
(Loss)/profit for the year — ZN4F & (518 ) % F (57,482) 48,696 96,084 19,881 (124,833)

(Loss)/profit attributable to: N3 A +EAE

(E518),#=A
Owners of the Company ~ RNAGHEA A (52,683) 52,543 93,274 21,125 (118,951)
Non-controlling interests JEFE RS RE 2 (4,799) (3,847) 2,810 (1,244) (5,882)
(57,482) 48,696 96,084 19,881 (124,833)
ASSETS AND LIABILITIES EERAR
The Group AEEH
At 31 December
M12A31H
2020 2019 2018 2017 2016
RMB'000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥TR ARETT ARETT ARBETT < AR®TT
Total assets MEE 4,643,973 5,183,200 4,932,165 3,916,878 3,687,342
Total liabilities HEE (3,619,432) (4,108,674) (3,906,728) (2,979,446) (2,776,755)
1,024,541 1,074,526 1,025,437 937,432 910,587
Attributable to: THI AL
Owners of the Company ViN/NEIE YN 1,013,823 1,058,728 1,011,436 926,183 898,094
Non-controlling interests SEE R R 10,718 15,798 14,001 11,249 12,493
1,024,541 1,074,526 1,025,437 937,432 910,587
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INVESTMENT PROPERTIES REYE
Percentage of
interest
Total rental attributable to
Description Use Nature area the Group
B3 Ag HE A A AEEELER
A factory building and a warehouse building located at No. Manufacturing Short term 35,115 sgq.m 100%
135, Rujiangdong Road, Mawei District, Fuzhou, Fujian facility leasehold 35,115 F 5K
Province, PRC HER MEHE
URFEEZE RN TSR IRK13RN—EIERRE
REE
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